Public Document Pack

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Thursday, 8th November, 2012
at 5.30 pm

Conference Room 3 and 4 - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Moulton (Chair)
Councillor Vinson (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Barnes-Andrews
Councillor Chaloner
Councillor Fitzhenry
Councillor Hannides
Councillor Lewzey

Councillor McEwing
Councillor Pope

Councillor Tucker

Appointed Members

Mrs U Topp, (Roman Catholic Church)

Mr T Blackshaw, The Church of England (Dioceses
of Winchester & Portsmouth)

Vacancies — Primary Parent Governors
Representative and Parent Governor
Representative

Contacts

Ed Grimshaw

Democratic Support Officer

Tel. 023 8083 2390

Email: ed.grimshaw@southampton.gov.uk

Suki Sitaram

Senior Manager — Customer and Business
Improvement

Tel: 023 8083 2060

Email: suki.sitaram@southampton.gov.uk




PUBLIC INFORMATION

Role of Overview and Scrutiny

Overview and Scrutiny includes the
following three functions:

e Holding the Executive to account by
questioning and evaluating the
Executive’s actions, both before and
after decisions taken.

e Developing and reviewing Council
policies, including the Policy
Framework and Budget Strategy.

¢ Making reports and recommendations
on any aspect of Council business
and other matters that affect the City
and its citizens.

Overview and Scrutiny can ask the
Executive to reconsider a decision, but
they do not have the power to change
the decision themselves.

Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee holds the Executive to
account, exercises the call-in process,
and sets and monitors standards for
scrutiny. It formulates a programme of
scrutiny inquiries and appoints Scrutiny
Panels to undertake them. Members of
the Executive cannot serve on this
Committee.

Southampton City Council’s Priorities

e More jobs for local people

e More local people who are well
education and skilled

e A better and safer place in which to
live and invest

e Better protection for children and
young people

e Support for the most vulnerable
people and families

¢ Reducing health inequalities

e Reshaping the Council for the future

Smoking Policy

The Council operates a no-smoking policy in all
civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones

Please turn off your mobile telephone whilst in
the meeting.

Fire Procedure

In the event of a fire or other emergency a
continuous alarm will sound and you will be
advised by Council officers what action to take.
Access

Access is available for disabled people. Please

contact the Democratic Support Officer who will
help to make any necessary arrangements.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year 2012/13

2012 2013
12 July 24 January
16 August 14 February
13 September 14 March
11 October 11 April
8 November
19 November *
13 December

* Special Meeting



CONDUCT OF MEETING

TERMS OF REFERENCE BUSINESS TO BE DISCUSSED
The general role and terms of reference for  Only those items listed on the attached
the Overview and Scrutiny Management agenda may be considered at this meeting.

Committee, together with those for all
Scrutiny Panels, are set out in Part 2
(Article 6) of the Council’s Constitution, and
their particular roles are set out in Part 4
(Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules —
paragraph 5) of the Constitution.

RULES OF PROCEDURE QUORUM
The meeting is governed by the Council The minimum number of appointed Members
Procedure Rules and the Overview and required to be in attendance to hold the

Scrutiny Procedure Rules as set out in Part meeting is 4.
4 of the Constitution.

DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, both
the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Personal Interest” or “Other Interest” they may
have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any
matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or wife, or
a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
(ii) Sponsorship:
Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton City
Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense incurred by
you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. This includes
any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the you /
your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under which goods
or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has not been fully
discharged.
(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton.
(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of Southampton
for a month or longer.
(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests.
(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) has a
place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either:
a) the total nominal value fo the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that body, or
b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value of
the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest
that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.



Other Interests

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a, ‘Other Interest’ in any membership of,
or occupation of a position of general control or management in:

Any body to which they have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature

Any body directed to charitable purposes

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy

Principles of Decision Making
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it. The
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e leave out of account irrelevant considerations;

e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are
unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



Agendas and papers are now available online via the Council’s Website

1 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN PANEL MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in membership of the Panel made in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 4.3.

2 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct,
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the
agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Democratic
Support Officer.

3 DECLARATIONS OF SCRUTINY INTEREST

Members are invited to declare any prior participation in any decision taken by a
Committee, Sub-Committee, or Panel of the Council on the agenda and being
scrutinised at this meeting.

4 DECLARATION OF PARTY POLITICAL WHIP

Members are invited to declare the application of any party political whip on any matter
on the agenda and being scrutinised at this meeting.

5 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

6 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 11"
October 2012 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

7 REVIEW OF THE ROMANSE AND CCTV PROJECT

Report of the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services setting out the current
position regarding the independent review of the project, attached.



10

11

FORWARD PLAN

Report of the Senior Manager — Customer and Business Improvement detailing items
requested for discussion from the current Forward Plan, attached.

a) Townhill Park Regeneration Framework: Scheme Approval for Phase 1

To consider a briefing paper outlining the forthcoming Cabinet decision —
“Townhill Park Regeneration Framework: Scheme Approval for Phase 17,
attached.

b) Implementation of the New School Funding Formula

To consider a briefing paper outlining the forthcoming Cabinet decision —
“Implementation of the New School Funding Formula”, attached.

PROGRESS REPORT ON POST OFSTED ANNOUNCED INSPECTION ACTION
PLAN

Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and the Director of Children’s
Services and Learning summarising the progress made in addressing the areas for
improvement recommended by OfSTED as a result of their Announced Inspection of
Safeguarding and Children Looked After services in Southampton, attached.

ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY OPTIONS FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE

Report of Cabinet Member of Adult Services detailing the findings of a
Pricewaterhouse Cooper investigation which informed a final decision about the future
delivery model for in house social care, attached.

MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

Report of the Senior Manager — Customer and Business Improvement, detailing
actions and monitoring progress of the recommendations of the Panel, attached.

WEDNESDAY, 31 OCTOBER 2012 HEAD OF LEGAL, HR AND DEMOCRATIC

SERVICES



Agenda ltem 6

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11 OCTOBER 2012

Present: Councillors Moulton (Chair), Vinson (Vice-Chair), Barnes-Andrews,

Chaloner, Fitzhenry, Hannides, Lewzey, McEwing, Pope and Tucker

Apologies: Mrs U Topp and Mr T Blackshaw
Also Present: Councillor Rayment — Cabinet Members for Communities

22.

23.

24.

Councillor Williams — Leader of the Council
Councillor Thorpe — Cabinet Member for Environment and Transport

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED: that the minutes for the Committee meeting on 13 September 2012 be
approved and signed as a correct record. (Copy of the minutes circulated with the
agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

SOUTHAMPTON YOUTH OFFENDING SERVICE (YOS) ANNUAL YOUTH JUSTICE
PLAN

The Committee considered the report of the Cabinet Member for Communities detailing
the Annual Youth Justice Plan (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and
appended to the signed minutes).

The Cabinet Member thanked Sue Morse for her involvement in producing the first ever
Youth Justice Strategic Plan for the Southampton Youth Offending Service.

RESOLVED that

(i) the Cabinet Member request officers to circulate information to the
Committee that detailed the numbers of looked after children and the
numbers of persistent offenders that were classed as looked after children;

(i) the Cabinet member request officers to explore options for external funding
from businesses in the City.

A CITY WIDE APPROACH TO ENERGY

The Committee considered the report the Leader of the Council regarding an
opportunity for the Council to develop a strategic approach to energy which would
include the development of a strategic delivery programme of suitable schemes to
support the Council’s strategic objectives. (Copy of the report circulated with the
agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

RESOLVED that

(i) the Leader of Council ensures that the energy agenda is taken forward on a
cross party basis.

-10 -



25.

26.

FORWARD PLAN

The Committee considered the report of the Senior Manager — Customer and Business
Improvement detailing items requested for discussion from the current Forward Plan
and seeking the Committee’s indication as to what items will be required for discussion
scheduled at a forthcoming meeting. (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and
appended to the signed minutes).

RESOLVED that;

(i) there would be a special meeting of the Committee on the 19" November
2012 to discuss issues related to the forthcoming Cabinet Budget
recommendations.

(i) on consideration of the briefing paper relating to the forthcoming Cabinet
Decision, “Increasing Southampton’s Recycling Rate and Enhancing
Collections”, that t the Cabinet Member looks again at increasing the range of
aluminium items collected at the kerbside

CONSIDERATION OF PETITIONS

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic
Services detailing the Council response to petitions received with over 750 signatories.
(Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed minutes).

RESOLVED that:

(i) in relation to Appendix 1 detailing the response for the “Making Our
Community a Safer Place Petition” the Committee noted that work had been
carried out in the area but requested that a site visit is organised with the
petitioners to ensure that the work that has been undertaken to clear the
undergrowth is satisfactory;

(i) in relation to Appendix 2 detailing the response for the “Hollybrook Lodge
Petition” the Committee made the following recommendations:

a. that the Cabinet Member be requested to provide the family with a
breakdown of the savings the proposal will generate;

b. that the Cabinet Member ensure that the Council identifies the number of
Council employees whose accommodation is tied to their employment
with the Council and develops appropriate policies to address this matter;

c. that the Cabinet Member ensure that Council contact these employees, to
reiterate their status and seeking to ensure that when their term of office
ends that they are not left out of pocket through investing in property
improvements;

d. that Cabinet Member ensure that the appropriate screening is erected to
screen the property; and

e. that the Cabinet Member, in compliance with the Council’s allocations
policy, looks to ensure that the sensitivity of the location is taken into
consideration when tenants are identified for the property,

(i)  the Committee noted the response in relation to the “Save Oaklands Pool”
set out in Appendix 3.

-11 -



27.

MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

The Committee noted the report of the Senior Manager — Customer and Business
Improvement, detailing actions and monitoring progress of the recommendations of the
Panel (Copy of the report circulated with the agenda and appended to the signed
minutes).

-12 -



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 7

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF THE ROMANSE AND CCTV PROJECT

DATE OF DECISION: 8 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: HEAD OF LEGAL, HR AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY
The current position regarding this independent review is as detailed below.
RECOMMENDATIONS:
(i)  That the Committee notes the current position.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. n/a
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. n/a.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. Earlier in the year the Leader of the Council requested an independent review
of the decision by the Council on 8" May 2012 to externalise its CCTV
function. Terms of reference were agreed by the three statutory officers and
LG Partnerships commissioned by the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic
Services in June 2012.

4. Over the summer months numerous interviews were undertaken by LGP and
a draft report was received from LGP in late September.

5. From consideration of the report further work is required, including clarification
of certain issues and further interviews. This work will be undertaken over the
next few weeks and a final report compiled by the end of November 2012.
Until such time as the report is finalised the matter cannot reasonably be
placed before the committee for consideration.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

6. None.
Property/Other
7. None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:
8. Section 111 Local Government Act 1972

Other Legal Implications:

9. None.



POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

10. None

AUTHOR: Name: | Richard Ivory Tel: 1 023 8083 2794
E-mail: | Richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: none

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed
on-line

Appendices

1. None

Documents In Members’ Rooms

None

Integrated Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact No
Assessment (IIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

None




Agenda Iltem 8

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: FORWARD PLAN

DATE OF DECISION: 8 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: SENIOR MANAGER — CUSTOMER AND BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to examine the
content of the Forward Plan and to discuss issues of interest or concern with the
Executive to ensure that forthcoming decisions made by the Executive benefit local
residents.

RECOMMENDATION:

(i) That the Committee discuss the Forward Plan items listed in paragraph 3
of the report to highlight any matters which Members feel should be
taken into account by the Executive when reaching a decision.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To enable Members to identify any matters which they feel the Cabinet
should take into account when reaching a decision.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None.
DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. The Forward Plan for the period November 2012 — February 2013 has been
circulated to members of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.
The following issues were identified for discussion with the Decision Maker:

Portfolio Decision Requested By
Housing & Townhill Park Regeneration Framework — | Clir Moulton
Leisure Scheme approval for Phase 1
Children’s Implementation of the Reformed School ClIr Moulton
Services Funding Formula for 2013/14
4. Briefing papers responding to the Forward Plan items identified by members

of the Committee are appended to this report. Members are invited to use the
paper to explore the issues with the decision maker.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

5. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken.



Property/Other

6. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

7. The details for the items on the Forward Plan will be set out in the Executive
decision making report issued prior to the decision being taken.

The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Other Legal Implications:

8. None.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

9. None.

AUTHOR: Name: | Mark Pirnie Tel: | 023 8083 3886
E-mail: | Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed

on-line
Appendices
1. Briefing Paper — Townhill Park Regeneration Framework
2. Briefing Paper - Implementation of the Reformed School Funding Formula for
2013/14
Documents In Members’ Rooms
None
Integrated Impact Assessment
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact No

Assessment (IIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing
document to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

None




Agenda ltem 8a

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: TOWNHILL PARK REGENERATION FRAMEWORK:
SCHEME APPROVAL FOR PHASE 1

DATE OF DECISION: OSMC - 8 NOVEMBER 2012

CABINET - 13 NOVEMBER 2012
COUNCIL - 14 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR HOUSING AND LEISURE
STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

Southampton City Council has embarked on a major estate regeneration programme
which plays an essential part in the wider commitment of delivering growth and
tackling economic deprivation and social disadvantage on Southampton’s Council
estates.

On 12th March 2012, Cabinet approved a report on the regeneration of Townhill Park.
Some of those recommendations were conditional on a further report (approved by
Cabinet on 19" April 2012) on the outcome of an affordability assessment, the
availability of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and General Fund (GF) budgets and
the completion of the assessment of delivery options. This report was deferred by
Council on 16™ May 2012 to allow the new, current administration who, while in
support of Estate Regeneration, wished for time to consider the financial implications
of the Townhill Park proposals.

After a review of the financial detail of the Townhill Park proposals a further report
was approved at Cabinet on 21% August 2012 including further resident/tenant
consultation. This report reviewed and consolidated the previous Cabinet papers (of
12th March 2012 and 16™ April 2012) and sought approval for the strategy and
financial analysis for the delivery of the Townhill Park Regeneration Framework
including the finances necessary to enable the project to proceed. The report was
deferred by Council on 12" September 2012 pending information on changes
particularly their financial implications between the Cabinet reports of 16™ April 2012
and the 21st August 2012 reports.

Following completion of further work and consultation, this report now proposes:
e Not to proceed with a new link road to Cornwall Road or the opening up of
Cutbush Lane to vehicular traffic.

e To move forward with Phase One development of Townhill Park on the basis
that Site 35, (Moorlands Community Centre) is removed from Phase 1

e That new affordable housing should be retained and managed in Council
ownership

e That 450 affordable homes will be developed on the site
e That 100% of affordable homes will be provided at Affordable Rent



The affordability assessment contained within this paper is based on the regeneration
framework approved by Cabinet on 12th March 2012 (the modified Central Park
option, see paragraph 22) but with an increase of 70 dwellings in the level of social
housing. It shows that there is a gross capital cost to the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) of £11.8M (with a net cost of £9.2M after capital receipts) and that the 30 year
HRA revenue surplus will be reduced by approximately £23.9M. The revised
proposals remain within the April 2012 total costs envelope for the HRA of circa
£33M, including £1.3M to be vired from an affordable housing provision within the
General Fund (GF). The GF will need to fund certain infrastructure improvements at
an estimated cost of £2.6M, funding for which will need to be identified once the rules
for the use of the Community Infrastructure Levy and the value of the GF capital
receipts are known.

The report also sets out the implications for rent levels following the re-provision of the
social housing under the regeneration proposals. A scenario where the social housing
is provided by the Council, as part of the HRA, and let at Affordable Rent has been
recommended as the preferred approach.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
OosSMC

i) To consider and comment on the report on Townhill Park
regeneration Framework and Scheme Approval for Phase 1 which
will be presented to Cabinet on 13" November and Council on the
14™ November 2012.

CABINET
The recommendations to Cabinet are as follows:

i) To approve the vision and themes of the Townhill Park
Regeneration Framework based on the modified Central Park
option, as set out in this paper, and to delegate authority to the
Director of Environment and Economy to finalise the Townhill Park
Regeneration Framework following consultation with Head of
Finance and IT (CFO) and the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Leisure and Leader of the Council.

Note: A number of proposals contained in the Framework documents
require further study and consultation and these studies and
consultation may necessitate some changes to be made to the
Framework, approval as delegated above.

ii) To approve in principle the redevelopment of Townhill Park in three
phases with the following zones in each phase:

e Phase 1 comprising zones 1, 33, and 34

e Phase 2 comprising zones 9, 11 (redevelopment), 12,19 20, 27
and 28

e Phase 3 comprising zones 3, 14, 17, 24, 29, 30, and 25

including additional associated open space and highways

improvements incorporated in the proposals and to delegate

authority to the Director of Environment and Economy, following

consultation with the Head of Finance and IT (CFO) and the

Cabinet Member for Housing and Leisure to amend Phases, to



ii)

vi)

vii)

move or amend zones within phases, to decide the extent of
improvements and when to implement the additional open spaces
and highways improvements incorporated in the proposals.

Note In the August 2012 Cabinet paper Zone 33 was proposed in
Phase 1 and Zone 25 in Phase 3. In this paper Site 35 is removed
from Phase 1

The public consultation on Phase 1 has been carried out and is
reported as part of this Cabinet paper.

To note that the wider consultation with residents has also taken
place including consultation on the proposed new road link to
Cornwall Road and is reported as part of this Cabinet paper.

To delegate authority to serve Initial Demolition Notices on secure
tenants under the provisions of the Housing Acts 1985, as
appropriate on all 3 Phases properties of the proposed
redevelopment to the Director of Environment and Economy
following consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and
Leisure, the Head of Legal, HR and Democratic Services and the
Head of Finance and IT (CFO).

To implement the adopted Decant Policy in relation to Phase 1, and
to delegate authority to the Senior Manager Property and
Procurement to negotiate and acquire by agreement any legal
interests or rights held in respect of the properties in Phases 1, 2 and
3, not held by the Council, using such acquisition powers as the
Head of Legal HR and Democratic Services advises. In each case
subject to confirmation from Capita, acting as independent valuers,
that the price represents the appropriate Market Value.

To delegate authority to the Director for Environment and Economy,
following consultation with the Head of Finance and IT (CFO), the
Head of Legal HR and Democratic Services, and the Senior
Manager Property and Procurement and Cabinet Member for
Housing and Leisure to:

a) Produce, finalise and approve the range of documents
necessary for the delivery of Phase 1 including as required; a
Development/Contractor Brief, planning application, tender
specifications and associated employer’s requirements for
Phase 1.

b) To decide and undertake the appropriate procurement route
and the appropriate development model for the Council under
the prevailing circumstances in order to enable, subject to
Cabinet approval, to entry into appropriate Development
Agreements/contracts to deliver Phase 1 in accordance with
the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules to deliver Phase 1

To report back to Cabinet the outcome of the procurement activity
referred to in vi) b) above, as appropriate, and to seek further
authority from Cabinet to appoint a preferred bidder(s) based upon
the results of that procurement activity and to seek consent to any
required land disposal within Phase 1 and/or to seek approval to



viii)

Xi)

appointment of a developer/contractors under an appropriate
development or construction agreement.

To agree to recommend to Council that that the HRA capital
programme will fund the site preparation costs set out in this report,
currently estimated at £11.8M, and:

a) To recommend that Council approve a virement of £10.5M
from the uncommitted provision for Estate Regeneration,
which exists in the HRA capital programme and business
plan, and £1.3M from the uncommitted funding for affordable
housing in the Housing GF capital programme to establish a
specific budget of £11.8M for the regeneration of Townhill
Park, the phasing for which is set out in Appendix 1.

b) To recommend that Council approve, in accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, capital spending of £3.9M on site
preparation costs, including the purchase of leasehold
interests, for Phase 1 of the Townhill Park regeneration
project, phased £0.5M in 2012/13, £2.0M in 2013/14 and
£1.4Min 2014/15.

c) To recommend that Council approve, in accordance with
Financial Procedure Rules, capital spending of up to a
further £3.9M on the purchase of leasehold interests for
properties in Phases 2 & 3 of the Townhill Park regeneration
project, phased £0.5M in 2013/14, £0.8M in 2014/15, £1.4M
in 2015/16 and £1.2M in 2016/17.

a) To approve, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules,
the addition of a Townhill Park enabling project budget to the
HRA Capital Programme, funded by Direct Revenue
Financing (DRF) provisions of £200,000 within the HRA
Business Plan, primarily for professional fees relating to the
development agreement, the procurement process and for
design and planning advice.

b) To approve capital expenditure of up to £200,000 on
enabling activities, including professional fees, phased
£60,000 in 2012/13, £120,000 in 2013/14 and £20,000 in
2014/15.

To note that the HRA will be required to incur further capital
expenditure to acquire the 450 units of social housing at an
estimated cost of £47.7M, provision for which has been included in
the 30 year HRA Business Plan projections for these proposals, but
with the timing dependent on the final details of the development
agreement and subject to future Cabinet/Council approvals.

To note that the General Fund capital programme will be required to
fund highways infrastructure, and open space improvements, at an
estimated cost of £2.6M with the method of funding this being
agreed once the use of the Community Infrastructure Levy and the
value of the GF capital receipts are known.



Xii)

xiii)

Xiv)

COUNCIL

To agree that the preferred approach for the provision of the new
social housing is for this housing to be supplied by the Council, as
part of the HRA, and that this new social housing provision will be
provided for letting at Affordable Rents, subject to approval from the
Department for Communities and Local Government / Homes and
Communities Agency.

To agree that the following proposals in the Townhill Park
Regeneration Framework will not be implemented:

=  The road connection from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road at the
junction with Litchfield Road

= The opening up of Cutbush Lane to vehicular traffic

To agree to recommend to Council that:

a) £23.9M of the 30 year HRA revenue surplus will be utilised to
meet the long term revenue costs of the regeneration of
Townhill Park, which includes the requirement to repay the
debt on the dwellings that have been disposed of from the
general HRA revenue balance as there is no net capital
receipt to fund this repayment.

b) The General Fund capital programme will fund the highways
infrastructure and open space improvements at an estimated
cost of £2.6M with the method of funding this being agreed
once the use of the Community Infrastructure Levy and the
value of the GF capital receipts become known.

The recommendations to Council are as follows:

i)

To agree that the HRA capital programme will fund the site
preparation costs set out in this report, currently estimated at
£11.8M, and:

a) To approve a virement of £10.5M from the uncommitted
provision for Estate Regeneration, which exists in the HRA
capital programme and business plan, and £1.3M from the
uncommitted funding for affordable housing in the Housing
GF capital programme to establish a specific budget of
£11.8M for the regeneration of Townhill Park, the phasing for
which is set out in Appendix 1.

b) To approve, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules,
capital spending of £3.9M on site preparation costs, including
the purchase of leasehold interests, for Phase 1 of the
Townhill Park regeneration project, phased £0.5M in
2012/13, £2.0M in 2013/14 and £1.4M in 2014/15.

c) To approve, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules,
capital spending of up to a further £3.9M on the purchase of
leasehold interests for properties in phases 2 & 3 of the
Townhill Park regeneration project, phased £0.5M in
2013/14, £0.8M in 2014/15, £1.4M in 2015/16 and £1.2M in
2016/17.



ii) To approve the use of £23.9M of the 30 year HRA revenue surplus
to meet the long term revenue costs of the regeneration of Townhill
Park, which includes the requirement to repay the debt on the
dwellings that have been disposed of from the general HRA
revenue balance as there is no net capital receipt to fund this
repayment.

iii) To agree that the General Fund capital programme will fund the
highways infrastructure and open space improvements at an
estimated cost of £2.6M with the method of funding this being
agreed once the use of the Community Infrastructure Levy and the
value of the GF capital receipts become known.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS - SCRUTINY

1 To provide OSMC the opportunity to consider and comment on the Townhill
Park regeneration Framework and Scheme Approval for Phase 1 report which
will be presented to Cabinet on 13" November 2012 and Council on 14"

November 2012.
REASON FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS — CABINET AND COUNCIL
2. Estate Regeneration is a major programme of renewal which is part of a wider

commitment by the Council to deliver sustained economic growth and tackle
deprivation on Southampton’s council estates. The Estate Regeneration
programme has grown from the Phase 1 pilot at Hinkler Parade through to an
Estate Regeneration Framework for Townhill Park, which is focused on
developing a strategic approach to delivery across the estate.

3. Redevelopment provides the opportunity to deliver improved modern local
facilities to meet the needs of residents. It will also provide a mixed tenure
environment and good quality accommodation, together with significant
improvements in the public and private realm on site, to ensure a cohesive
and sustainable community.

4. Selecting areas of the city which are the most deprived, but have the
greatest potential for housing gain will also contribute to the city wide priority
of economic growth, the Core Strategy target of delivering over 16,000 new
homes between 2010 and 2026 and the aim to deliver more affordable
housing. Regeneration will provide the opportunity to tackle some of the
socio economic challenges in the area.

5. Regeneration is supported by the community and further consultations will
be held as the proposals for the area develop. As the Townhill Park Master
Plan proposals are implemented over a period of at least ten years there will
be many further opportunities for the community to engage with the
proposals as they evolve and develop through the various stages of
implementation.

6. To approve the financial implications of the regeneration framework for
Townhill Park so that the regeneration proposals can proceed.



ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

7.

10.

11.

12.

The updated Housing Strategy 2011-15 and Housing Revenue Account
Business Plan 2011-2041 approved by Cabinet on 4™ July 2011 (and Council
on 13" July 2011) confirm estate regeneration and the provision of affordable
housing as a key priority for the Council.

This report proposes the delivery of the next projects within a programme of
Estate Regeneration. The option of doing nothing would not achieve the
Council’s objectives of creating successful communities on our estates.

The option of doing nothing would result in a lack of strategic direction for the
future of the area and a lost opportunity to meet the Council’s objectives of
economic growth.

The Estate Regeneration programme began with a pilot and one off sites,
which has given the Council experience of regenerating housing, but is
piecemeal. Taking a whole estate, as in Townhill Park, has allowed
opportunities to deliver enhanced impact, which are not possible with a site by
site approach.

Furthermore there has been considerable community consultation with local
tenants and residents at Townhill Park, as part of the development of the
regeneration framework, which has raised community hopes and
expectations.

The option of not approving the financial contributions to meet the cost of
delivering the regeneration framework has been rejected as it would not
enable the regeneration of Townhill Park to proceed.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

Background

13.

14.

On 12th March 2012, Cabinet approved a report on the regeneration of
Townhill Park. Some of those recommendations were conditional on a
further report on the outcome of an affordability assessment, the availability
of Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and General Fund (GF) budgets and
the completion of the assessment of delivery options. This was the subject
of the 16™ April 2012 Cabinet report which was approved, but deferred at
Council on 16™ May 2012 for approval of certain recommendations. The
current administration, newly elected in May 2012, while in support of estate
regeneration, wished for time to consider the financial implications of the
Townhill Park proposals.

The financial assessment, covering affordability and budgets, can be divided
into 2 distinct parts. One is the main regeneration activity involving the
demolition of existing dwellings, (subject to completed appropriate and
robust prior consultation in relation to the details of properties and individuals
affected) the provision of new dwellings and other improvement works. The
second concerns the provision of the new social housing and whether this is
provided by the Council or a Housing Association and the level of rent to be
charged. The main change from the 16™ April 2012 Cabinet report is that the
new social housing should be retained and managed in Council ownership.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Review of 12" March 2012 Cabinet paper and identification of any
changes

The following paragraphs highlight the key elements of the 12th March 2012
Cabinet report and any fundamental changes.

Core Principles of the Estate Regeneration Programme and Townhill
Park — The Case for Regeneration

These aspects are covered in the 12" March 2012 Cabinet report,
paragraphs 10-12 and 13-14, and these remain unchanged.

Consultation — Estate Regeneration Programme

Consultation has been undertaken by the Council with a range of bodies in
the development of the Estate Regeneration programme. Nationally, this
includes the Homes and Communities Agency and sub Regionally, the
Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH). Locally, there has been
consultation with tenants’ representatives and trade union representatives.
There has also been positive cross-party engagement. For the estate
regeneration programme this consultation is on-going.

Consultation Process — Townhill Park

A programme of consultation was undertaken during the study and is
described in the 12" March 2012 Cabinet report in paragraphs 17 to 21. A
copy of the Community Consultations forms Appendix 1 of the Regeneration
Framework, which is a document available in Members’ Rooms.

The 21% August 2012 Cabinet report set out how further public consultations
were planned to take place over the next couple of months. The outcome of
which is included later in this report.

Townhill Park Study and Options Proposed

The study process and the options considered was set out in the 12" March
2012 Cabinet report paragraphs 22-32 and these remain unchanged.

Townhill Park Agreed Vision and Themes
Residents helped to agree a vision and seven themes for Townhill Park and
these remain unchanged. The agreed vision for Townhill Park is that:
By 2021, residents of Townhill Park will be proud to live in a successful
suburban family neighbourhood.
Residents also agreed seven themes which would form an intrinsic part of
delivering the vision. These are:
= A ‘fantastic’ community heart
= Meggeson Avenue a safe and attractive public space with
improved crossings
= A transformed park and wonderful local greens and play
spaces
= A better walking, cycling and public transport connections
locally and to the rest of the city

= Healthy and well-designed socially-rented and private homes
that address a variety of needs, with as many homes on the



23.

24.

ground as possible
Successful local shops and community facilities
Greater social and economic opportunities

Regeneration Framework Preferred Master Plan Central Park modified

As set out in both the 12™ March 2012 and 21 August 2012 Cabinet reports
the preferred Master Plan (arrived at through a combination of residents
views and Cabinet consultation) was the modified Central Park option and

includes:

Creation of a new community heart, with a new village green in
the centre of Meggeson Avenue, a new local shopping facility
and a community focused café or pub

Traffic calming measure on Meggeson Avenue including re-
alignment around the ‘Village Green’

The redevelopment of all the blocks in the area and the
provision of 675 new homes. A range of open space
improvements including improving Frog’s Copse and Hidden
Pond, the creation of a new central Village Green

New local shops in a mixed use development in the centre in
association with the Village Green, including a new café/pub,
new shops, services and re-provided Moorlands Community
Centre on Townhill Way. (It is proposed that Moorlands
Community Centre will now remain and will not be replaced as
Site 35 is not being redeveloped as part of Phase 1)

Improved walking and cycling and transport connectivity
including: improved access to amenities at Midanbury and
improvements to pick up and drop off at the school and
community centre and improvements to encourage walking and
cycling (transport connectivity does not now include vehicular
access to either Midanbury at Cornwall Rd or Cutbush Lane)

A range of parking improvements through comprehensive
design as car parking is recognised as a contentious issue

A socio-economic framework containing a strategy for

improving access to employment and links to other city - wide
initiatives.

Total New Housing Provision in Townhill Park resulting from the
modified Central Park Option

The following details around new housing provision were proposed and
reported in the March 2012 Cabinet report (paragraph 34) as follows:

Housing Detail Numbers
Current Numbers of Homes in the 817*
Study

Number of Homes demolished 428

New homes built 675

Net Gain 247




25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

In the 12th March 2012 report this included provision of 380 affordable
homes. The 21%' August 2012 Cabinet report included the provision of 450
affordable homes.

Number does not include 222-252 Meggeson Avenue which is currently
being developed in Phase 2 of the Estate Regeneration programme.

Acknowledgement of Changes to the Master Plan as Development
progresses

In the 12" March 2012 Cabinet report it was acknowledged that there would
be changes as proposals developed: ‘Consideration of any development on
any of the sites is subject to further studies and consultations. Numbers are
currently being revised and are subject to further change once the technical
work has been completed.” (March 2012 paragraph 34).

Since the 12" March 2012 Cabinet report was approved and reported in the
press, a number of concerns have been raised by groups in the area and
residents both in Townhill Park and the surrounding area. These include:

* Moorlands Community Centre raised concern about their future
and the future of the pre-school running from the building

= Residents, around Cornwall Road and Litchfield Road, raised
strong objection to the idea of a road link from Townhill Park to
Cornwall Road at the junction with Litchfield Road

= Objections to the idea of opening up Cutbush Lane to vehicular
traffic

= Objections to the idea of building on the grassland west of
Hidden Pond (Site 25)

= Objections and concerns around building on Frog’s Copse and
a misunderstanding that the development site suggested is the
whole of Frog’s Copse rather than a small area.

It has been acknowledged that the Regeneration Framework documents
were not sufficiently clear in terms of explaining that further feasibility work
and consultation would be carried out before Master Plan ideas such as
those listed above in paragraph 25 become firm proposals.

The 12" March 2012 Cabinet report also set out the need to carry out
additional studies, the results of which would further inform the detail of the
proposals (March 2012 paragraph 42). These studies covering a Transport
Assessment, Ecology, Sustainable Urban Drainage and Energy were
approved and work is now being carried out on them during 2012. The result
of these studies will also inform the detail when initial Master Plan proposals
are brought forward for development.

Changes to Phase 1

The proposed phasing was considered in paragraphs 35 and 36 of the 12t
March 2012 Cabinet report. In the 215 August Cabinet report it was
proposed that there was a change to Phase 1 zones to comprise: Zones 1,
34, 35 and 33. Site 25 originally in Phase 1, subject to the completion of
certain studies, was re-allocated to Phase 3, while Site 33, which was in

10



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Phase 3, was proposed for inclusion in Phase 1.

This alteration was designed to produce an attractive, financially viable
development package for the construction industry and make a significant
impact on the regeneration of Townhill Park.

Following further consideration it is now proposed to withdraw Site 35, which
contains Moorlands Community Centre, from Phase 1. This is due to the
Community Centre security of tenure and difficulty in re-providing pre-school
places. ltis still considered that the remaining Phase 1 sites will be an
attractive development package. As detailed plans for Phase 1 develop, the
council will aim to encourage more units (delivered through imaginative
design) that will compensate for the loss of units on Site 35. If these cannot
all be absorbed in Phase 1 the intention is to endeavour to provide the
reminder in Phases 2 and 3, therefore maintaining the overall numbers.

Results of Public Consultations

In view of the proposed changes to Phase 1 and the issues raised by local
residents the 21% August 2012 Cabinet report set out plans for further public
consultations to be carried out over the next couple of months. These have
now been completed and included: detailed consultations with residents of
Phase 1, required under Section 105 of the 1985 Housing Act, an
information update to all residents both in and around Townhill Park and a
public consultation about the idea of the proposed new road connection from
Townhill Park to Cornwall Road at the junction with Litchfield Road.

Phase 1 Public Consultation (Section 105, 1985 Housing Act)

Specifically around the redevelopment of Phase 1, public consultations
commenced with a letter to each secure tenant and leaseholder setting out
the details of the consultation process and inviting written comment. Letters
were followed by a visit to all secure tenants by the Tenant Liaison Officers
(TLO’s) and who were able to speak to the majority of tenants. Residents
were also notified in their letter of four drop-in events (and in particular the
Phase 1 meetings held on the 11" and 15" September 2012) where they
could speak to officers on an individual basis and discuss any concerns or
aspirations they might have. The Phase 1 consultation period lasted for four
weeks with a further two weeks to consider any representations. This
consultation process, built on the extensive general consultation already
undertaken, while the Master Plan work was being developed. A report has
been produced, on the results of the recent consultations. (Appendix 2). In
addition to the letter a meeting has also been offered to those leaseholders
who live in their properties in Phase 1.

Phase One - Consultation Results

The majority of tenants interviewed in Phase 1 are in favour of the proposed
redevelopment of their homes. 74% of the 115 Council tenants accept the
redevelopment of their homes and would agree to move.

11



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

The TLO meetings with tenants raised a number of points which have been
considered:

= High number of tenants that would like to decant to Townhill
Park/Bitterne. Therefore the Council will need to monitor
during decant whether a problem arises with insufficient
property coming forward on ‘Homebid’. The main reasons for
wishing to stay in the area were the good schools, pre-schools,
family nearby and access to work.

= [nterest in the option to move back to Townhill Park, but

= realistic that they may change their minds in the future.
Residents appreciated the possibility of moving back to
Townhill, but realised that after a number of years living
elsewhere they might not wish to move

= Affordable Rent. The increase in rent to Affordable Rent levels
was not considered an issue with tenants who have been part
of the consultations as there is an expectation amongst them
that Council rents will increase anyway.

= Lack of interest in the wider Estate Regeneration
improvements. Tenants were not particularly interested in the
wider aspects of the regeneration of Townhill Park. This may
be related to the fact that they will be relocating.

No written representations were received from tenants.

No written representations were received from any of the 15 leaseholders. A
meeting has been offered to the 5 leaseholders who currently live in their
homes affected by Phase 1.

It is therefore proposed to move ahead with Phase 1. Specific details
regarding proposals for decanting, purchasing leaseholds, demolitions and
required finances are included this report.

4 Information Update Meetings

The 4 Information Update Meetings were held for all residents including
consultation on the proposed road link from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road
at the junction of Litchfield Road. In addition to the two Phase 1 meetings
held on the 11" and 15™ September 2012 two information update meetings
were held, on the 18" and 22" September 2012. Residents, both within
Townhill Park and those living in Southampton adjacent to Townhill Park
were invited. The purpose of these drop in meetings was to update people
on the Master Plan proposals and the work previously carried out. In
particular specific consultation was carried out concerning the proposed road
link from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road at the junction with Litchfield Road.

Results of the Four Consultation Meetings

36 residents attended the Phase 1 consultations. It is thought that the low
numbers are reflected in the good response that the TLO’s had with visiting
and talking to Phase 1 residents in their homes. The two wider consultation
meetings were well attended by a total of 300 residents. The full results of
the 4 consultation meetings are contained in a report to be found in Appendix
2.

12



40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

Results of the Four Consultation Meetings — Link Road

There was overwhelming opposition to the idea of a road connection/ Link
Road from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road. There has also been significant
objection to the idea of opening up Cutbush Lane to vehicular traffic. The
draft results of the Transport Assessment indicate that on technical grounds
there is no transport argument for either the Cornwall Road connection or the
opening of Cutbush Lane to traffic. Therefore, in view of this and the
overwhelming response against the proposed road link from Townhill Park to
Cornwall Road, and the objections to the opening up of Cutbush Lane it is
recommended that both ideas do not receive further consideration and are
not implemented. It is therefore proposed not to move ahead with these
plans as part of the project.

Frogs Copse and land west of Hidden Pond

Concern was expressed by some residents to the proposed redevelopment
of certain areas of open space e.g. open space to the west of Hidden Pond
(Zone 25) and the small area of Frog's Copse south of Northfield Road and
Old Farm Drive (Zone 19). There is no intention to develop a large area of
Frog’s Copse. These proposals are awaiting the outcome of further
ecological studies and are subject to much further review before any future
decision is made.

Moorlands Community Centre

It is proposed to remove Site 35, which contains Moorlands Community
Centre from Phase 1 as they have security of tenure and difficulty in re-
providing pre-school places. The Community Association Committee has
been informed.

Financial Assessment

The financial assessment, covering affordability and budgets, can be divided
into 2 distinct parts. One is the main regeneration activity involving the
demolition of existing dwellings (subject to the further appropriate prior
consultation), the provision of new dwellings and other improvement works.
The second concerns the provision of the new social housing and whether
this is provided by the Council or a Housing Association and what rent levels
are to be charged. The main change from the 16" April 2012 Cabinet report
(as outlined in the 21%* August 2012 Cabinet report) is that the new social
housing should be retained and managed in Council ownership.

The overall financial assessment of the redevelopment has been prepared
by the consultants (CBRE). The following paragraphs highlight the key
conclusions. It needs to be emphasised that the redevelopment costings are
high level and based on current regional cost indices and will need to be
updated on a regular basis and particularly when development briefs are
prepared for specific sites and phases.

The approved Regeneration Framework (March 2012) involves the
demolition of 380 HRA rented dwellings and also the acquisition and
subsequent demolition of a further 48 homes sold under the Right-To-Buy
(RTB). There is also the acquisition and subsequent demolition of 5 shop
premises, and a public house where the HRA is the freeholder. The gross

13



46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

cost over the 10 year regeneration period of all these items is currently
estimated at £11.8M. A more detailed analysis is provided in Appendix 1,
showing the initial assessment of when the spending will take place.

As part of the provision of 675 new homes, the current revised proposals
includes the provision of 450 new dwellings for letting at Affordable Rents
(80% of market rent), so that there is an increase in the level of affordable
housing by 70 dwellings. Investigations were carried out in regards to the
viability of reducing the social housing element to deliver rents at 70 per cent
of market rate in the remaining properties without increasing the cost of the
scheme. It was calculated that cutting the number of social homes to 380,
i.e. the figure originally proposed would only deliver rents at 77.5% market
rent and subsequently this proposal was not taken forward.

The affordability assessment assumes a capital receipt to the HRA of £2.6M
from the sale of the redevelopment land, leaving a net cost of approximately
£9.2M once the costs of preparing the sites for sale have been taken into
account. The GF capital programme has an uncommitted sum of £1.7M
available to support affordable housing. This funding can only be used to
help fund the costs of new affordable housing provision and it is
recommended that £1.3M is used as a contribution towards this cost. The
HRA business plan and capital programme has an uncommitted provision of
£20M to support Estate Regeneration activity. It is recommended that the
remaining £7.9M required for the regeneration is approved from this source,
leaving a balance of £12.1M to support future schemes.

The capital cost to the HRA has increased in comparison to the April 2012
figure due to the increased proportion of affordable housing.

General Fund Implications and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

Estate wide regeneration also has capital implications for the General Fund
(GF). These cover highway works, and improvements to open spaces. This
expenditure is estimated at £2.6M. There is currently no provision in the GF
capital programme to meet these costs. However, one of the sites to be sold
(part of Frog’s Copse) is held under GF powers so the capital receipt from
the sale of this site would accrue to the GF. This receipt is estimated by the
consultants to raise £0.28M and it is assumed that this will be applied
towards the GF funding of £2.6M reducing the net cost to £2.32M.

The redevelopment costings have also allowed for payment of the new
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This had been assessed using the
proposed fee structure that was out for consultation at the time the original
financial modelling took place. A provision of £1.7M was assumed based on
the proposed level of private sector housing. This meant that the Council
would potentially receive income from CIL of £1.4M from this redevelopment.
Recent revision to the CIL levy has now been published which, if adopted,
will result in a lower CIL figure for Townhill Park of £1.4M. The impact of this
will be assessed if confirmed by the Examination in Public. This represents
non ring fenced additional resources for the GF which could be used to fund
the type of infrastructure included in the Townhill Park redevelopment plans.
At this stage it is not possible to formally ring fence this CIL income for
funding the expenditure at Townhill Park because the CIL arrangements are

14



51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

still under discussion. However, the GF will need to fund net infrastructure
improvements estimated at £2.32M and, if it were possible to utilise the CIL
income, based on the current proposal, the net cost for the GF capital
programme would be reduced to £0.92M, as shown in Appendix 1.

In addition to the CIL payments, a broad assessment has been made of the
potential Section 106 developer contributions, which indicates that a site
specific transport contribution in the region of £0.4M could be sought. This
expenditure has been allowed for in the modelling work.

The new infrastructure is not expected to have any material impact on GF
revenue budgets.

Housing Revenue Account Implications

For the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) however, the net impact of the
regeneration has been assessed over the life of the 30 year HRA business
plan. This shows that the projected 30 year surplus would be reduced by
£23.9M, including the interest costs associated with the project.

The capital and revenue costs for the HRA associated with the regeneration
of Townhill Park are affordable within the context of the 30 year business
plan. It is recognised that past the 30 year lifespan of the HRA Business
Plan, the new council owned properties will generate income to the council
and potentially be less costly to maintain. This approach will also provide
sufficient funds to enable further estate regeneration projects across the city,
whilst recognising that the Townhill Park model will not be a ‘one-size fits all’
approach and different models will be needed for each estate, depending on
circumstances, and delivering the greatest benefits alongside value for money.

The revised proposals remain within the April 2012 total costs envelope for
the HRA of circa £33M, including £1.3M to be vired from an affordable
housing provision within the General Fund (GF). However, the financial
analysis has been based on a number of assumptions regarding costs and
income that will clearly need to be updated on a regular basis, particularly
when detailed development proposals are prepared for each phase and site.
Further reports will be made to Cabinet / Council as appropriate, if this
analysis shows that net costs to the HRA or GF have increased.

Options for the re-provision of social housing
Impact of Rent Levels due to Government Changes

The issue of what rent levels to charge is a significant one. In April 2002 the
Government introduced rent reforms for tenants of all social landlords, which
included local authorities and housing associations. Each property has a
“target rent” calculated. Most housing association rents have now reached
target rent but in the HRA, 2012/13 rent levels are still 5.5% below target.
The current government target is that by 2015 this shortfall will be made
good, meaning that rent increases will need to exceed inflation certainly until
that point. By the time the first new units in Townhill Park are completed, it is
anticipated that HRA rents on the properties to be replaced will have reached
their full target rent level.

15



57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

In October 2010 the Government announced the introduction of a new social
housing tenure called Affordable Rent as part of the Comprehensive
Spending Review. Affordable Rent is not subject to the national rent regime
but is subject to other rent controls that require a rent of no more than 80 per
cent of the local market rent. Affordable Rent applies to new build (and
some relets) of existing Housing Association owned social rented housing.
These homes continue to be let through the Council’s Homebid scheme. As
part of the proposals for Townhill Park properties developed for Affordable
Rents would have higher rents than target rents. The table below, which
uses 2011/12 data, compares the current average rents paid by tenants in
Townhill Park for different property types with the comparable rents a
Housing Association would charge for a similar new dwelling and also with
the new Affordable Rents:

Average Target rent | Affordable | % increase
Actual for new HA Rent of
Rents dwelling 2011/12 Affordable
2011/12 201112 (M) Rent over
target rent
£ per week | £ per week | £ per week %
1 Bed Flat 60.72 73.11 101.54 38.9%
2 Bed Flat 67.83 84.25 120.00 42.4%
2 Bed 75.48 89.69 144.00 60.6%
House
3 Bed 80.44 101.92 166.15 63.0%
House
A - Target rents for HRA dwellings would be 2.96% lower for flats
and 5% higher for houses.

Affordable Rent is part of the new funding regime to provide new social
housing development. Housing Associations (now known as Registered
Providers) have, from 2011, bid for resources to develop social housing
based on the fact that these developments would be at Affordable Rent. The
introduction of Affordable Rent tenure is a resourceful way of achieving more
with less, but the new rent levels are higher. In general terms this means
new clients having to pay significantly more for their accommodation than
existing clients.

Rent Assumptions Used in the Affordability Assessment and Impact on HRA

In April 2012 Cabinet favoured the proposal to re-provide through a Housing
Association, whereas the current proposal is to re-provide through the HRA
with new social housing remaining in Council/HRA ownership.

The April 2012 Cabinet report proposed a two tier system for new social
rented property. 50% of the total new stock was to be social housing with
50% of that being at Affordable Rent and 50% at subsidised target rent.

16



62.

63.

64.

65.

The current proposal is to provide as much social housing as the Council can
afford to purchase and that the rent for the properties should be at the same
affordable rate. Although this will mean that there will be no new equivalent
of target rent the new properties should have added advantages of being
better quality, of a modern standard and include sustainable energy
measures, so that they are cheaper to run for both tenants and the Council.
In addition the result of consultation suggests that tenants were unconcerned
by Affordable Rent levels and that there was an expectation that Council
rents would be going up to be equivalent to other social landlords and the
market. By retaining ownership, the Council has a modern asset as a return
for its outlay.

The revised affordability assessment has been prepared on the basis that all
of the social housing is provided by the Council, as part of the HRA.

The analysis assumes that the extra borrowing the HRA would need to
undertake to fund the new build programme has been repaid by the end of
the 30 year business plan at which point the new properties will be debt free.
After this the properties will generate an income. There is therefore a higher
long term annual surplus for the HRA under any new build option, rather than
giving the properties to a registered provider, but it takes longer than 30
years for there to be an increase in the cumulative surplus.

It is therefore proposed that all the new provision is provided by the Council,
as part of the HRA, and let at Affordable Rent. This will need to be the subject
of a specific approval from the Department for Communities and Local
Government/Homes and Communities Agency.

Other Financial Assumptions/Issues in the Financial Assessment

66.

67.

68.

69.

The financial assessment has assumed that there will be no grant from the
Homes and Communities Agency towards the social housing provision. This
is a prudent assumption as the new provision will take place after the current
HCA grant regime has finished and there is no information available about
what might replace it after 2015.

Similarly, no income has been assumed from the New Homes Bonus as
beyond 2014/15 this will come from formula grant. Whilst the Government
have indicated this funding is intended to be a permanent feature of the local
government finance system, given the current review of local government
financing, there is no certainty as to the mechanism and methodology by
which this will be calculated and distributed.

It needs to be emphasised that the redevelopment costings are based on
current regional cost indices and will need to be updated on a regular basis
and particularly when development briefs are prepared for specific sites and
phases. These updates will also include the impact of Section 106 costs,
final CIL arrangements and the availability of grant as these issues become
clearer.

It has also now been possible to undertake a detailed “zone by zone”
assessment of the master plan. This has shown that there are a few zones
where the redevelopment costs are comparatively high compared to the
number of new homes provided. As the detailed development briefs are
produced it would be sensible to review the detailed plans for these zones to

17



see if the financial position can be improved without compromising the
regeneration of the area.

Assessment of Delivery Options

70.

71.

72.

The Regeneration Framework looked at a range of delivery options,
principally by:
= Development agreement, usually with a private sector partner
and a Registered Social Landlord (RSL)
= Joint Venture with one or more private sector partners

= Direct Development: the Council acting as a developer and
undertaking all the work itself.

In summary the option of the Council acting as a developer would expose
the Council to considerable risks in an area that is not the Council’s area of
expertise. The Development Agreement is the route the Council has
adopted in previous schemes and was proposed in the April 2012 report for
Phase 1 The option of a Joint Venture needs further consideration,
particularly in light of the potential regeneration of further parts of the city, the
master planning for which was agreed by Cabinet in February 2012.

The proposed change to Townhill Park where the HRA will now provide the
new social housing offers the opportunity for the Council to review the most
effective means of procurement and delivery. Therefore the
recommendations in this report delegate responsibility for this in order that
the best method can be research and sourced.

Planning Strategy

73.

The consultant’s report recommended that the Council consider obtaining;
either outline planning consent for the whole project (Phases 1, 2 and 3) or
adoption of the Regeneration Framework as a Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD). However, as the project has progressed, it is now
considered that it is best to proceed by submitting a full planning application
for phase 1 of the project. Other technical reports will be required, including
the submission of a screening opinion to assess whether the impact of all of
the phases will require an Environmental Impact Assessment.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

74.

75.

The overall capital and revenue implications of the proposals have largely
been set out above. However, one of the principles agreed by Council for
developing the HRA business plan is that the debt outstanding on a dwelling
should be repaid from the proceeds of the sale when it is sold. This is not
possible at Townhill Park as there is no net capital receipt. The debt on
these dwellings will need to be repaid from the projected 30 year revenue
surplus, which is one of the reasons why the 30 year surplus is lower than
reported in the budget. This is a matter which needs the approval of Council.

In order to progress with phase 1 it is proposed that Council agree to the
capital expenditure involved in getting the sites in phase 1 ready for
development. These costs include demolition, tenant compensation,
leaseholder compensation and initial project management. It is therefore
recommended that capital expenditure of £3.9M is approved, in accordance

18



76.

77.

78.

79.

with Financial Procedure Rules. The phasing of the expenditure is £0.5M in
2012/13, £2.0M in 2013/14 and £1.4M in 2014/15.

It is also recommended that capital spending of up to a further £3.9M is
approved, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, on the purchase of
leasehold interests for properties in phases 2 and 3. The phasing of this
expenditure is difficult to predict but initial allocations of £0.5M in 2013/14,
£0.8Min 2014/15, £1.4M in 2015/16 and £1.2M in 2016/17 are proposed.
This budget includes a provision of circa £100,000 for legal fees and other
acquisition costs.

Professional fees relating to the development agreement, the procurement
process and for design and planning advice are provisionally estimated at
£200,000. It is recommended that a Townhill Park enabling project budget is
added to the HRA Capital Programme, funded by Direct Revenue Financing
(DRF) provisions of £200,000 that were included in the HR Business Plan
projections for these proposals. Approval to spend up to this sum on
professional fees is recommended, in accordance with Financial Procedure
Rules. The anticipated phasing of this expenditure is £60,000 in 2012/13,
£120,000 in 2013/14 and £20,000 in 2014/15.

The HRA will be required to incur further capital expenditure to acquire the
450 units of social housing that will be constructed. Provision for this
expenditure and the associated interest costs has been included in the 30
year HRA Business Plan projections for these proposals on the basis that it
will be incurred following construction. However, the timing is dependent on
the final details of the development agreement and will, therefore, be the
subject of future Cabinet/Council approvals. The average acquisition cost, at
2012 prices, based on the estimated build cost for the various property
types, is approximately £80,000 per unit, excluding professional fees (or
£87,200 per unit, including professional fees). The total build cost for 450
properties, at 2012 prices, is therefore estimated at £39.3M. However, the
HRA business plan builds in inflation at RPI+1%. The total cost built into the
model, including this inflation, is £47.7M. It is anticipated that £37.7M of this
figure will be funded by new borrowing, with the remainder being met from
surplus HRA funds. Provision has also been made for responsive and
programme repairs, starting from when the properties are finished, and for
capital expenditure, starting five years after they are finished.

The provision for acquiring social housing in Phase 1 has retained the cost of
the units to be provided on Site 35 even though Site 35 has been withdrawn
from Phase 1. This is because as plans to develop Phase 1 progress it is
aimed to deliver some of the units that would have been provided within the
remaining Phase 1 area. If these cannot all be absorbed in Phase 1 the
intention is to maximise opportunities to provide the remainder in Phases 2
and 3, therefore maintaining the overall total number of homes provided.

Property/Other

80.

81.

Within the area the Council owns are sites of the former Local Housing
Office and Moorlands Community Centre. Site 35 is not now in Phase 1 and
therefore the proposal to re-provide the space is no longer required.

Lettings of shops on Council estates are categorised as “social property”
which recognises that the prime purpose for holding this type of property and

19



82.

83.

84.

85.

the way in which it is managed, is to support the service and community.
The case for regeneration sets out the opportunities to provide modern retail
units to serve the future requirements of the community.

The commercial tenants will be compensated in accordance with statutory
valuation procedures which will be specific to each tenant. The Estates
Regeneration Team will produce and distribute information leaflets for
residential tenants and property owners which set out their statutory
compensation arrangements.

Consent to dispose of the sites, once a developer is secured, will require
Cabinet approval. The Council’s Strategic Services Partner, Capita, is acting
as the Council’s property advisor inputting into these projects.

Property Acquisition

This report seeks authority to acquire, where terms can be agreed, parcels of
land which it would be desirable to incorporate within the potential
regeneration sites now where Cabinet has given approval for consultation
with residents to ensure these opportunities are not missed. These
properties may be let out on a short term basis providing the Council with a
fairly modest rental income pending site redevelopment. Care would be
taken not to enter into any letting agreements that would result in the tenants
obtaining security of tenure.

Other — Procurement

The Council’s Contract Procedures Rules govern the Council’s procurement
of goods, services and works. These rules reflect European and UK Law.
Options for procurement which are compliant with the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules will be further investigated.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory Power to undertake the proposals in the report:

86.

87.

88.

89.

The Council has powers under the Housing Acts, Landlord and Tenant Acts
and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to undertake the estate
regeneration proposals. A power of general competence is also available
under section 1 of the Localism Act 2011, the exercise of which is subject to
any pre-commencement prohibitions or restrictions that may exist.

The Council also has powers under the Housing Acts 1985 and 1996, the
Land Compensation Act 1973 (as amended) and the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to agree and to undertake the decanting of
Council tenants to progress the scheme.

If approval is given in principle to the redevelopment of Townhill Park, it is
prudent to serve Initial Demolition Notices in the 3 Phases on existing secure
tenants in the affected areas. This will have the effect of releasing the
Council from its obligations under the Housing Act 1985 to complete sales in
respect of any existing or new Right to Buy (RTB) applications. The Initial
Demolition Notice therefore suspends all existing claims and any new ones
made will also be suspended.

In order to extinguish the RTB completely, in the 3 Phases, a Final
Demolition Notice (FDN) has to be served on any remaining secure tenants
within seven years of the service of the Initial Demolition Notice at which time

20



90.

the Council must either have purchased all land not in its ownership or have
concrete arrangements in place to purchase property which is not in its
ownership and the demolition must be within 24 months of the service of the
FDN.

Section 17 Housing Act 1985 permits the acquisition of land for housing
purposes by agreement, or with the authorisation of the Secretary of State,
compulsorily. With the consent of, and subject to any conditions imposed by
the Secretary of State, a local housing authority may compulsorily acquire
land for housing purposes notwithstanding the land may not be required for
those purposes within 10 years from that date. There are also powers of
acquisition in section 227 of the Town and Country Planning act 1990 to
acquire land by agreement where the land is required for planning purposes.

Other Legal Implications:

91.

It will be necessary to undertake appropriate impact assessments in relation
to the proposals within this report and particularly the proposed move to
Affordable Rents before a final decision is made.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

92.

The updated Housing Strategy 2011-15 and Housing Revenue Account
Business Plan 2011-2041 approved by Cabinet on 4™ July 2011 (and Council
on 13" July 2011) confirm estate regeneration as a key priority for the
Council. The proposals in this report will contribute towards the achievement
of these objectives.

21



AUTHOR: Name: @ Alan Denford Tel: | 023 80 3929
Sue Jones 023 80 3159

E-mail: | Sue.jones@southampton.qgov.uk
Alan.denford@southampton.gov.uk

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed
on-line

Appendices

1. Townhill Park capital expenditure and income — all phases

2. Townhill Park Regeneration Report of Consultations held in September 2012

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. Townhill Park Regeneration Framework

Integrated Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject/recommendations in the report require an Yes
Integrated Impact Assessment to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED:

22




Agenda ltem 8a

Appendix 1

0¢6 089°T- 009°C 00Z‘6 009°¢- 008‘TT
09¢ 0 09¢ 0 0 0
09¢ 0 09¢ 008 00S- 00€T
09¢ 0 09¢ 00S 00¢- 00s
ove- 009- 09¢ 00T 0 0ot
09¢ 0 09¢ (0[0)7 00Z- 00T'T
oce- 08s- 09¢ 008T 00¢- 000°C
09¢ 0 09¢ 00T 00¢- 00%'T
ot¢- 00s- 09¢ 006°T 00¢- 002°C
09¢ 0 09¢ 000°C 00S- 00SC
0007 0 09¢ 00S 0 00S
0007 0007 0007 0007 0003 0003
Aeano (71D Suipnppui)  ainupuadx3y Aepano |eyided Sampudx3
leaded 4919N  s3di19I9y 49 lexde) 49 V4H 13N sl1222y VK leuded
ViH [elol

soseyd [|e - swiodul pue ain}ipuadxo [elded jied |[Iyumo]L

[44
T¢
0¢
61
8T
LT
9T
ST
14"
€1

jelol
1¢0¢
0¢oc¢
610¢
810¢
LT0¢
910¢
ST0¢
v10¢
€10¢

¢10¢
Jeap



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8a

Appendix 2

’

—_

SOUTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL o

N
-
FUTURE

SOUTHAMPTON

Townhill Park Regeneration
Report of Consultations held in September 2012
Southampton City Council

Page 1 of 21



Townhill Park Regeneration
Report of Consultations held in September 2012

Background and Previous Public Consultations

Work on the Townhill Regeneration Framework took place between July and
January 2011-12. A series of public meetings were held during the study’s
development and local residents within the study area commented on and
helped to shape the proposals.

The results of those consultations are contained in the report ‘Community
Involvement Statement’ which has accompanied the Townhill Park reports to
Cabinet and is available to the public.

Background to the September 2012 Public Consultations

The September 2012 consultations were carried out, by Southampton City
Council, as part of the further development and evolution of the regeneration
project. The meetings were arranged with local residents to cover a range of
specific areas for consultation.

Process and Method of the Consultations

In August letters were sent to all residents, both in the study area and
adjacent updating them on the Master Plan approval process of the Council.
This included reference to public consultation meetings to which residents
would be invited.

A leaflet followed delivered to each address both in the study area and to SCC
residents who live adjacent to Townhill Park inviting them to the drop in
meetings on 18" and 22" September 2012 at Townhill Community Centre on
Meggeson Avenue.

Separate invitations were sent to residents whose addresses are in Phase 1
setting out the proposals in accordance with the requirements of Section 105
of the 1985 Housing Act, seeking their comments and in addition inviting them
to meetings on 11" and 15" September 2012 at the Townhill Community
Centre.

The meetings were organised and staffed by Council officers and included a
display of the Master Plan and various aspects of the regeneration proposals.

Visitors were encouraged to sign in and to fill in a questionnaire. The

questionnaire contained 4 statements about project (see Appendix 1 Tables 1-
3) and a section to leave additional comments.

Page 2 of 21



In addition visitors were given the opportunity to leave comments on a board
covering ‘General Comments’ and a board concerning the ‘Proposed Link
Road from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road at the junction of Litchfield Road.

Analysis of the Results of the Consultation

The information resulting from the meetings has been analysed by Council
officers and the results are contained in this report.

Information has been analysed according to each meeting. Comments were
received in a variety of ways:

» in the comments section of the questionnaire,

= on the ‘Proposed Link Road Board’ by ‘Post it’ note and

= on the ‘General Board’ by ‘Post It’ note

In order to analysed the vast array of comments they have been categorised
by type and fall into 13 categories. (See Appendix 2 Key to Type of
Comments).

Comments recorded do not relate to the number of people but the number of
comments collected under each category. Also since people could make
comments in a variety of places a person may have made the same
comments in more than one place. The number of comments under any
heading gives an indication of their importance to people at the time of
attending these meetings.

Categories 1-7 are based on the Townhill Park themes agreed by residents
working with the consultants on the Master Plan and categories 8-13 are
based around the additional main themes emerging from the comments

Phase 1 Statutory Consultation (Section 105 Housing Act 1985)

Prior to scheme approval for the redevelopment of Phase 1 the Council as
landlord must carry out statutory consultations with individual residents
affected by Phase 1 proposals for redevelopment. Consultation depends on
the points raised being considered before a decision made.

The consultation with Phase 1 residents has principally taken 3 forms:

= A letter to all Phase 1 SCC tenants and all leaseholders

» Visits by Tenant Liaison Officers to SCC Tenants homes

= |nvitation to all Phase 1 residents to attend 2 drop in sessions on the 1
and 15" of September 2012

= |nvitation to visit leaseholders who live in homes include in Phase 1

1th

The Phase 1 statutory consultations with tenants included a letter to all
tenants setting out the intention to redevelop their homes. In addition, and in
order that tenants are fully aware of the proposal, visits were carried out by
the Tenant Liaison Officers (TLO’s).

Page 3 of 21



Results of the TLO Visits

All 136 properties in Phase 1 were visited by the TLO’s and leafleted with
information. This included details of the 4 public consultations meetings to
which Phase 1 tenants were welcome to attend and also a telephone number
to ring to discuss any queries/information.

The TLO’s were able to speak in person to 90 tenants out of the 115 total of
Council tenants. Discussion with tenants includes the following topics:

What redevelopment means including ensuring that tenants realise this
includes demoilition and that they will have to move

How the process works; including examples of other Estate Regeneration
projects and what has happened with tenants

Likely timescales

Financial information including home loss and disturbance allowances
Options for moving including disturbance allowance or tailor-made removal
service

Priority points allocation and how to use Homebid

Any questions

The following figures give details of the TLO consultation.

Tenure Characteristics Number
Number of properties with Council tenants where information has 115
been posted/handed to tenants by the TLO'’s

Number of Council Voids 6
Number of Leaseholders 15
Total 136

Phase 1 TLO Consultation

Total Number of Council tenants seen | 88

and talked to about the
redevelopment by the TLO’s

Additional number of tenants who 2

attended the Phase 1 public
consultation

Total 90

Results of the face to face meetings

Total number of tenants that have 90

been visited by the TLO’s or attended
the Phase 1 consultation only

Number of tenants who do not agree | 3

with the proposal and do not want to
move

Page 4 of 21




Number of tenants that are unsure 2
about the proposal and moving

Number of tenants who have stated 85
that they are in agreement with the
redevelopment and would be
agreeable to move

Number of tenants who have received | 25
information but chosen not to make
contact with the TLO’s

74% of the 115 Council tenants accept the redevelopment of their homes and
would agree to move.

25 Council tenants have not discussed the proposals with the TLO’s. When
comparing these consultations with the same stage carried out at Weston,
these consultations have been fuller. Once the Weston redevelopment was
agreed and further TLO meetings were held with all tenants around the details
of the decanting only a small number were found who did not want to move.
This gives an indication that it is unlikely that many of the 25 who have not
contacted the TLO’s will have objections.

No written representations have been received from SCC tenants.

High number of tenants that would like to Decant to Townhill
Park/Bitterne

A high number of tenants visited (27 out of 90) wanted to decant within
Townhill Park or Bitterne. The desire to remain in the area is higher than in
previous Estate Regeneration TLO consultations. The main reasons given
were the good schools, pre-schools, family nearby and access to work.

The high number wishing to remain in the area during redevelopment may
pose problems in finding suitable decant accommodation which is dependent
on what becomes available through ‘Homebid’. The affect on Phases 2 and 3
may need early consideration.

Interest in the Option to Move back to Townhill Park

The chance to move back to Townhill was well received by tenants. Tenants
understood that this may take 3 or 4 years before the offer of a return can be
made. On the whole they did not expect to move back but were happy that
consideration is being given to this aspect.

Affordable Rent

The TLO’s explained the principle of Affordable Rent and that this would apply
to new build properties in Townhill Park. The TLO’s found that people have
an expectation that Council rents will be going up to be equivalent to other
social landlords and the market.

Page 5 of 21




10

11

12

13

Interest in the wider Estate Regeneration improvements

Tenants visited were not particularly interested in engaging or commenting on
the wider aspects of the Townhill Park improvements. The TLO’s were not
sure if this was because these tenants saw themselves as leaving the area for
a number of years and therefore it was not relevant to them.

Phase 1 Leaseholders

There are 15 leaseholders in Phase 1. Leaseholders have received a letter
informing them of the proposals and those who live in Townhill Park will be
offered a visit which are currently being organised. There has been no
response received from leaseholders to the letter sent to them.

A meeting has been offered to the 5 leaseholders who live in their homes
currently affected by the Phase 1 proposals. It is not practical to visit all
leaseholders as the remainder do not live in the address they own.

Phase 1 Public Consultation Meetings 11" and 15" September

Residents in Phase 1 were invited to attend 2 drop in meetings to view the
Master Plan proposals and to discuss aspects of Phase 1 with Council officers
including whether they were in favour of redevelopment of their home. In
addition their views were sought about the idea of the link road between
Townhill Park and Cornwall Road at the junction of Litchfield Road.

Results of the Phase 1 Public Consultation Meetings (11 and 15"
September)

Analysis of the Questionnaire 4 Statements (Phase 1 Meetings)

A total of 36 residents attended the meetings. The low number is possibly a
reflection of the success of the visits from the TLO officers to residents’ homes
and that residents felt that they had sufficient information already.

30 questionnaires were completed and Appendix 1 Table 1 shows that there
was majority support for all 4 areas questioned: the vision and physical
proposals being a benefit to the area and support for the road proposal and
proposals for the use and replacement of open space. There were few
negative responses, the greatest number being 8 not in favour of the road
connection and 2 not in favour of the open space statement.

Analysis of the Comments on the Questionnaire’s (Phase 1 Meetings)

Although 30 questionnaires were completed many of these did not contain
additional comments. A fuller analysis of the all comments received at the 4
meetings is contained in a later section of the report.

Page 6 of 21



Results of the Public Consultation Meetings on 18" and 22" September
2012

171 residents were recorded as attending the consultation of 18" September
2012 and 128 residents were recorded as attending the consultations of 22™
September 2012.

Analysis of the Questionnaires 4 Statements

171 questionnaires were received from the consultation on 18" September
2012 and 128 questionnaires from the meeting on 22" September 2012.

The result of the answers to the 4 statements is shown in Appendix 1 Tables 2
and 3. The results are very different from the Phase 1 meetings. As expected
there is little support for the proposed road link with 99 and 109 (198 total)
residents disagreeing with the proposal opposed to 8 and 23 (31 total) in
support.

Figures for the other statements are as follows:

= the vision benefiting the area 59 and 77 (136 total) agree with 50 and 19
(69 total) disagreeing.

= The physical proposals benefiting Townhill Park 60 and 61 (121 total)
agree with 45 and 36 (81 total) disagreeing

» The proposals for the use and replacement of open space being an
improvement 47 and 50 (97 total) agree and 61 and 49 (110) disagree.

Although the vision and the physical improvements received more support
than disagreement the results show a marginal lack of support for the
statement that the proposals will improve open space.

This is believed to be largely due to the opposition to development on Frog’s
Copse and also to some extent on the grassland west of Hidden Pond. The
proposal for development on these sites is still subject to further technical
study before any decision can be made whether to take these forward.

Analysis of the Comments on the Questionnaire’s

Many comments were received on the questionnaires from the meetings on
the 18" and 22" September 2012. An analysis of the comments received is
contained in a later section of the report. Again the majority of comments
received were against the ‘Proposed Link Road’ — 56 and 64 (120 total).

Analysis of Comments on the ‘Proposed Link Road Board’ 18" and 22
September 2012

The table below shows the results of the 112 comments posted on the
‘Proposed Link Road Board at the 2 meetings.

Page 7 of 21



15

Type of Sat 18™ Sept Sat 22"? Sept Total
Comment 2012 2012

Against the link 51 57 108
road

In favour of the 1 1
link road

Against opening | 2 2
Cutbush Lane

More parking at 1 1
Junior School

Total Number 112

Analysis of Comments on the ‘General Board’ 18" and 22" September

In order to achieve consistency all comments have been categorised under
the types of comments categorisation.

A full commentary on these is included later in the report. However, the
majority of comments received were around the ‘Proposed Link Road and
‘Opening up vehicular access to Cutbush Lane’.

14 and 17 (31 total) comments were received against the ‘Proposed Road
Link’ and 16 and 8, (24 total) comments against opening up Cutbush Lane to
vehicular traffic with only 1 in favour. The results again show that the vast
majority of comments are against either road proposal.

Local Residents View as Reflected in the Comments Received at all 4
Meetings

This section of the report gathers together all comments made by residents at
the 4 consultation meetings. The analysis of the ticks on the questionnaire
statements is a separate document

The analysis carried out is by type of comment and not by the number of
people who left a comment. The number and diversity of comments was
extensive and so they have been categorised by subject type in order to
facilitate analysis.

Comments have been sorted into the following type categories:

= 1-7 are based on the Townhill Park themes agreed by residents working
with the consultants on the Master Plan

= 8-13 are based around the additional main categories emerging from the
comments. Some of these would fall into 1-7 above but as 1-7 are general
where there are a number of specific types of comments they have been
given a separate category under 8-13 e.g. Frog’s Copse, Proposed road
link at Cornwall Road and Cutbush Lane.

Page 8 of 21




16

17

18

Where comments received on an issue were few in number the issue is noted,
but only further investigation with residents would establish whether the view
is more widely held.

A fantastic community heart accessible for all (1)

It was difficult to select comments which could clearly fall into this category.
Comments tended to be made in connection with shopping or proposals for
Meggeson Avenue. The few comments received about the shops did not
clearly show whether there was greater support for new shops and a new
community heart located in the proposed new location or keeping the shops
where they are currently. Also the few comments made about the new ‘village
green’, which would be a focal point of the new community heart were made
in the context of the traffic calming measures on Megesson Avenue.

Successful local shops and community facilities (2)

14 comments were received around this theme. A couple of people
suggested that there was no need for the new ‘village green’ which relates to
the community heart theme and one person suggested that it could be located
opposite the existing shops. A couple of comments related to the poor state
of the Ark pub and that it would be a good thing for it to be redeveloped and a
new shopping centre provided.

A few comments concerning the existing shops suggested that they were
expensive and opening hours restrictive. A comment asked how we would
ensure that new shops would be successful.

Only a couple of comments were received concerning the community centres.
One did not use Moorlands Community Centre and the other felt that Townhill
Community Centre was inadequate if Moorlands was not available.

One comment expressed concern that there were no activities for young
people in the area.

Healthy and well-designed socially rented and private homes that
address a variety of needs with as many homes ‘on the ground’ as
possible (3)

19 comments were received around the topic of housing. Several were in
support of providing new affordable housing. These could be linked to several
general comments that were made in support of the regeneration of the area.

A small number of comments asked for proposals for Rowlands Walk to be
carried out earlier in the programme.

Page 9 of 21



19

20

21

22

Several comments expressed concern about the proposed small
redevelopment site at the end of Roundhill Close either as a loss of garages
or providing increased local traffic.

A couple of comments request family accommodation to be located on the
ground floor with easy access to open space.

There is concern from a number of residents on the Midanbury boundary with
Townhill Park about the detail and height of new blocks.

A transformed park and wonderful local greens and play spaces (4)

20 comments were received around this theme. There is majority support for
improving green space and providing more facilities for children and young
people. However, residents do not want play areas outside their homes and
do not want them located near roads. There were also comments in support
of local wildlife and concerns that the proposals would adversely affect them.

Linked to open spaces are the sections on Frog’s Copse and Hidden Pond.

Greater social and economic opportunities (5)

Residents did not really make comment around this theme. There were
however, some concerns expressed around lack of facilities for young people
and anti social behaviour around play area and shops.

Meggeson Avenue a safe and attractive public space with improved
crossings (6)

10 comments were received concerning traffic calming and making Meggeson
Avenue an attractive public space. There was support for traffic calming, but
the impression from the comments is that a minimum treatment would satisfy.
It is likely with the limited information provided by the Master Plan that
residents do not have sufficient information to picture what traffic calming and
improvement measures would look like.

Again the idea of diverting Meggeson Avenue round the new ‘village green’
may require further work to test how people really feel about this idea and that
of the new community heart.

Better walking, cycling and public transport connections locally and to
the rest of the city (7)
12 comments were received around this topic. There was encouragement for

the importance of improving walking and for traffic calming in other roads in
addition to Meggeson Avenue. There was acknowledgement of the

Page 10 of 21



23

importance of the walking routes in the area and the connections they make
not only in Townhill Park but to areas round about e.g. Moorlands School,
Midanbury and Haskins.

The few comments received concerning the buses were around how the
service was sufficient but not reliable.

Proposed Link Road form Townhill Park to Cornwall Road and Litchfield
Road (8)

Number of Comments received on the Proposed
Link Road from Townhill Park to Cornwall Road

Comments For 0

Comments Against 269

The majority of residents attending the meetings are against the proposed
road link. In addition to comments made the Council received a petition on
17™ August 2012 signed by around 200 people and has also had numerous
letters of objection.

The comments against the proposed road are many and various and can be
summed up in the following e-mail received from a resident:

‘We understand that the regeneration of the Townhill Park Estate is an
important large scale project for the council and we largely support what you
are trying to achieve. However, we hope by now that you understand more
clearly just how opposed to the link road the residents of Midanbury are. To
summarise the points made by our petition, emails, letters, phone calls and
attendances at the two consultations:-

1/ the proposed new road is not needed to make the scheme viable, either
socially, financially or for any improvement in traffic flow.

2/ The new road is there only as a planning nicety especially given the fact
that within 200 metres of the proposed new road is Wakefield Road, which
currently does, and can continue to, carry traffic between Townhill Park and
Midanbury perfectly adequately.

3/ In addition to being a huge waste of public money, the new road will not
improve anything for Townhill Park residents nor anything for Midanbury
residents but only worsen the situation of anyone living anywhere near to the
new road.

4/ Three people are to forcibly lose their homes, against their wishes, to make

J 111

way for a new road which is just an architect’s “nice to have”. Would you like
to lose your home in this way?

5/ Increased volume of traffic — will become a “rat run”.

Page 11 of 21




24

25

6/ Increased danger to pedestrians, children, pets etc. This area is used a lot
by school children.

7/ Increased danger at several road junctions, especially at the top of
Litchfield Road. This is already a really dangerous road junction, and it does
not make sense to put more traffic into this junction. Bear in mind that Tesco
intend to develop the Castle pub and this is a further cause for concern about
this junction.

8/ Increased danger when the steep hill becomes icy. Litchfield Road is on the
north side of the hill, and when it is icy or snows this road becomes unusable.

9/ More traffic noise.

10/ More exhaust fumes.

11/ Reduced property prices

12/ Litchfield Road is not strong enough to support heavy traffic. There will be

problems with broken drains, and subsidence.’

Cutbush Lane opening up to traffic (9)

Number of Comments received on Cutbush Lane
opening up to vehicular traffic

Comments For 3

Comments Against 56

Those against the opening up of Cutbush Lane were very clear that it had
been closed to prevent it being used as a rat run. Residents commented that
when open it had been the scene of several accidents and residents cars
being damaged by careless driving.

There was support for keeping it as a pedestrian route linking to the walkway

network in the area, which provides safe and pleasant routes for school
children, walkers, cyclists and horse riders.

Frog’s Copse (Site 19) (10)

Site 19 Development on Frog’s Copse

Comments For 0

Comments Against 29

29 comments were received against the idea of developing on Frog’'s Copse.
The majority of those objecting to the proposal live in the area north and west
of Frog’s Copse. The main objections include those on the grounds of:

» Loss of wildlife and ecologically valuable habitat

= Loss of views and peace

Page 12 of 21




26

27

28

29

= |ncreased traffic on unsuitable roads

The Master Plan acknowledged that consideration of the idea of developing
on a small section of Frog’s Copse would be dependant on the outcome of
further ecological work and consultation. The ecological work is currently
underway and no decision will be made regarding Frog’s Copse until this
information is available and can be considered.

Hidden Pond (Site 25) (11)

15 comments were received about the development idea west of Hidden Pond
on Site 25. 13 comments were against the idea and 2 were pointing out that it
may not be possible for ecological and drainage reasons.

Those comments against were around either its loss as an open
space/ecological area, spoiling the views of adjacent housing and causing
unwanted increased traffic.

Improve parking (12)

18 comments were received concerning car parking. Most comments were
raising the concern that there is already insufficient parking and that it is felt
that the redevelopment will make matters worse. A comment was received
that there is no disabled parking.

The problems of parking around the school hub was raised.

Other (13)

48 comments fell into the general area as they were difficult to place in any

particular theme. They included the following:

=  Woodmill requires traffic improvement

» There is not sufficient information about the detail of the regeneration and
the timescales and it is taking too long

» There were several comments in support of the regeneration and others
saying that it benefited Townhill Park but not the surrounding areas or
private householders and several comments expressed concerns that
property would be devalued.

Analysis of where residents live who attended the consultations
From the data provided it was possible to carry out an analysis of where in the
local area residents who attended the consultations live. Within Townhill Park

it was possible to make a good assumption whether they were private or
Council tenants. This analysis is likely to contain a small degree of error, but

Page 13 of 21



30

31

does show where the majority of people attending the consultations live. See
Appendix 3 for the table showing the analysis of where people live.

It is estimated that 194 residents who attended the 2 wider consultation
meetings were from outside the Townhill area and of these 137 were from the
Midanbury area. This is not unexpected given the strength of feeling against
the proposed road link.

It is estimated that 141 residents attended the consultation meetings from
within the study area. The vast majority of the 36 residents attending the
Phase 1 meetings were SCC tenants (31 out of 36).

In the other 2 wider meetings it is estimated that 21 of the 29 and 16 out of 39
attending from within the Townhill study area were SCC tenants.

Although there has been a wide spread attendance at the 4 meetings it
appears that, apart from Phase 1, there is still an under-representation of SCC
tenants. However, there was support from SCC tenants for the wider aspects
of the Master Plan during the previous consultations carried out and contained
in the Community Involvement Statement in Appendix 1 of the Townhill Park
Regeneration Framework document.

Conclusions

Phase 1 Statutory Consultation

All tenants in Phase 1 have received the statutory information regarding the
redevelopment of their homes. In addition to this the majority have received a
visit or attended the consultation meetings and received information from
Council officers. Leaseholders have all received the required statutory
information and in addition those living in Phase 1 have been offered a visit.

The majority of SCC tenants have agreed to the Phase 1 redevelopment and
there have been no comments received from the leaseholders.

Wider Public Consultations 18" and 22"¢ September

The wider consultations were attended by a wide range of local residents.
The major focus was the issue of the proposed link road to Cornwall Road.
Other areas of interest were Frog’s Copse, Hidden Pond and opening up of
Cutbush Lane to vehicular traffic. The majority of comments received were
against the proposed link road to Cornwall Road and against the opening up
of Cutbush Lane to vehicular traffic.

Page 14 of 21



Although there is some concern over Frog’s Copse and Hidden Pond any
further decision on these areas is awaiting the outcome of the additional
studies including ecology which are still being undertaken.

There is support for improving green spaces and play, traffic calming and
improving cycling and walking.

A measure of general support was received for the regeneration of the area
and the provision of new affordable homes. However, there is concern that
redevelopment will not meet parking provision needs.

There was not strong opinion on the shopping proposals nor the idea of the

‘village green’ and these areas will require further consideration as the phases
in which they are proposed are considered in more detail.

Page 15 of 21



APPENDIX 1

Townhill Park Public Consultation

11 + 15 September 2012
(Proposed Phase 1 residents)

Strongly
agree

Agree

Tend to
agree

Total
Agree

Tend to
disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

Total
Disagree

No
response

Don't
Know

Total
Other

The vision for the future
will benefit the Townhill
Park community and
surrounding areas

16

10

27

The proposed physical
masterplan proposals
would benefit Townhill
Park

14

12

28

The proposal for the
new street connection
to Cornwall Road will
improve road links to
the wider area

11

22

The proposals for the
use and replacement of
open space will improve
the physical
environment

13

26

Table 1




APPENDIX 1

Townhill Park Consultation

18 September 2012

Strongly
agree

Agree

Tend to
agree

Total
Agree

Tend to
disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

Total
Disagree

No
response

Don't
Know

Total
Other

The vision for the
future will benefit
the Townhill Park
community and
surrounding areas

19

18

22

59

35

50

14

15

The proposed
physical
masterplan
proposals would
benefit Townhill
Park

20

17

23

60

10

28

45

16

19

The proposal for
the new street
connection to
Cornwall Road will
improve road links
to the wider area

13

23

85

99

The proposals for
the use and
replacement of
open space will
improve the
physical
environment

17

16

14

47

15

38

61

14

16

Table 2




Strongly
agree

Agree

Tend to
agree

Total
Agree

Tend to
disagree

Disagree

Strongly
disagree

Total
Disagree

No
response

Don't
Know

Total
Other

He vision for the
future will benefit
the Townhill Park
community and
surrounding areas

22

22

33

77

19

21

21

The proposed
physical
masterplan
proposals would
benefit Townhill
Park

14

23

24

61

21

36

20

20

The proposal for
the new street
connection to
Cornwall Road will
improve road links
to the wider area

10

10

89

109

The proposals for
the use and
replacement of
open space will
improve the
physical
environment

15

12

23

50

20

24

49

18

18




Appendix 2
Townhill Park Public Consultations

Key to Types of Comments Received
1-7 are based on the Townhill Park themes agreed by residents working with
the consultants on the Master Plan

8-13 are based around the additional main themes emerging from the
comments

1 A fantastic community heart accessible for all

2 Successful local shops and community facilities

3 Healthy and well-designed socially rented and private homes that
address a variety of needs with as many homes ‘on the ground’ as
possible

4 A transformed park and wonderful local greens and play spaces

5 Greater social and economic opportunities

6 Meggeson Avenue a safe and attractive public space with improved
crossings

7 Better walking, cycling and public transport connections locally and to

the rest of the city

8 Link Road form Townhill park to Cornwall Road and Litchfield Road

9 Cutbush Lane opening up to traffic

10 Frog’s Copse (Site 19)

11 Hidden Pond (Site 25)

12 Improve parking

13 Other




Appendix 3
Analysis of Areas where Residents live who attended the Townhill Park
Public Consultation

Phase 1 18" Sept 22"? Sept Totals
residents Residents Residents
In the Study | 35 50 56 141
Area
CornwallRd | 0 82 55 137
Area
Cutbush 1 23 6 30
Lane Area
Frog’s 0 11 11 22
Copse Area
Other 0 5 0 5

Total number of residents attending all the public meetings from the | 141
study area

Total number of residents attending all the public meetings from 194
outside the study area
Total 335

Analysis of Residents within the Study area by tenure

Phase 1 18" Sept 22" Sept
meetings meeting meeting
SCC tenants 31 21 16
Private tenants 1 0 0
Leaseholders 2 4 Total | 10 29 10 39
Total Total
Insufficient 2 19 29
information
Most likely private
owner/tenant
Totals 36 50 55







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8b

SUBJECT: IMPLEMENTATION OF THE NEW SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA

DATE:

8 NOVEMBER 2012

RECIPIENT: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

THIS IS NOT A DECISION PAPER

SUMMARY:

The Department for Education (DfE) has notified all local authorities of its intention to
reform school funding with effect from 2013-14. Schools will no longer receive their
funding under the previous local formula but instead funding will be based on a new
set of DfE defined factors, the objective of which is to create a more simple,
consistent and transparent funding system. The proposal is for the reforms to lead
to a national funding formula in the next Spending Review period, starting 2015-16
at the earliest.

BACKGROUND and BRIEFING DETAILS:

1.

Primary and Secondary schools currently receive an annual budget share calculated
using Southampton’s locally set Fair Funding Formula. The current local formula
contains 21 funding factors.

By April 2013, each Local Authority has to set a brand new formula based on a suite
of up to 12 allowable factors defined by the DfE. Following discussion with
Southampton’s Schools Forum a suite of ten factors are proposed for the new funding
formula as detailed in Appendix A.

The implementation of a new funding formula will inevitably lead to movements in
funding between schools. The recommendation by Southampton’s Schools Forum is
that the new model seeks to limit the movement of funds as much as possible to
avoid undue turbulence in funding. The new Southampton formula results in a ratio
of funding between Primary and Secondary schools of 1:1.33 which would mean that
an average Secondary School will be funded at 133% of an average Primary School.
The current national average ratio is 1:1.27.

Large reductions in individual schools funding will be limited by the DfE’s Minimum
Funding Guarantee which ensures a maximum loss of 1.5% per pupil. In order to
afford the cost of supporting those schools that would lose under the new system the
proposed formula scales back the amount any school would gain.

Southampton’s Schools Forum has been involved in the process of developing the
new formula, and the majority of their recommendations have been adopted. The
details of the proposed formula were sent to the Chair of Governors, Head teacher
and Finance Manager of all maintained schools and academies in the city on 21
September 2012 for consultation. The results of the consultation are summarised in
Appendix B.

Schools Forum met on 17" October 2012 and agreed the new formula as detailed in
Appendix A with two exceptions:

e Not agreed to fund £450,000 through the PFI factor.
e Not agreed to allocate any growth funding received to the PFI factor.



The Forum wished to register with Southampton City Council their understanding of
the difficulties in which they find themselves due to the Government cuts in grant
funding. They also wished to register the fact that they had not come to their
decisions easily and appreciated the fact that Southampton City Council was asking
the Forum to add a PFI factor amount of £450,000 and not the full amount of £1.2
million into the new funding formula model.

Notwithstanding the Forum recommending not to accept the amount of funding
allocated to the PFI factor, officers are nonetheless recommending approval as this
funding will go towards payment of the PFI affordability gap, thereby directly
contributing to Council savings targets in 2013-14.

RESOURCE/POLICY/FINANCIAL/LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

9.

10.

11.

Resource implications:

School budget shares are entirely funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant.
Policy implications:

The proposals set out in the report are consistent with the strategies and policy
objectives set out in the Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP).

Legal implications:

The School Finance (England) Regulations 2011 and the Education Act 2010-12
direct any changes made to the Fair Funding Formula used to determine school
budget shares.

Appendices/Supporting Information:

Appendix 1 Schools Funding Reform 2013-14
Appendix 2 Summary of consultation responses

Further Information Available Name: Alison Alexander

From:

Tel: 023 8083 4023
E-mail:  Alison.alexander@southampton.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 8b

Appendix 1

Appendix 1
New schools funding factors

Amounts shown below are allocations per pupil in each category.

All numbers quoted are indicative and based on 2012/13 levels of funding and
October 2011 data which will be updated before final allocations are made to
schools in March 2013.

Basic per-pupil entitlement
Primary: £2,627.96
Secondary: £4,096.89

The DfE guidance is that the majority of funding should be pupil led and not
driven by organisational factors such as the floor area of a school or numbers
of upper pay scale teachers employed.

The proposed funding formula will allocate 70% of funding via the basic per-
pupil entitlement.

Deprivation

The new funding system must have a deprivation factor. The proposed
formula replicates the current overall amounts allocated through Free School
Meals and IDACI (Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index) factors for
each sector.

Free School meals

Primary: £470.55

Secondary: £679.12

IDACI bands

Band IDACI IDACI Unit

score lower score Values
limit upper limit

1 0.2 0.25 0
2 0.25 0.3 0
3 0.3 0.4 £500
4 0.4 0.5 £800
5 0.5 0.6 £1,200
6 0.6 1.0 £1,500

It was recognised however that funding should target the most deprived
families and therefore funding is allocated for those children with a minimum
30% chance of coming from a deprived family, with the maximum level of
funding to those with a 60% chance and above as illustrated in the table
above.



Children Looked After
Primary: £679.12
Secondary: £679.12

There is currently no recognition within Southampton’s existing formula for
schools who have children looked after. The proposed formula includes an
allocation for each Child Looked After.

Lump sum
Primary & Secondary: £114,200.00

Currently schools receive a lump sum of £88,554 per Primary school and
£189,297 per Secondary school. The DfE are proposing a single lump sum
limited to a maximum of £200,000 per school. The new formula allocates a
lump sum based on overall funding currently allocated through this factor.

Prior Attainment
Primary: £847.33
Secondary: £2342.52

Currently schools receive funding within their budget shares for low cost/high
incidence SEN on the basis of prior attainment data. The proposed formula
continues to fund this at the same overall level for each sector but some
variances will occur as we are directed to use DfE supplied prior attainment
data.

English as an additional language
Primary: £679.91
Secondary: £679.91

The DfE recognise that pupils with English as an additional language often
require additional support. DfE evidence suggests that pupils require
additional support for up to 3 years from the point at which they enter
compulsory education. This factor targets funding at existing levels for each
sector.

Mobility
Primary: £679.12
Secondary: £679.12

The mobility factor allocates funds on the basis of the percentage of pupils at
each school who started in the last three academic years but did not start in
August or September (or January for Year 1).

Split Sites
This affects one Primary school in the city with a split site and is funded as a
lump sum of £28,452.

Rates
The DfE will continue to allow rates to be funded at the actual cost incurred by
schools.



Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Funding

This represents the schools contribution to the PFI affordability gap and has
been set to £450,000. The funding will be allocated to the three PFI schools,
who under the terms of their funding agreements are required to pass it back
to the Local Authority to help pay the annual PFI Unitary charge.

Growth funding — Headroom

The Schools Block for 2013-14 has been estimated using October 2011 pupil
data. In December the DfE will confirm final allocations based on October
2012 pupil data which is likely to result in an increase in the overall budget.

The majority of this funding will feed through the formula in terms of additional
pupil numbers at individual schools, or changes in other data such as IDACI
or Prior Attainment. However, once this has been completed any funds
remaining, know as “headroom”, will be allocated to the PFI factor in addition
to the £450,000 above.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 8b

Appendix 2
Appendix 2
Summary of consultation responses

Question 1 — Do you agree with the proposal to target deprivation at an IDACI (Income
Deprivation Affecting Children Index) level of 30% and above?

Number of Responses: 8

Answers: 100% Yes

Further Comments: Range could be set at 27% and above as students with similar
indices of poverty may miss out.

Question 2 — Do you agree that there should be provision made for a Children Looked
After factor?

Number of Responses: 8
Answers: 100% Yes
Further Comments: None

Question 3 — Do you agree that there should not be a split site factor within the new
formula?

Number of Responses: 8

Answers: 6 Yes. 2 No

Further Comments: Should not be an automatic right - but funding could target
unavoidable costs.

Detailed response from Highfield Primary in favour of split site factor.

Question 4 — Do you agree that there should be provision made for pupils who join a
school not at the start of the academic year?

Number of Responses: 8
Answers: 100% Yes
Further Comments: None

Question 5 — Do you agree that schools should make a contribution to the PFI
affordability gap?

Number of Responses: 8

Answers: 100% No

Further Comments: No - This has been a City Council issue and should remain so.

No - unfair to expect other schools to pick up the cost of poor decisions made in the past
No - Grossly unfair to top slice money directly from students

Question 6 — Do you agree with the proposal to scale back winners rather than limit all
gains to a set percentage?

Number of Responses: 8

Answers: 7 Yes. 1 No

Further Comments: No - seems unfair for schools to lose out on funding that they are
due.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: PROGRESS REPORT ON POST OFSTED ANNOUNCED
INSPECTION ACTION PLAN

DATE OF DECISION: 8 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES &
DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN'S SERVICES AND LEARNING

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
None
BRIEF SUMMARY

An ‘Announced’ inspection of Safeguarding and Children Looked After services by
OfSTED took place during 23 April to 4 May 2012. Their inspection report was
published by OfSTED on 13 June 2012. Key issues arising from the Inspection were
reported to Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee in July 2012.

The OfSTED report recommended that the Council work with its partners to address
17 areas for improvement to ensure the effectiveness of local safeguarding
arrangements and services to Children Looked After.

This report summarises progress in addressing the areas for improvement
recommended by OfSTED as a result of their Announced Inspection of Safeguarding
and Children Looked After services in Southampton. These are detailed in Appendix 1.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) That the Committee consider this report and note the progress made in
relation to delivering a stable and improving Safeguarding service, and
discuss the content of the Action Plan and identify any related issues or
concerns with the Cabinet Member.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To ensure a continued focus upon the areas of improvement identified by OfSTED
in their report on Southampton’s Safeguarding and Children Looked After services.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

2. The Action Plan attached at Appendix 1 sets out the action taken since the
OfSTED inspection of Safeguarding and Children Looked After services.
Fundamentally services will improve when we have a stable and permanent
workforce. The Council has made significant progress in recruiting competent and
able newly qualified social workers (NQSWs) following its proactive early
recruitment fair for Social Work graduates in July 2012.

3. The Chief Executive and Director of Children’s Services, with the support of the
Cabinet Member for Children’s Services, are working towards agreement on an
additional 20 posts which were confirmed on 19 October 2012. Confirmation of
this commitment from the Council will significantly improve the morale of staff in
Safeguarding services. This will also enable the service to phase out its high
level of dependency on Agency social workers while the Council continues to
recruit to vacancies. This will be achieved through a range of recruitment
strategies including a recruitment drive for experienced social workers following
resolution of the Terms and Conditions dispute and agreement of a retention



strategy. If this fails to provide the service with sufficient workforce stability the
Council will explore alternative strategies such as the targeted recruitment of
experienced social workers from overseas. Agreement of a related Retention
Strategy for the workforce will be completed during November 2012.

4. There is a workforce strategy in place to develop the new workers and there will
be joint working with health colleagues who have recruited additional newly
qualified health visitors. The team continue to move forward in improving services
for the City’s most vulnerable children at a time of significant financial difficulty.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

5. To not respond to the considered views of the national regulatory service for
inspecting the collective effectiveness of safeguarding and children looked after
services would potentially put the Local Authority and its partners at risk of failing
to meet the safeguarding needs of vulnerable local children and young people.
Not responding to areas for improvement identified by OfSTED would also have
significant reputational consequences for the council when its safeguarding
arrangements are next assessed by OfSTED.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

6. There are no capital implications as a direct result of this report.

7. In order to respond to a large number of the recommendations revenue resources
will be found within the existing Children’s Services and Learning budgets

Property/Other

8. None.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

Statutory Power to undertake the proposals in the report:

9. This report has not had the benefit of Legal Services input.
Other Legal Implications:

10. This report has not had the benefit of Legal Services input.
POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS
11. None.



AUTHOR: Name: | Felicity Budgen Tel: | 023 8083 3021
E-mail:  Felicity.budgensouthampton.gov.uk

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Post OfSTED Integrated Safeguarding Improvement Plan

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None

Integrated Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject/recommendations in the report require an No
Integrated Impact Assessment to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: All




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

€A 2102 Ue|d Uoioy uondadsul 1804 OO - 03LSIO uoldweyinog - | xipuaddy | ebed

woJj ajewnss
- spuejiepy 2102 19qWanoN / 1890100 ‘uoisiaiadns oy aoeds Bunpiom Jo Ajjigejreae
ur sJ00j}| Buunp ANai08uUUOD ssajaim Jo uolejuawa|dwi ssaiboid 0} Laquir ey Yum. paaibe sey (ainjoniisesu] 1SO) INS|pue Alijenb aaoidwi pue ABojouyosl 8010jxi0m

2dns 10} WoO1 ayewW 0} asenbg [feyp|iNY suQ iom 8y} pajsoo sey 10| 1SO 10} AJIAIIOBUUIOD SSBaJIM JO BSN Bjceud
pajuawajduwi 92U0 ANIQIXS]) HIOM JojealD) uoijelo|dxa Japun SpUBLBY Ul SSSISIIM! - JuawuouiAua Buppiom jo uswdoeaagleg

Ile 10y 141 | S1om 0} uabpng Ayolje4 “uolsl,
10} 00S'01L3| 01 Buinow aie poddns ssauisnqg Jidy) pue wea ] juswabeuely Bu

Appendix 1

‘Jow pue paypuspl

Spaau JuswdojaAsp Jjels Jo aouapIAg
‘uoIsIAIadnS SA08]J81 JO BOUSPIAT

*sajou uojsiaiadns ay} ybnoiyy

U880 Bk ,P|IYd By} JO AIOIS, JO SOUSPIAT

‘Bujures) uoisiniadns *UOIJUBAIBIUI YIOM [BI00S B} JO Ajlwey/piyd
1si[e1oads paniadas aney siabeuew jo Ajuofew oy | uo Joedwi 8y} JO UOIEN[eAd JO OUSPIAT
slabeuew [ENpIAIPUI 0} 3oBgPaa} douew.Iouad Jo Aousnbaiy asealoul ‘uolippe *21/80/€2 99e|d 300} Jipne uoisiniedng J8yjoue 0} uoisiaiadns auo woly
$92In0sal u] 1y || oreudoidde pue sse29e SiHYd UHM SWOOI Paledipap JuaIdNs Bunew uoisioap “SWINJIO} SNOLIBA Ul pajelalial pasjoel} Bulag suoljoe Jo 9ouUspIAg :apnjoul
namopr e |  Bunsixa Uiy Buiaey jo anssi ay} ‘ainjonsisesyu| ‘1abeueyy Joluas ybnoayy anjosay Ja)1aq pue aonoeld aAijoaljas ‘uolsiaiadns panoidwi yonyy uaaq aAeY uoIsiAIadNS 0} uolje|as Ul spiepuels pajoadxy 0} spiepuejs uoisiaiadns jo uoneolddy|(zz

(eonoeud jo abuajeyo alow
‘pIIyo 8y} uo snooy Jajeald) uoisiniadns Ayjenb
$90IN0sal ‘uopyeoldde jo Aoua)sisuod a1ndag “Jaquiaidas yiL *JaquiaAoN Buunp youne| 1oy pasiaap uaaq aney spiepuess| ybiy Jeinbai Aq papoddng “Aoljod uoisiaiedng
namopr e[ Bunsixs ulynpn|  uo Aoljod uoisiaiedng syl yum Buoje panssial 89 0} SpiepuUB)S uoisiAledng ‘uoisiniadns jo Ayjenb pue Aouanbaiy panoidwi yonyy uoisiaiadns yeup ‘sbuipuly pajiodal sey dnoib yse] | 8yl yim saldwod uoisiaiadns jo Aousnbai{ |1z

siebeuew
Aq uoisiatadns Anjenb ybiy Jejnbas Aq paioddns
s1 uaipjiyo psenbajes o0} yiom jo Ayjenb ay |

spJepuels aonoeld asineQ

padojenap Buleq spiepuels 99110eId| 99.(d Ul SWalsAs Ipne pue YO 1SNqos ainsug
‘€10z Atenuep 0} z |0z Joquiaoaq Buunp pajuawajdwi somewely sy} Juswa|dw
$90IN0Sal ‘€102 AJenuer pue g|0g JaquiadaQ Usamlag youne|-al e 1o} 10} payouNe| pue JaguiaAoN Ul 1IN1SD Aq JJo paubis aq o JUBWINO0P YIoMaLRl)
nemop e | Bunsixe uiyip| padojeasp aq |jim yiomawel) 8y “Z 102 JOqUISAON Jo pud Aq uonoe asijeuly sonjoeid aulfjuolj Jo Ajfenb ul juswanoidu) pasinai Butag Ajuaino Juswnooq (V) eouBINSSY ANEND 8y} asinsy (e |

‘2102 1aquaidas buunp saouaiajuod jjels buipsenbajes
Ay} 1e paydune| sem pue wea | juswabeuepy Buipsenbajes
Aq yjo paubis usaq sey swwelboid Juswdojorsp

pue Bujures| yeip ay] AIaAljop SAI088 8INSSE 0}

J9pJO Ul SIBUOISSIWWOD SE SJeD [BIO0S S,UdIp|IYd pue eyden
/wea) uawdojeaap 80Joiom 8y} usamiag diysuonejas

ay) Buibeuew pue eude) woij }IOoM Jo BUIUOISSILUWIOD By}
10} [9powW ay) pamalney “SHINI Pue HOS woly Buluses| pue

*sajjiunpoddo juswdojansp pue sasIinNod aoe|d ul sjuswabue.re Buluolssiwwod| sjuswalinbal aAlesiba] mau ‘sbuipuly g31SJ0O salesodiooul
Buipuaye Aq swweiboid Juswdo@asp pue Bujurel} sy} u abebus 0} paau [Im Juawdojanap aoioppom BuioB-uo ses|y “senuoud| siyl ‘€102 UdIBN-Z L0g Joquisides awwelboid juswdojanap) slom Aione)s jo abues
$980In0sal|ao10pi0m Buipsenfajes Jopim pue aie) [B100S 8y} SSOIO. JJBlS g "S9SIN0d. paaibe 0} paubije suoisioap Juawdo|aAap S2I0PIO. pue Buiues| sy} 1o} sanoud ay) paaiby "saiousiadwod 1IN} Y} ayeuapun 0} S pue aousadxa
nomop suepy| Bunsixe ulynan| uo aouepusiie pue ul uoledioiued Buuopuow aq |jim Jabeuely Joluas ay] | ‘pajuiodde sueondde aiqijeo ybiy jo Jaquinu Jueoyiubis Ao 1surebe 1sa) 0} Jo;id ,malaiejul dnoib, padonpodjul|  JUSIDINS SBY SDI0JIOM By} Jey) aInsus 01 |2'|L

‘premioy Buiob Jess jo uonusial
PUE JUSWHNIOBI dA0IWI PINOYS PUE JBGOIOQ Ul PAULIUOD
sem ajndsip SUONIPUOD PUE SWIA) [ED0] BY} JO UOIN|OSAY

‘Jyers Aouabe aonpay *9|qIsIA aiow si 9jijoud s,j1ouno) Ay uoydweyinos
*s)sod jueoen |[e o} jJuswjulodde anuuo) ‘g ainsua o} [epod qgol anysdweH ay} 0} apew sabueyn
2L0L/2L *a)Isgem jJuswiinioal DS Jo uswdojansp ainsua pue Ajoeded! ds auo snid 2102 AINP Y19 | uo pjay aiAe) JUsWNIOdY "22I0pI0M B}
|1ouno) diysiepes| pue Juswabeuew dn aay) 0} yoddns YH isie1oads a1n2es g SMSON Il 1890190 1s L€ Aq 1sod ul aq 0} pajulodde siasiom 0BlS 0} Uaye) UOIJo. AIBSS808U IS|IYM }I0M JO LUOIEBIO|E lom Aiojne)s jo abues
Aq Juswaalbe ‘Jfels uonoajold piyd paousiiadxa ulejal pue joelle 0} ABarelis uonualas |e100s 9| “om ay} jo Ayfelol ayy uo aoe(d ul Jybisiano 2Jes 10} Moj[e 0} siseq Aleiodwa} B UO JUBWYSI|eISd A0 1IN} Y} axeuapun 0} S pue aousladxs
uabpng Auoie4| 1oy enp wy" 130 pue Juswyinioay/Arejes pasodoid ayj Joj Juswaaibe aAlNdexg ¥eaS “|| JuswabeuBW }SNQO PUB Pajedo|[e SOSED UOI08}0d PIIyd ||| SiebeuewWw pUB SISXIOM [BIO0S [BUOIIPPE 10} PaINdas Buipund| JusIdNs yim ad1opiom Jusuewsad e aindag| L' |
piepuels
ybiy Ajjualsisuod e jo s| ualp|iyo pienbajes
W/ 139 0} yom [e1d0s jo Anjenb ayy Jeyy ainsug||
Ajo1eIpawiw
N3HATIHO ddvNHY34vS OL ¥HOM 40 ALITVNO
a|qisuodsal
1s0) Op 0} paau ||i}s @M Op JeyMm 1oedw) ssaiboid uonoy| 09y

uosiad pea

2102 4990190 52 :paepdn ise G UOISIaA 210z ueld uonay uonoadsul-1sod JDI/PAISIO uoldweyinos - | xipuaddy



£/ 2102 UBld ooy uofioadsul 1504 DDD - @3 LSIO uoiduweyinos - | xipuaddy

2 obeyd

“Juawdojanap
921A13S WOU| 0} Pasn a.e sjure|dwod woy

uses| | 1ey) pue id sjul
JO 91eME SpeW dJe SIS 9JIAI3S Jey) ainsug

Syuow aaiy} ull

uoleonpg
PUE y}jeaH woij
saAleuasaidal
PUE SIOSIADE 4O

$982Jn0sal
X8 UIYHM

siseq Ajyjuow e uo anunuod o} sypne Aouabe-inp

$59004d S$SBUISNG PUE UOIEIUSWINOOP

dnoib 2100 anoidwi 0} yJom sy} pawojul 9ABY sBuipuly PNy
Bujuueld Buesw

dnoun 8109 Jo Ajienb ay} ul Juswanoidwi Jo SOUSPIAS BWOS

-aoe(d Buiye)} sypne Aousbe-nnw Ajyjuop

sdnoJy 8109 pue

sued uopoajoid pjiyd jo ypne Kousbe-yny|[v'e

S9IOH Lenis

$82Jn0sal
Bunsixe UM

MaAa1 Japun Joedwi sy desy pue pasodoid se Buiurel; ay} Jaalieg

S8WO02)N0 pue ssad0id dnoib 8109 jo Ayjenb panoidw)

‘laquiade( pue JaquaAoN usamiaq wm_ocwmm hwctmn
JuBA8J31 O} paJaAllep 8 0} Bulures) dnoib 8100 Aousbe-nnjy «
414

JaqWIBAON PUE 2102 Joquialdes usamiag SIaMIOM [BI00S
Buipsenbajes |je o} paiaaliap aq o} Bujurel; dnois) 8109 «
'210z Jaquiardas yipg pue yiog uo siauomioeid Joluss pue
siabeuew Buipsenbajes (e 0} palaalep Bujurel; dnols) a810D.

sue|d uonoajoud pjiyod Jo Ipny|(e'e

$82Jn0sal
BulSIXa UIYIM

'2102 Jaqwiadaq | Uo anp si Jpne IxaN g
(a10INOAR) B19M HPNY ISI1} BU} JO S}NSal dy}) gOST 03 ssaiboid podal
pue ssao01d jo ypne Aouabe-ijnw e o Aued o} buipsenbajes jo pesH ‘2
LNTSD YBnouy) Jojuow o “}

Juswabebus pue souepuaiie dnois a109 paroidwi yonpy

1940190

104 A1eip $,X30 V1 Ul 10is & 196 0} |leydOIN PleuO( - SAIINOSXT
$81UD 8y} J8dW pInoys gOS1 40 Jleyd 8y pue enujuod

|m pue aoe|d uaye; sey Bujuresy dnois 8100 Aousbe-iynpy
*g0S1 a8y} ybnouyy papodas pue Buojuow aouewlopad
LINTSO Aq palojuow aq |jim siy | "usbpng Aiolja-

0} pue Jabeuew aul| J18Y} 0} Juds aq ||Im Adod v “Bunssw
dnoun 2109 e papusajie Jou sey oym Aouabe seuped e woiy
[eUOISS9J0.d YOBS 0] JUSS 8Q 0] ‘PasIAp udaq Sey Jala|

‘sbunespy
dnous 2109 puale 0} sanjigisuodsal
J1ay1 1N0 18S 0] SJuped Yiim S1edlunwiwo)

2€

‘SuoIUN SpeJ) PUB JJBIS YIM ISD

uiyum Aemuspun si seoinosal Joddns ssauisnq [euonippe Ayuapi o} jesodoid
uofjeynsuod e pue Ajuabin papaau si yoddns ssauisnq [euolippy '€
“a|qe|iene Ajjuaund

S| Jeym 0] 92inosal [euolippe aJinbal [im siy1 se sdnouy 8100 Buiobuo jo

REUTIRNEY ([T

‘LNISD ‘g0ST “DNSO :eouewopad siyy Buisiunnios seipoq
Jo abuel e 0} papodas pue wes ] Juswabeue|y Buipienbajes
Aq paionuow Aj@sojo Buteq s siy} uo ssaibold ‘s8duBIBuU0d
uonoalold PlIyY 1o} sluswabuelte Bulleyo 1us)sISUod pue

"90UB.8JU0D JjElS Je Jaquialdag yigg Uo payoune| sem

pue jjo paubis si ) ‘eoe(d uj s| Bulures) ‘pasibe yomiaded
w0y Yeup ul - padojansp ssaooid ssauisng maN
slauonoe.d Joluas Aq paireyd aq o} sdnoib 8100 [eniul ||y
sBunesw dnoib

9100 [eIjUI [[e S)NUIW 0} 80IN0Sa) Loddns ssaulsnq paindas

Bunyey ajou aouepuaye ‘sbunesw :sbujeaw

‘uwn|od
ssalboid ay} ul pajou se AJAlOE jo abuey
‘uoddns pue juswabebus |eluased pue

saounosal|Bunnuiw pue Buureyd ayy 0} uonejas ul pasiaep Buiaq si [esodoid puodas v g 8210ppiom d|gels B ylim aaoidull [[IM SHSIA PUB SUOIUSAISIUI pasinap sdnoib 8109 1o} Jew.o} Buipiodal mau dnoin 2109 Jo sjoadse |[e Jo aouepusle
namop ey  Bunsixe uiyian| uonejuawnoop dnols 8100 PasiAGI pue ssa90id SsauIsNg mau Jjo ubis 0 | ‘sjuawissasse BuipienBajes Jo Ayfenb pue ssaulewn ay]| PuE UOHEIUSWINDOP UoNDajoid PlIYO (I8 JO MalAs) pajsjdwio) AKouabe-nnw pue AjenBai ayy anoidwy|L'g
*9A1}08Yd S )l 4nsua o} uejd uonoasjoad
Py ay} dojanap pue Juswajdwi Asy) Jey)
pue salouabe Juensjal |je Jo Juswabebua aanoe
ay) Buipnjous ‘Ajieinbal pjay ase sdnoub s10)
'$90n0Sal
yels Bunsixe
woyy 81 G0
Ajerewixoidde
$1S00 ‘paulejurew *1aquiaidas Yigg uo adualajuod Jess buiprenbajes e e
woalsAs ay} Jo| o 0} pasu ||Im s|ge|ieAe way) Buidesy pue saoljod Buimainas ul siabeuepy pajesunwwod sem jonpoid ay} Jnoge uorewuoyu] “Buunp ino
uolnelisiuiwpe Buiprenbajes jo Juswabebua Buiobuo ay) Bulinsua pue waisAs ay) pajjol Buteq si 11 pue 10afoid sy} uo pea| o} payeubisep usaq
J0j poddng p3| Jo esn "jyeis pajeulwou pue wes | juswabeueyy Buipsenbajes sy ybnoiyy AABY WES) 80UBWIONSd PUB ADIj0d 8} WOJj SI8d10 OM |
1NoQe Jo 400 uonejuawalduil JO MAIAIBAO (80B(d Ul S| 8110814 PaLIUd) pIYD ‘2 ‘uwnine ay} ybnoay} SNUIUOI [|IM oM SIy} pue papeojdn
*sainpadold mau ay} jo Bunyelp pue uoisinal 10y ssado.id paaibe sainpasoid uaaq Apeaife aney sajljod jo Jaquinu y ‘unbaq Bujures, sainpadoid
UIQOLIOH (|19 8y} paquwia pue sjuawnoop Aoljod [enpiAipul JO uoisIAaI 8y} 83e|dwio) “ | od a1ep-0}-dn 0} SS800€ dARY JjElS |[B Jeyl ainsuj| pue Jybnog usaq sey |00} (4DD) 99110ld Paiuad Py Yy | ISS900E anoidw| (92
‘paliels Apealle Sey SlyL ‘) 9N Ued SUOKI9AS pue d|qels
*sajol Buipsenbajes Buiures; Sigyd Ajawi
ur yjeys Aq saiunpoddo Buiures) jo dn-aye} Buuojuopy g oM Jo} Bujurel} pue uononpul - yoam e Aep auo Bujurel} apiaoid A19081 JJE]S |[e pue ainpadoid Buipiodas
UIQOLIOH [I1D pue Ajjuaisisuod aouepinb ay} Buisn Buipiooas ayep o} dn pue ajeindoe pasoidwi yonpy M siy] paaibe usaqg sey Buurel) ende) wouy esodoid v UNM BUl| Ul S|HYd UO Papiodal SI YIoMm || |G'2

uosiad pea

elIRIOUOY ‘210z 1aquiada( Jo pus ayl Aq senss| sonoeid *saljuoyine Aiojeinbai jo suoneidadxa osunpy isod j9aw 0}
pajwi| Buipsenbajes 1oy diysiopes] Jo [9poW dAlRUIS)E U Ajjusp! 0} S9oIAIeS|  padojaaap aq [|Im sanss| 901joeId OIWaISAS 9S8 MOY MaIADI ‘sBuines ¢1-£102 MBIASY OJUNA YIM Ul
uabpng Auoia4| -awil 1o ‘Hes30 S,UBJP|IYD JO J0}03IIJ SY) YIM HJOM [|Im weas | Juswabeuepy Buipsenbajes 0} paau e s| 819y} }sod sy} Jo [emeIpyiMm ay) Buimojio4| oy} jo Led se umelpylim usaq aaey isod siy} Joj sesodold| Ul JexIop [e100S [ediould aleubisap/uloddy |y
a|qisuodsal
1s09 op 0} paau |11 M Op Jeym 10edw| ssaiboid uonoy| -0ay| "oN




£/ 2102 UBld ooy uofioadsul 1504 DDD - @3 LSIO uoiduweyinos - | xipuaddy

¢ obeyd

suuayiey BIne

$824n0sal
Bunsixe UIyNMm

eloe

1990300 |g Aq 1sod ul 8q 0} anp ale SISNION [B100S payiend) AimaN 91 |1V

JASY 0} yoeoudde

1e20] Jo Jjouaq Bunse| smoys (uoisiniedns pue suoleAIasgqo
‘soljojrod ,SMSON Buipnjour ‘siom jo sypne ybnoayy
paulwidiap) yiom jo Aurenb Buiobuo pue ssed SMSON

*901j0€4d JO SUOIBAIISAO
IAIpUl 8WOS
1nsadns aAnos|jal dnoun Ajyiuop
"SMaIABI

ssalboid ‘sue|d Bujuses)| ‘sbunesw Juswaalibe jJo uoley|ioeq
:apinoad [j1m Juawdojanag 99100

‘U8 "peIn 8yl Jo uona|dwod

10} papiwgns aq [Im sisAjeue aonoe.d e snid oljojliod

JASY 118y} {SaIpNIS SaljiWe PUB USIP|IYD Ul S1BOILISD
91eNpeID JASY Ng Sy} 40} paialsiBos 8q (M SMSON HHOM
[e1008 Jo 869)|0D 8] 0} papIeMIO) 8] ||IM S}NSal SSVd
“1IV4 10 SSYd Buipieme pieoq JASY [euoibai e Aq payiew
-SS010 ¢ [|IM Jey} yiom jo oljojuod e 8onpoud [im SMSON
olilylele)
AuD uoydwieyinog ounod yBIM Jo dis| ‘1ouno) AuD
ynowsuod ‘[1ouno) Ajunog aliysdweH usamiaq diysiauned
ul aAlfeIul [euolBal-gns B S| SiYyL "yosepy — ‘ideg usamieq
a0e|d Ul sI 9sIn09 Bulures) Alyluow aaisusaya.dwod

*(mojjoy Aew s1ay}0) Jeak S|y} 82UsSWWOD [|IM OYMm

SMSON | 91ep 0} sey DS "Joquialdag Ul SaousWWod
(3ASY) uawAhojdw3 jo sea\ papoddng pue passassy oy

sdoysyiom

yiom Aiojniess jo abues
1IN} 8y} 8yeuspun 0} S pue aoualadxs
JUBIOLYNS YJIM 9DJOPHIOM Jusuewad € 8In0ag

29

9onoeld uo
10edWw 8AIISOd SJeI}SUOWSP YOBQPSS) PUE UOIEN[EAS 8SIN0D
*a1ed auljuoij Jo Alfenb ur sjuswanoidw sjqeinseaw

‘pajuswajdwi

Ajani0aye si ueld ay) ainsus 0} pjay aie sbuneaw Ajyuop
*sjuswaiinbal sayuny

soaube pue ssaiboid syoel} Buneaw siy] uswdorsq

UolEpUSIWOaY HINI/HOS
UOlTEPUSWIWIOJaY Uoloadsu| palsjO
sisAleuy

spaaN Buiures] uoisiaig Buipienbajes

$82In0sal1 moys Buipiodas pue sueld ‘saji Jo SIpNe pue uond3}0Id PIIYD R Bujusea] eyde) pue juswdojaaaq 921040\ aadsu| (2102 yoren)
Juswdojenreqg *(IMJD) @ouabijjeu] 8210pp0p |  ‘sHsiA Aioinjess ‘sdnols) 8109 ‘uoisialedng Jo sypne Aljenp| ‘esed [e100S S,uaip|iyD woly siebeuew JOIUSS UsaMIaq play ue|d o16arelis uswdojoaaq 921010
90I0BHOM 10} aua) ay} Aq paisoy [apow puewaq pue Ajddng, ay) uo Bulures 1oy 18W aJe 9010ppoM| s sBuneaw juswdojaaag pue BuluseaT oibalels Aueueny 19U} WO} SUOIIEPUSLILIODS] $3Jel0diooul
auuayiey) einp|  Bunsixe ulyup| Ajddy ‘puewsp pue Ajddns yiom [e100s aininy 1o} [apow Bunsesalo dojpasq Jua.LINd 8y} Jo spaau juawdojanap pue Buiuies| ay] Jaquieldas yi0| pasijeulj ueld pasiney ue|d uawdojaaaq 8210pIopM BYL| 19
sabuajjeyd Bunsixa jo b

ay ul ueld uawdojanag 89100 3y} arepdn

+1/€10g 40} ssaooid Bunies 1eb6pnq
jusws|es *ssaiboud ul s| Ayoeded p\S [euonippe 10} UNOD UM SUl| Ul UOISIOBP SAINJSXT 10} dwi} ul padojonsp
106pnq ¢1/c1| Modas siemod pajebajep B pue paulluod usaq sey ssadoid Buines 196png a|doad aq 0} s|esodoid paulas ‘si0)0a.1( JO pieog Juswabeuepy lom Aiojness jo abues
+ $90IN0SaY ¥1/€102 40} awn ul s;esodoud Buyyels Jo |rejep asijeul) pue yeis Aousbe BunoA pue uaipjiyo 10} sawodIN0 Jajaq o} Buipes| a1ed 0} Jaded Aep\ 1s| @y} uo Bulpjing ‘pue ajqissod se nj 8y} ayeuapun 0} S pue aousliadxa
Bunsixg uo puads 8onpal ‘SaIoUBJEBA BJED [BIOOS BUJ|JUOI) } 0} Buipuny paaiby |eroos auiuoly jo Alenb pue Aousisisuod pasoidwi yonjy| UOOS Se SBIOUBDJEA B anunuo)| JUSIdINS Yiim 3210j10M Jusuewad e aindes|L'g
yoddns pajnis pue Ajpwin

UHM Padu uj 3SOY} PU. YSH e uaJp|Iyd d
0} pasuanadxa pue pauiel) ‘payijenb Aj
ale oym a9e|d uj a1 SI9YIOM [B190S Jud

oid
qenns
ons

1By} 0s ‘(S1OVd) swea) 1nod pue uonaajosd

ayy ui Jejnojed ui ‘Ayjigels b

jejs os

ealou|

* Sjure|dwod wouy

JuIBs| SUOSSa|, 8y} Ino Bumaes 1sni] s,uaip|iyD ay) pue Bunuaied sjelodion
‘wea} Juswabeuew Bujulea ] pue sadlAIBS S,ualp|iy) ‘wes) juswabeuew
a1e0 [e100g 0} Hodas Aauenb vy "siasn 901AI8S 0} d|ge|ieA. S| s8ssa00.d
S)ure|dwod JNOge UOIeW.oMU! Jey] 8INSUS 0 Juawalinbai SpIepuels

wnuwiuiw [euoneu ay} jo way) Buipuiwai siebeuew saoines pajenbal e

0} panss! 8q 0} UONONIISUI JusWABBUBW ¥ "SMBIARI JB SOUBPUSIE S]ed0APE
‘awoy e 1D Ol SIISIA 801A18S AOBOOADE ‘S8]ED0APE SE /1D Jap|o Bulures) :jo
sanqissod ay} Buipnjou; ‘paiapisuod Aj9AIOe aq 0} sjuswaAcidwl 80IAI8S
AoedoApe pue

sjureidwod noqe 11o1jdxa are Aay) ainsus 0} 10 0} Juas Buiaq sialle] MalnsY

ssouaseme pue a|joid
asiel 0} PamMaIAaI 8q 0} uoIsiAoId 801A18S A0ED0ADY JUBLIND.
‘2102 Joquialdag :SI9ABs| 818D PUE YD

uosiad pea

$90In0sal sjure|dwoo pue sjuawidwod abiawa Jey) suossa| Aq pawiojul AjBuiseasoul| |[e 0} Juas 8q 0] “99IAI8S A9BDOAPY a1 Uoijewojul Buipnjour
UIQOLIOH 1|  BuiisIxe Uyl ‘SJUSWIWIOD WOJ) SUOSSS| UIBd| PUB 8}e|j00 aM yoiym Ul Aem ay} anoidwi) sjuawdo|aAap 90IAI8S puUB PaA0Sal aJe sjure|dwo) ‘pajund-a. pue pajepdn usaq sey 1o|jes)| surejdwon.| sAemyled pue ssaooid syurejdwod asioland|L v
a|qisuodsal
1s09 op 0} paau |11 M Op Jeym 10edw| ssaiboid uonoy| -0ay| "oN




€A 2102 UB|d UOIIOY Uonoadsu 1s0d DO - A3 LSIO uoidwelnos - | xipuaddy

4 abed

sajeasawn
paiinbai ay} ulyNM uadxepapun aie 1aye
Pa)00]| UBIP|IYD O} S] Aioinjels jey) ainsuz

A1@reipawiw)

piepuels ybiy Ajjusisisuod e jo
SI uaIp|Iyo psenBajes o} 3IoM [e100S Jo Alenp,
- aA0qe AJolelpaLuL], Japun uonoe 99s|1°6

uabpng Anoie4

1 Buip.
3y} no Auied Ajaanoays o) siabeuew pue
Jje1S HI0M [190S pasualiadxa Jualoyns ale aJay L

S.|IOUN0D

syjuow xis uy

*190d Aq saded
suoido ybno.y}

‘uonn|os apim-alysdweH e

1e Bunjooy s yijeaH d1b6sjens "palojdxe Buiaq ase sainsesw
wialul J8Y1o Jo abuel y “uoisinoid Joj ajqisuodsal aq (|im
JUBJ0S SHN ‘PAUOISSILIWIOD S| SIY} §| °“UOIEHNSUOD 10} INO SI
SIY} pue Japiaoid JuaLIND B} YIM PaxyIom Sey SSOA Aaspul
2102 990 wouj uonejuswaldw J04 ‘Juswisaul jo [eaoidde
10} 1840100 Ul pJeog pue dnols) aAlNdax3 [ealul) DO

0] pajuasaid ag 0} 9SBO SSAUISNY PUB UOHEPUSWWOIDY “AINp!
Yig} uo (0DOE) siBuoISSILIWOY [BOIUND JO Pieog (dIHS)
ynowsyod pue 1ybin Jo ays| ‘aaysdwen ‘uoldweyinos

$S0ID YOIN

Bupsixe uIyum

686} 9} JO 0 UONOSS Jopun UOIEPOWWoooE Jo uoldo ay) ey ainsug “|

UIOP Y} JO }IOM By} 0} PaRIWIWOD sey Buisnoy Jo peay

\s1apjoyaxels e pue jow sey dnoib ABayess BuisnoH ay

paysi|qelsa “UOIIEpPUBWIWO023aY Jo uonejuswadw| "uoisiroid uoljeujwexs ay} 0} pue g0z AINe yiy uo preog 4o (HOVIN)
SSOA >mw_uc_|_ aq |IIM [edipaw «W__m_omum pusxeam 10} pesu pue puewsp mw_m_n_nm pue mainey yljeaH pjiyo pue >~_C‘_m~NE 01 Umwcmwml_n Joded m:o_wuo '8
‘Spuayaam Je 9|
AE 9Je ‘)Y nesse [enxas
Buipnjou; ‘asnqge Jo swiidIA ay) aie oym abe
10 s1eak g1 1apun ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyo jo
uoljeuIWEX? [BIIPAW BY) 10} SIl
-g|doad BunoA Jap|o 1o} uolepPOWWOodE Juspuadap!
‘uoljeseoqe||0d 91elodiod JSpIm Jo Led se | NTSD YIm, ‘}sejpealq pue pag ul 10| pue Aousbiaws Jo uoisiroid Juaind ay) Jsurebe pasu Jo [aA9]
Juawaaibe 1o} sjesodoid dojansp 0} paysiiqeisa usaq sey dnoib Buppom v “g| ou pue JaAes| aed auo Ajuo sem aiay} ‘Jaquialdas yig Jo Sy |ayl ssasse 0} doysyiom ay} o} papiaoid aq ||Im Blep puai} 8y}
“inoineyaq Buibusjieyo *sejouabe |le wouj woddns jo abesoed ayodsaq| Jo sisAjeuy UOIOe [BIPSWAI PUB S8|9B)S]O JO ‘s[eob paleys *sanss| aonoeid pue uoisiroid ul sdeb
yum ajdoad BunoA jo spasu ay) 0} asuodsai ur saoeId/UOISIACAd IsIeI0ads| B yim YOWA 8yl Aq Buisnoy oiyioads palajjo usaq sey spaau Jo uoneayuUap! 8y} pue Bulpuelsiapun [ennw ajowoid| Ayjuspl o} Japio i S1apIAcid 10}0as Asejunjon
$980Inosal| Jo Juswdojonsp sy} 0} USAIB 8q 0} UONBISPISUOD "PAISPISUOD SI 1Oy ualp|iy) [ xa|dwod A1aa yum uosiad BunoA auo Apeauly ‘dnoib ABajeng| o} 1ogqoioQ pugg uo aoe(d axe) 0} paaibe usaq sey doysyiom PUE JJun SSBUSS3|SWOY Y}IM UOI}BIOGE||0D

uj $/090j04d pue 8o119kId JUBLIND MBIABY L'/

uoisinoad Aouabiawa Buipnjoul

‘way} 10} S|qe|ieA. S] UOHIEPOWIWODJE J|qelns
juaIoINs ey} pue passasse A|n} ase ajdoad
BunoA pue uaipjiyd ssajdWOY JO Spasdu Ay |

121SGaM BNID

(vaLl) preog
awuweibold
abueyn

+ Juswaes
190pnq 1/
+ $82JN0sal
Bunsixe uym

‘puN4 [BUOIBWIOJSUBI] WOJ) 82IN0sa Juswabeuew 1osfoid

0] M3IA B YIm pieog awweiboid abuey) [10uno o} [opow axe| "Swea)
SS0IOE SI9XIOM [B100S paljifenb Jo asn aAnoaye Bunjew pue ajeudoidde

Sse Malnal $s9001d Ny Buisn sisuped pue swes) Jjels YiIm Uole}nsuod
Ul SeDIAISS Bul| JuoJ) AIBSS998U SE 2INBIJU0IBI PUB MBIASI O} BNUNUOD WIS}
Hoys (921104 ‘B9) serouabe sayio pue BuisnoH ‘(agnd ‘|oul) yyesH ‘ere)
[100S YNPY WOJj [IBI8P JejiwIS Yim Jey 0s ssaiboid AejianQ :wis) wnipapy

UaJP|IYo S|qEIBUINA
Jo uonoajoid pue poddns 81noss pue ajes ‘s|qeurelsng

2102 Jequisidas yiL |

uo Joddns s1019811q JO pieog Juswabeueyy paaiedal Buirey
UOIJEIBPISUOD Japun sI pue padojanap Uaaq ey suonouny
,01doad, s,[10uno? 8y} Jo ubisepal 891AI8S dAISUsyaIdwod v

a|qisuodsal
uosiad pea

1509

Op 0] paau ||iS am Op 1eym

1oedw)

ssaiboid

uopnoy | -9ey




£/ 2102 UBld ooy uofioadsul 1504 DDD - @3 LSIO uoiduweyinos - | xipuaddy

G abeyd

2102 Jequwaoa( Joj pauued ypne Jayuny
v ‘suejd Aemyyed Ayjenb ybiy ‘syeudoidde ‘siareo/saljiwey vy} pue ajdoad
BunoA ‘uaip|iyo yum diysiauped ul ‘dojenap o} sjuswalinbal Aiolnyels ayl ‘Re@ wea] Je paiapisuod
UO UONONJISUI JUSWSBEUEL B Y)IM PaNSS! 8q [|IM SISYIOAN [BIOO0S |y "SWea) aJom s|esodoud 1jesq "UONEIUSINIOP UB|d PUB JUSWSSSSY
SS0IOB SIBYIOM [B100S paljijenb jo asn aAnoaye bunew pue ajeudoidde spaapN skemyied Buimainel s wea | Juswabeuepy ‘Aressadau
$90IN0sal se malnal ssed0id N3 Buisn sisulied pue swea] JJels Ylim uoe)nsuod 's1anea| a1eo| skemuyied ayl " INOS 0} Auaienb payiodal aq o} ‘isnbny yig se Buiures) Buipnjoul suonoe [elpawal
UIQOLIOH 1D X3 UIYNA ul sedinias BuipsenBajes aul| Juosy Aressadau se ainblyuodal pue malAsY | |[e Joj aoed ul ase suejd skemyied aaoaye pue Alienb poos)| 1no paluIed Sueld PUe JUSWISSaSSY Spaau sAkemuyied Jo Ipny| Aq pamojjo) paiinbas sonoe.d Juannd Jo Ipny| L2t
aouapuadapul
0] uonisuel} 8y} pue s|jiys aoduapuadapul
J0 uawdojanap ayy Buipnjoul ‘sannoalqo
119y} Buiaaiyoe ul sianes] aled poddns Ajaanosye
pue oy1oads pue anisuayaidwod ale Aay) 1eyy
‘sianea] aled ||e 10} doe|d uj ase suejd Aemyled|zL
Koeo0ApY INOGE BUljUo
19K BuiyioN “xdse-Aoljod-sjure|dwoo/saioljod/sidAo/siared
-pue-sjuaied/b10 uojdweyinosbunoA mmmy/:diy
$90IN0sa) ‘uojdweyinos YInoA pue ¥00gade4 [1ouUno Te uojdweynog Bunox
sineq wi]| Bunsixa ulyim a1e) ul ajdoad BunoA uo pajsod uonewsojul AoeooApE pue sjure|dwoD a|qissaooe Ajises s| Joddns AoeooApy uo punoy aq ued Ad1j04 sjurejdwod ay} INoge uoewIou| Aujgissaodoe auljuo anoidwi|g ||
‘SI9ABS| 9IBD PUE JO}e Payoo|
UBJPIYD 10} 8D1AISS AOBOOADE [BD0] B 91N09S
0} ss9901d Japua} aAIadWwod ay) aleriu|
‘uoieol1oads ‘uoneolyoads
leuy dojanap pue paiinbai saoinies adoog
uo Buipuadap *90IAI9S
$90IN0Sal 'S|Pa PuE UONEYNSU0d| AOED0APE UE 4O} SS8901d JapuUs) SANSdWOD
Bunsixa woly 10} pateys aq [|Im pue Wwioy Jelp ul si uoneoyioads ay | e ybnoayy ob o} a|qejieae Buipuny ayy Ajue|n
pasnuoud aq 'smalnal A10INjels S,plIyo Y} BIA ‘Swiea] }Iom [B100s yBnouyl panquisip ase
0] ‘aisymasie 90IA19S AOBOOADE UE WOJ} J1jUST PINOM Ja}je payoo| uaip|iyd| sio|yes| siwi oN ayl Buunsus Aq pue jo|yes|
ELIINER | Jaylaym Japisuod s1a00 Buimainay juspuadapul 8yl | sjureidwod ay} ybnoiyy 891A18s ay} aSILaAPY
Jejiwis uo 90INIBS ‘sjoljes) sjurejdwod ay} ybnoiyl Ino juss Buiaq si o1AI8S "90IMBS
paseq edygz3| AoeooApe pasn Jajlaq pue aAloEIIE 20w B Ul kauow Ioj anfea Buidojanap "sseo0ud Koeo0ApE SHWIT ON SY} SS900E 0} JaquIinu JOBIUOD By | sjwi oN 8y} buiseyoind jods ybnoayy
Reyg weg| o1 Buisu L3 10 51509 pue 8doos siapiroid [enusjod yum asojdxe 0} BuluoissIWWOD sjurejdwo jnoqge uolewuojul sjeudoidde aney y19 Iy ‘pPaWLIUOD Udaq Ssey Buipuny Jo Junowe ay] | S[enplAIpul o) AOBOOADPE BuISSeo0E anNuUuoD |2 ||
-aleo ul a|doad
BunoA pue uaip|iyo |[e 0} }a|es| AOBD0APE U} PUE J3|JBS| SJUSWILLOD puE *sanbes| |00 BuluolssIWWOD Aq pamainal
sure|dwod ‘syuawidwod ay} anquisip Jyels poddns pue ‘sisuonijoeid Buraq si uoisinoid 891A18S A0BDOAPY JUSLIND BY} ‘UOIPPE U]
$82In0sal Ile 2102 Jequialdes woi4 ‘sbunsaw mainal Aiolnjels Je — AoeooApe *210z2 Jequialdag 10 e 0} Juas aq 0} ‘991AIaS AoBJ0APY BJ 901M8s AoBOOApE
ulqoloH (19| Bunsixa ulynm dn aye} 0} sanunpoddo ajdoad BunoA/uaip|iyd Yium ssnasip 0} SOY| pulseasoul sjuswdojanap 99IAI9S pue paAjosal ale sjureidwo)| uorewlojul Buipnioul ‘pajepdn usaq sey jajyes| siureldwon| pue swuredwod ajowold pue jo ajyoid asrey|L ||
ELITVES
Aoeoonpe ay) sse29e 0} pajqeus aie pue ssadoid
Sjure|dwod ay} JO dJEME a1e J3)Je Pa)OO] UaIPIyD |||
syjuow day |
sjuswalinbai S|YVd Jo aBpajmous| pue s||iys JuBAS|l dABY
JJElS MBU PUE JUSLIND |[B 2INSUS 0} S1OVd
\ure.) Juabin op 0] paaibe sey Jaulel] S|HYd
sjuawalinbai jo Buipuelsiapun paeys apim adIAISS
pue ‘,Bununoo, JUS]SISUOD SINSUS O] SUONIUIEP S1EJIUNWIWOD
pue Ajuuejo 0} payse} usaq aney dnois) sousuewsad
Hoday SHSIA V1D 0} asuodsai ul suonoe
|eipawal jo ssaiboid ainsus o) Bunssw aouewiopad e
10} ApyBiupio) skemyied yum sjeaw (y10) 1obeue|y 8o1nes
S1OVd Ul pajieu Buieq si walshs
‘psemuio} sueld aAup 0} doe|d ul si AJiAIOe Jipne aseo Jeinbay MOJPHOM OO[INQO By} JO 8sn pue skemyyed ul pajjen} buiaq
‘Burodas parewoine SI 1oayspeaids € ‘awiueaw ay) u| "9|npow SiYyd [BUOHIPPE
pue 300[inQ Jo asn Ja}aq ybnoiy} papoddns ‘uoisiaiadns [enplalpul pue ue Buiseyoind INoyum a|qe|ieA. AJUaiInNd JouU S| SIY} ‘IOASMOH
Bunesw souewlopad wes) Je usia Aiojnjels yim aoueldwod jo BuLioyuon ' ‘Buiiodas uondaoxa ueyy Jayies Buiuueld aAoeo.d B|qeus 0}
‘ued a1ed ay} ssaiboid ‘wea | ereq ay} woij palsanbai usaq sey walsAs Jopulwal ‘[oA9] Wea} pue [enplAlpul e aouewIouad
$92IN0Sal 0] SI SYISIA 8} JO Wie ay} aouls ‘aoe|d ul aJe sue|d a1eo Jey} ainsug g ‘palinbal Se 9SIAS PUB MBIARI *195}40M [B100S/WEa) AQ [9A9] P|IYD & douewIoyad anoidwi 0} pasn Aj9A0a)e pue ajeinooe
UIQOLIOH 1|  BulisIxe Uyl SUOI}O® JUaLIND JayuN} Paquia pue anunuod o] “|| Ajlenuiuod 0} UIqoLIoH || pue SIABQ W] usamlaq anbofelq Bureoipul wea | ereq woij aoe|d Ul mou suodai Apjeam-g S| uoljewlojul juswabeuew Jey) ainsug (L QL
alqisuodsas SO Op 0} pPaau |[1}S 9m Op }el oedw ssaibou uonoy| -o8y| o
uosiad pesq 1s0D P 01 p 111 P 1eym ¥ I d nay ] N




€A 2102 Ue|d Uoioy uondadsul 1804 OO - 03LSIO uoldweyinog - | xipuaddy 9 abed

qelse uaaq Apjuadal aney
|auBd 24D 0] SAIBUIS)YY PUE S82IN0SSY PuE [dued Buluue|d
a1en ‘ypne Buiobuo pue uoisiaadns ybnoayy pasoyuow

S| uonjeluswa|dwl Ue|d a1eD “"PaMaIAdI 8q 0} Spaau Bujures).
SIdvd wea | skemuyied "jels Aousbe pue mau Jo Jaquinu sy}
0} anp abus)[eyd Jueoliubis e si iy} ;21 0g J9qUISAON JO pud

“uoionpul au} Aq s8INPON SIHVd dO PUB V10 ABp-jley 8y} auop aney
jo ped }Jels Mau pue JuaLnd || ainsua 0} Bulules) ayodsaq JOAISP O}
se uay} | Jeak s1abeuepy 10vd Pue 1y| yum Buiyiom siisurel] SiHYd aul
NGL3 =leviom ‘UOIPPE Ul 2102 9@ / AON/ARQ UBNOIL) SISO [B100S pue
|etoos Jad slauoljoeld Jojuag ‘siebeueyy wes] 1o} Buiurel) feuonippe
3 "paulljuod 8q ‘sueld a1e9 Jo ssaulawi} pue Ajjenb ul sjuswaoidwl Joyuny ssasse ybnouy; pue ‘ypne ybnoiy) passaippe Buleq ale senss|
0} S}1S02 S|HYd 0} Jipne Jayuny no Aued pue swwelboid Buiuresy payijuapl 839|dwod 0] « (+ %06) ybiy surewal Buipiodal pue Ajijenp "uolepudaWWoIaY 6 YiIMm ‘isnbny ‘Aiessaoau se Bulurel} pue
ulgoioH 19| Awoud Bulurel | SIHVd 01U JUSWNJOP UB|d SJBD DIU0J}I8[e MAU 8y} paquiTe SuUB|d 91BD pasLoyine yim 19 Jo abejusasad ybiy oy | /L paje|dwod podas pue isnbny ul paypne sue|d aied 9| UONOE [elpawal wiojul 0} sued aieod Jo Jpny|L'GlL
“paiojuow
Apsngou s) sueld a1ed ay) jo uonejuswajdwi
3y} Jey} pue wajsAs Buipiodai d1U0IO3|D
$80IN0S8l 9} Uo pPapJ0daJ ale asaY) Jey) ‘SaWooNo
Buisixa UIyIM papuajul Jeajd yum ayoads ase sueyd aien

‘pauinbal Se PauoISSIWIW0d

aq [|Im SjuaWwissasse }sijeroads 1o aiyoads ‘uonippe

‘payepdn sI JI MOY pue uaym pue palinbal S| JUBWSSASSY 8100 U] "Woy | Ued MaIAsY D au} Jo uons|dwod ybnoloy.

B UBYM UO UONEDNLIEIO 9pNjoul [m 8say | “sBulyeliq wea) Je payoune| pue aunbai 1M Sy} ‘MaIASY YD yoea Buimojio} parepdn aq isnw
210z J1aquavaq Aq suing ueyqols Aq padojanap aq 0} Spiepue)s ad11oeld « ueld a1e0 8y} ‘19 4104 eyl papnjouod doysyop 8yl ‘2102
‘Buiuueld uidiapun 0y spaau Jaquiada( woij pajojid 8 03 iy “MNoDIN 3941y Aq pa|

$82In0sal s,uosiad BunoA/p|iyd 8y} saiuap! YoIym |00} JusWwssasse ue dojansp pue dnoub Bunpiom e Aq padojansp Buiaq s JBWIO) JUSWISSISSY |
Buiisixa ulyum | (Alleuoneu pue Ajjeoo| a|qejieAr) s[euajew JUSWISSISSE S|GE|IBAE B MBIAY . Buiuueld aseo jo Ajienb paroidwi yonpy 2100 MaN “Jaquiajdas y19 uo doysyJop SIUBWISSaSSY *00110e.d JUBLIND JO MaIASY | L' p |

*Bujuueld a1ed wiojul

A|9A1108)4@ pue Ss10)oe) AAI 1d pue spaau
‘sysu Apnuapi Ajsngod pue [eanfjeue ae yoiym
S19AB3| 94eD pUe J3}je Payoo| ualpjiyd 1o} aseid
ul aJe spuswssasse alep o} dn anisuayaidwo

‘JusulWWI 818 SBJep dI3d UBYM SIapuiwal 1oB SIaxIom [B100S Jey}

pUB SMaIABI puB Sd3d Ajowil 8A1998.1 UBIP|IYD |[B 8INSUd 0} 8JoAd Bupioel}

e dnjeg -aoeld Ul 43d 4184} 9ARY 0} UBIP[IYD 8S8Y} |[e 10} dlep 1obie) 18s pue
dad & 9AeY Jou Op Ja)je Pay0o0| USIP|IYD YOIYM UIelaosy "Smalral Alojnjels
Ja}y Pax 00T uaipiyD se yons ‘sbunssw Jayjo apisbuoje AjAI0E malnal

d3d Buneibaiur jo skem o) sayoeoidde jojid }s8) pue dojaeq "edouepualie

PUE JUSWIUIEE YD UO UOHUSAISIUI PUE JYBISIaAO JO AOBINDOE PUE SSaUIBWI) ‘2102 4290100
anoidwi o} ueyd Juswdojaaap |00ydS [enuiA e Juswsjdwi pue dojaasg /| uo wea] diysiepeaT o16alenS ay) 40} Ue|d uondy d3d
“}lomawel4 8duBINSSY Ajlfend ayl yim aul| ul ‘sipne 434 ayeuspun ‘Sd3id & Bunum o} paiwiwod aAey Sr/HIN/GS “erenbapeul pabipnl|
JO Ma1A81 pue uoNONPOId JBA0D 0} }IoMaWel4 doUBINSSY ANEND pusixg ‘21-1 102 Ul sainseaw Aay |[e 4o} Sp|0 Jeak 9| pue ||| aiam Q| "Aiojoejsiies a1am g :sieaA e pue N3S ‘Alewd

sooinosal| aoe|d ul a1e Sd3d Anjenb ybiy ainsus o} siebeuew wes)} pue siau
ISIX® UIYIA JolUas ‘siayoes) pajeu

j1oeid|‘/ ‘G 10y panoidwi abelS Asy Jo pus Je s)nsay “Jaquieidag ul| ‘Arepuodag ssoloe palpne sd3d 81 ‘210z AIne 6 upne ise *1900J00 Ui/ uo yo paubis aq 0}
paja|dwod %G Y10 40} SBWODINO [euoleanpa Buiroidwis| “(y1D) 1ebeuely 8o1n8S Ag pes| swwelboid ypne BulobuQ | wea} diysiepes) oibajesls 1oy ueld uoloe 43d|L'el

UIGOLIOH [I1D

J3)je payoo| uaipjiyod JueAajal e Joj adeid ul
ale (sd3d) suejd uoneonpa jeuosiad Ayjenb ybiH

*ssa001d 8y} ybnoiy) wayy apinb o} pue
uejd Aemyied 1noge sjdoad BunoA wuojur o} sjeuslew jo yoed pauued

Ipui 0} ajeuonodoid s|
yoddns ainsu3 Buial Juapuadapul 0} Buissaiboid ajdoad BunoA 1oy poddns
pue uonesedaid anoidwi 0} way) s|qeus o} aouepinb pue Bujures spiaoid
pue Jjels 3Iom [e100s 10} sajdwexa ao110eld poob ajeulwassIp pue 09|00

"JoAES| 81eD Y] JO SPadU 8y} JO JuBWSSasse ajep 0} dn ‘aAisuayaidwiod

e apinold isnw Aay] “(eAnduosap jou) [eonAjeue pue isngos aie Aay) reyy
pue Buluueld Aemyred wiojul SJUSWISSESSE SPAaU ay] 1B} 2INSUS O} S}ipne
Juswabeuew pue sajbuely 19ad Buipnjoul sHpNe jo 894 Jenbal e paqug

a|qisuodsal

uossod peaq 1509 Op 0} Padu [|1I}S @M Op Jeym 1oedw ssaiboid uopnoy | -9ey




£/ 2102 UBld ooy uofioadsul 1504 DDD - @3 LSIO uoiduweyinos - | xipuaddy

/ abed

UIQOLIOH

[c]

$82in0sal
Bunsixe uiyum

*Apo1snod Jo 10 BulOD SISABS| 818D pUE SIoABd| 81ed Joj Joddns

Jo sabeyoed aaisuajul apiaoid [[IM SABmUIed UM Pajedo| 00 jjels SHWI] ON
UOIEPOWWODDE JOJ SABY SM SIOBAIU0D BulisIXa 8y} ulylim paau

Aau) s|ans| ay} e papoddns ale siaAed| a1ed ainsud 0} sabexoed ayodsaq
a|qixay} Buidojaaag. “Buinl Juspuadapul aiow 1o} saajdsway) bupedaid pels
0} a|doad BunoA 1o} spaq [eu} dn Bumes B sianes| ased 1o} sjuswabuelre
leuonysues} dojaasp 0} siapinoid Bunsixa sy} yum Bupjiom anunuod

"SI9ABS| 91ED B|EIBUINA 0} UOIFEPOWWIOIIE

pue uolepowwodde sbuibpo| aAoddns Jaylny UOISSILIWOD. “SISAEBS|

a1eo Buipnjoul ‘Gg-9| pabe ajdosad BunoA s|geiauinA Jo spasu ay} s}eaw

1 ainsus 03 ajdoad Burpoddng pue BuisnoH wo.y sanbes|jod yim buofe
a|doad BunoA 1o} uoiiepowwodoe 1o} ABajelis Ao 8yl MaIASY "SPasu JapIM
ay} e x00] 0} BuisnoH pue ajdoad Buiuoddng yum Buiyiom an
~.5102-2 102 yoren Absyess Buuo

sjuawWwaoe|d SI9ABS]| 81D PUE IS)JE PSY0O0| UBIP|IYD, Y} Juswajdw|

'SI9AB3| 94BD JO SP3U UOIEPOWIWOIO. JoIpaid 0]

elep 1oyod Jo sisAjeuy. ‘Aoijod Ind Buikels ayl Jo ssauaAioaye ayl sjeneas

Aurenb ybiy Ajjuaionns Jo uonepowwodde yum jaw Buiaq
aJe spaau Buisnoy Jiay) 1ey) Ajjusisisuoo uodal sianes| a1e)

‘g1 1sod
S1a1eD 19}S0} J18y} yum urewsa. o} sjdoad BunoA abeinoous
0} Aoijod 1nd Buifelg uoydweyinog e pajusws|dwi arey S\

ssaussajoWoy
pue @E_w:_u_._ UO }JIOM 8y} uo 8A0Qe 885 | |'8)

S19Aea|
a4ed J0 spaau ay) 19aw AjaAIl0aYo O} d|qejieAe

uosiad pea

S| uopepowwodde Ajjenb ybiy yuaoyng|g
VAR TS|
pea| wouy o6 0} Ja)s9| - sasiwoid ay) Jsurebe ssaiboid sy} jo pawioyul
1day 8q 0} pue 8sIWoId dY} JO SIBME SPEW (| O} JO}Je PaY00| UBIP|IYD ||y
+g|doad BunoA pue
uaIp|Iyd Jo SMmalA Japim ay} sureb yoeoidde siy) Jey) ainsu3 Bujuueld pue
Ao1j0d @ouUaN|jul 0} JO BINQLIUOD 0} B|ge dJe Ay} ydiym ul swnioy ui sredioiued
0} J8}je Pay 00| uaip|iyd 4o} sanunyoddo seinbai jo abuel e sjeyioe
‘ubisapai
921AI8S 8U] OJul 801AISS JO SMaIA §,8/doad BunoA pue ua.pjiyo p1odal
pue 109(|03 ‘slaled S19]S0} .m‘_mx‘_og |enuapisal mc__u:_o:_ >w\_wv_‘_0>> [e1ros
‘Anaijoe seinbai
B 0Jul 9PBUW 8q [|IM SIYL "UOHB}NSUOD Jayuny Ul Led axe)
0} paaibe aney ajdoad BunoA Jo Jaquinu B pue PaSSEAUBD
2JoM YD JO SMalA 8y laquiaidas Ul usip|iyo Jaye *$901A19s an0iduil 0} Iy By} Jo
-aonoeld pue PaX00] 10} DA & ploy wea) skemyred 69 a1ed 119y} 19A0|9210A Y} 0} Us)si| 0} ANjiIqe uno dojaasp 0} pue
saoinosal| Aoljod ‘Buiuueld oibajelis ul sjuswdojaaap 0} 8INGLIU0D A|9AIJ0B)S 0} SIOAE| 19)Je PaX 00| UBIP|IYD JO aduaNjul 8y} aroidwi o} Juswdojeasp|  dnoin Bunuaied ajeiodiod 8y} pue [1ounod
Bunisixa Uy 9180 PUE JB)JE PaX00| UaIP|IYO S|qeuS Jey) 9oe|d Ul aJe SWa)sAS 1SNqoY|  901AI9S 9ouanjjul UBD puUe 0} paualsi| aJe Aay) 99} uaip|iyD | sii ul papoddns ag 0] SSNUNUOD IOUNOD 8JBD Ul UBJPIYD SYL| SJeD Ul UaIpjiyD dyl JO YJom 8yl uo pjing o1 |}'/L
aonoead pue Aajjod
‘Bujuueyd o16ajel)s ul sjuswdojanap 0} ANQLIU0D
Aj9A1109))9 0] S19ABS| 91D PUE J3)JE PIYOO]
uaJpjIyd ajqeus Jey) agejd ul ase swalsAs Isnqoy |/ |
SYIuoW XIS
pajuswa|dwi pue paoinosal ae sbuipasooid ul
'sa0InIes [B63] Ylm suoneynsuod Buluueld Apjgem yim anunuod SOSBO Ul Paljjuap! suoijoe Jey) Buunsua ul ainixiy pappaquia PaJojuOW pUB PapIooal
$82In0sal ‘abeys Alies ue Je pabusjieyd aq o} Aejop Aue ajqeus o} ‘Aem Ajpwiy e ul pajuswajdwi a1e uaip|iyd 10a8104d o} Ue S| pue ‘1o Pay0o0T uaip|iy) - Jebeuepy Joluss ale SUONOB pue ‘siseq Jeinbal e uo aoe(d
namop ey Bumsixe uiyian| sBuilesw Aemareb [eba) Buimojjo) saseD ok} 0} Walsks ay} 8sn 0} aNuUOD| SUONOE Jey) BINSUS 0} JOPIO Ul palojiuow A[ISNQol aJe sase) Aq paireyo ‘Apjeam sjeaw mou [aued Buluueld aieD ay | oye) sbuneaw Buiuueld [e6a) Jey) ainsug |19}
‘pajuswaldwi pue pajojuow
Ansngou ae sbuniesw asay} wouy suonoe
1ey} pue Ajown ae sbunesw bujuuerd jeba|g)
:(mojaq 99s) Jey) Buunsua apnjoul [|IM puUB (Passno0) $s8204d Jou) passnaoy.
ued ased J1ay} 0} spiepuels
$92In0sal *sal|lwey pue s[euoissajoid woly indul apnjoul 0}
Bumysixa UIYIM| Mmainay “uaip|iyd Joj sawodino Buiroidwi uo sjpued asay} jo Joedwi mainay
9D 0JUI UdIP|IYD dA0w 0} Bujuued
ey} ainsus o} Buriojuow apnjoul 0} OS[e JIpne SIy] "SPJEpPUEB)S 8y} pue
PIIYd 8y} 104 SaW02IN0 ay} Jsutebe Buiuued a1ed auy Jo Ajljenb ay) Buiojuow
sapnjoul Jeyl Sidyd uo sued a1ed jo ypne Jo 8]oAo Jeinbai e paquig
a|qisuodsal
1s09 op 0} paau |11 M Op Jeym 10edw| ssaiboid uonoy| -0ay| "oN




£/ 2102 UBld ooy uofioadsul 1504 DDD - @3 LSIO uoiduweyinos - | xipuaddy

g abeyd

SSOA Aespur

odgl

‘2102 Jequiadaq wolj uolejuawajdul

104 "JuswisaAul 10} [eAoidde 1o} 18qo}oQ Ul pieog pue dnoir) SAlNoex3
[ealulD 99O 0} pajuasaid aq 0} ased sSauISNg PUB UOBPUSWIWIOdDY

"210g Jaquisldas Alies ul pieoq 40O HOVIN Pue HO0 03 pajuasaid

Q 0] 9SBD SS8UISNQ PUB UOIIEPUSWIWOIaY "SPadu 82IN0Sal Ssaippe

PpUE 90IN0S3J JO 3SN BAIJ08YS azZIWIXew o} Ajoedeo Bunsixa Jsurebe pasu
Jua.1nd Ayuspi 0} Wes) Yjeay Ia}e Pax00| UBIP|IYD JO MBIAS) BUILOISSILIWOD

“paAoidul Jayuny pue paurelsns
oI SIOAEBS| 91D JO SOWODIN0 YiedH |1 0z

-passaippe Ajajenbape aie sianes| aied Jo spasu
Yieay ay} ey} ainsua o} wea) yijeay Iae payooj
uaJp|iyd ayy Aq papinoid a21ai3s ay) dojanag

panoidwi Jayuny

puUE paureIsns siojeolpul eouewiopad Aay
“Ja}je PaY00| uaIP|IYD 10} dA0idwWI 0} SNUKUOD
SBWOINO0 Y)[Bay aInsud 0} 9o1AIas dojaraq|L el

J1a)Je payoo| uaipjiyo

10 Spaau yjjeay ay} 198w 0} wes)} yjjeay saye
Pa)00] uaipjiyd ay} uiyum Apoeded Jualoiyns si
213y} Jey) aInsua pjnoys 1 9d uoidweyinos SHN

a|qisuodsal
uosiad pea

1509

Op 0] paau ||iS am Op 1eym

1oedw)

ssaiboid

uopnoy | -9ey




Agenda ltem 10

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: ALTERNATIVE DELIVERY OPTIONS FOR ADULT SOCIAL
CARE

DATE OF DECISION: 8 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: CABINET MEMBER FOR ADULT SERVICES

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the findings of Pricewaterhouse Cooper which
informed a final decision about the future delivery model for in house social care. A
decision was made on the 25" September2012 to retain the provision within the
Council.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
(i) That the Committee discuss the issues raised within the report.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To respond to a request from the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee at its meeting in December 2011.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

2. Different delivery options for the Council’s directly provided adult social care
were identified in the report that went to the OSMC in November 2011.

DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. Following completion of the work identified to OSMC in February 2012, a
further appraisal of the options was completed by members of the HR team,
a senior manager of social care from the IOW, a local NHS commissioner, a
member of the finance team and members of the policy team. This was led
by the Senior Manager for Customer and Business Improvement. This
appraisal found that a conclusive recommendation could not be made.

4. The Chief Executive, with agreement from the Deputy Leader of the Council
as chair of the Change Programme Board, commissioned Pricewaterhouse
Cooper (PwC) to undertake a short piece of work to provide the City Council
with an objective external assessment of the strengths and weaknesses of the
work that had been developed internally and of the best strategic and financial
fit of future direction to our HASC services.

5. The work that was then undertaken by two members of PwC over two weeks
concluded that the two main options that had been identified as viable in
previous work were the same options that they felt could be considered, these
being moving to a trading company or retaining the provision in house.
However, they identified that the business case for the LATCo had been
heavily reliant on having a two tier work force which this Administration was
not prepared to implement and had not focussed on the added value that in
house services provide. Furthermore they made it clear that making a
decision about the future of provision must be based on greater clarity about
the direction of commissioning and that a clear strategic direction was awaited
by the end of the year. They considered that many of the reasons given for

1



moving to a LATCo could actually be achieved in house if the Council
environment were to be more receptive.

6. The presentation given by PwC is provided as an appendix. This was
presented to the Change Programme Board on the 25™ September 2012
where it was decided that social care services would be retained in house.
However, it was also clear that these services would be given support to
change and develop to meet the changing national agenda and local
demands. Further more the Change Programme Board committed to
overcoming as much as possible the areas of the Council’s processes that
PwC had identified as barriers to flexible use of the service provision.

7. The future of the relevant services is now focussed on:

e Working on delivering better outcomes for all users of social
care services;

e Creating and implementing a better commissioning strategy
across all Council services; and

e Shaping the social care market so the Council can have a
stronger say over quality and outcomes, whoever the providers
of those services are in the City.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue/Property/Other

8. There are no direct financial implications of the recommendations in this
paper. Access may be made to the Change Programme Board /Transition
Board for some project support to maximise the development of in house care
services.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

9. None required
Other Legal Implications:
10. None

POLICY IMPLICATIONS

11. Policy implications resulting from the national changes currently under focus
for Adult Social care will be taken into account in future service development.

AUTHOR: Name: @ Jane Brentor, Head of Provider Tel: 1 023 8083 3439
Transformation

E-mail: ' jane.brentor@southampton.gov.uk
KEY DECISION? No
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None




SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed
on-line

Appendices

1. Presentation from PwC to Change Programme Board.

Documents In Members’ Rooms

None

Integrated Impact Assessment

Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact No
Assessment (IIA) to be carried out?

Other Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule 12A allowing
document to be Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

1. None




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 10

Appendix 1

WWW.pwCe,co.uk

Southampton City
Council

Alternative options for
delivering adult social care
provider services

September 2012




-
Contents

Section one: executive summary
¢ Who we have met, and what we have seen and read
«  How we have approached this work — our “3 lenses™:
«  Commissioning
+  Service perspective
«  Decision criteria
+  The Council’s business case for the LATCo
»  Deciding what to do next: the decision tree and our playback
*  Our conclusions

+  The future

Section two: responding to the key questions raised

»  Responses to the key questions raised by the Council

Southampton City Council
PwC

September 2012
Slide 2



_ .
Section one

Executive summary

Southampton City Council September 2012
PWC Slide 3




_
Who we have met, and what we have seen and read
We have received a great deal of information and heard a number of different
perspectives

We have met..

Cllr Rayment, Cllr Stevens, Cllr Noon, Alistair Neill, Margaret Geary, Dawn Baxendale, Andy Lowe, Jane Brentor, Carol
Valentine, Stephanie Ramsey, Rob Harwood and Dave Cuerden.

Service managers/senior workers from the services listed below.

We have seen..

Brownbhill residential rehab, Nutfield horticultural day service, City Care reablement and Glen Lee residential service for
people with moderate/severe dementia needs.

We have read..

Independent options appraisal (May 2011), continuing to provide within the City Council business case (Aug 2011), Care
and Health LATCo business case (Sept 2011), draft Council report (Oct 2011), options appraisal (June 2012), best/worst
case financial model (July 2012), provider services options appraisal (Aug 2012) and draft commissioning framework
and project brief (Aug 2012).

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 4



_ :
How we have approached this work — our 3 lenses
We have approached this work by looking at the question from a commissioning, service

and decision criteria perspective.

\/

1. Commissioning
intent and
outcomes focus

* Looking at each of the services
included in Provider Services.

* Being clear about their current status

and future direction.

~

2. Individual

service

perspective

Southampton City Council
PwC

Being clear about the commissioning
intent for the user groups accessing
current provider services (LD, OP).
Working through what this means for
the operating model and how the
Council organises services to meet
outcomes.

3. Decision
criteria

i —

these reflect a shared view.

» Examining the decision criteria
employed by the Council so far and
how these criteria have been applied.

* Checking with all stakeholders that

September 2012

Slide 5




-

Lens 1: comumnissioning intent and outcomes
This is about following through the evidence basis for service development.

The Council already has work underway
on this..

«  An overall commissioning framework is being
developed jointly with the NHS.

«  When developed, the commissioning strategies will
take a future view on which outcomes the Council and
partners are looking to deliver in each target
population (LD, OP).

¢ The strategies should take account of how services
need to change, leading practice from elsewhere.

This work is due to conclude in the next 2-
3 months..

»  The work is already beginning to examine different
models for delivering effective commissioning.

Southampton City Council
PwC

A commissioning framework

Commissioning

Purpose and Guidance Gap Analysis
Market Analysis Joint Commissioning
Resource Analysis Strategy

Needs Analysis
Risk Analysis

Service Design

Purchasing/

Contracting

Resource
User Needs
Providers

Confract
Monitoring
& Review

Strategy
Monitoring
& Review

Specification
Contract/ SLA
Purchasing Plan

R

Tendering
& Contract
Management

Change
Management
Budget & Market
Management

All

September 2012
Slide 6



From service led
commissioning..

Lens 1: commissioning intent and outcomes

A perspective on a “typical commissioning journey”

Commissioners focus on B e =

contracting and procurement
practices.

Unit costs are driven down Vi " Mutti agency joint
through occupancy, block et
contracting and inflationary

negotiations.

The market is largely
unmanaged.

Outcome-based - Pooled and m:.m.:ma S
commissioning is the budgets, shared
exception rather than the Aol S b,

74

—_—_ priorities
PRESENT

] R
Southampton City Council

PwC

FUTURE

= Multi mmm:nF multiple E:&:a stream -
commissioning through a range of
mechanisms

To strategic needs-led
' commissioning..

Commissioners focus on strategic
market management.

Markets are open and responsive.

Relationships between commissioners,
providers and users are well developed.

All services are based on evidence of
need and delivery of outcomes.

Service users are able to access a range
of different services across all statutory
services to meet their needs.

Service users co-produce throughout —
designing outcomes and packages of
support to deliver them.

September 2012
Slide 7



Lens 2: the individual service perspective
The Council is already discussing different service priorities in each area

In older people’s services for people with moderate/severe need and dementia..

Residential care Extra care housing, floating support,
» Traditional model of delivery

assistive technologies
» High cost per head « Personalised, outcomes focussed
* High infrastructure costs/aged buildings . Requires investment but delivers lower unit costs
« Innovative, sustainable in the face of increasing demand

In reablement and intermediate care..

Standalone reablement Integrated intermediate care
Niche not mainstream » Mainstream, not ancillary

Variable results with variable costs

Mostly single agency view

Mix of skills and disciplines

Roles and responsibilities sometimes unclear

Buildings based support

» Individuals are given things to do

Service for users vs carers
Economies of scale
Fixed populations supported

« Flexible, innovative, person-focussed
Brings together full range of stakeholders
Focuses on support planning rather than

interventions

Person centred approaches
» Flexible and floating support for carers

» Person/outcomes-focussed support outside of

traditional service boundaries
+ Choice msa nosﬁ ol is mxﬁ.o_mma as @m: of

We need to keep talking about the future of each service, rather than all of them together




| Lens 3: the Council’s decision criteria on the LATCo
There 1s broad agreement that the principal decision criteria for deciding whether or not a
LATCo is the right option for the Council are quality, cost and flexibility — focussed on
better outcomes.

Quality:

1. Services are “good” but traditional. They
need to change.

2. Infrastructure issues affect quality.

Care quality is well regarded.

Cost: Flexibility:

1. Services are 1. Services cannot stay the
comparatively same.
expensive. 2. They are not homogenous

2. Ongoing capital and need to develop
(building) and revenue differently.
(staff, pensions) Flexibilit 3. A LATCo would need to be
requirements. established with a

3. Fixed operating costs # reasonable expectation of
exacerbated by self- clarity/consistency.
directed support and
personal budgets.

Southampton City Council September 2012

PwC Slide 9



| ‘ . .
Addressing the Council’s business case for the LATCo
We have read and discussed the various business cases/options appraisals for the LATCo

We understand why the business case has been prepared in the way it has
« It has been prepared on the basis of direct cost assumptions and “known” elements.

«  Negative costs (including through prevention) have been excluded.

The business case is really about how the current services would move into a LATCo
model

« The business case takes the existing budget and projects this forward.

» The only real variable is how capacity in current services can be maximised, through unmet need and trading.

This means the business case is based on a series of underpinning assumptions

*  One of the key assumptions is that LD clients will not be able to access services if they remain in-house. The next
assumption is that they will continue to want to. In this cohort we are already seeing some movement away from
direct provision.

* The business case also assumes some unmet demand — from clients currently excluded from service provision
(eligibility) as well as from elsewhere (private clients, other local areas).

* Some financial elements are also potentially under-represented (e.g. redundancy costs, cost of change, cost of client
function within the City Council).

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 10



The Council’s business case for the LATCo
The result is a business case with an upside which is marginal at best

We have focussed our value for money discussions on the “Best Case” financial model

N.‘H:m@:mmzmmmSmmmmmzﬁmmnnozﬁ.:ixm@:Qmmﬂ 7
— in effect ringfencing current funding levels. This

is not sustainable in a very high cost area.

2. It also makes | [LATC - Best Case - L _
N S | — o 5. The business |
assumpnons tha
_U: b duha :M: ._._Ma Amham :nzq mﬁwﬂoa_ case assumes |
amwwﬂﬁc”m not be \ [Current Budget 9,273,400] 9,273400] 9,273,400] 9,273,400] 9,273,400] 46,367,000 new demand 7
J -
crarged. e for services. _
I — VAT Exempt inputs (From Model) 0
" 3. Costs 0.\. Additional Costs (From Model) 95000| 95,000 5,000 95,000 95,000 475,000 .E\bmﬂm.\.wos ? _
: " |Additional Board cosis (From Model) 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 40,000 [\ — —
/|Additional costs not in model 0 0 0 o] 0 0 &
ﬂ?ﬁ:@& are :QH. m_ Costof Day clients transfering to Direct Payments 93,852 375,408 809,474 1,055,835 1,055,835 3,390,404 \ \
| |VAT on Agency Staff not included in Model 0 i -
~3n~tn~mﬁ~. Hﬁmmm | |VAT on Urits Rent (if SCC Opt to Tax) 0 Thi
EQH&NQ mvm _ Community Centres Charge for hire LATC 0 0 0 1] 0 0 m. s
. Potential Redundancies 125,000 0 [} 0 0 125,000 4 |
material for the 7/ |Setup Costs beyond Original Project evaluation 150,000 0 0 0 of 1s0000 @ demandis 7
“ , /! [Total Pressures 471,852| 478,408 912474] 1168835 1,158,835] 4180,404|
| Council | \ expected to
_| o Savings L_\_\ QQ._E.QN _
4. Income from Private Clients Day Care (From Model) 0 0|  (s0000)  (50,000)  (75000)  (175,000)) movement
. Income from Private Clients Day Care / savings required to offset DP clients (93,852)] (375,408) (809,474)| (1,055,835)| (1,055,835)] (3,390.404)}, \
Redundancies Income from Private Clients OP Res Gare (From Model) (62500) (125000) (1250000 (125000 (1250000  (562,500) away from the
. Income from Private Clients LD Respite Care (From Model) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (50,000) (200,000) A
do not include Income from private clients City Care (From Model) (50.000) (100,000  (100,000)) (100000)) (100,000))  (450,000) seruvice.
y Staff Savings (From Model) (170.000)| (230,000)]  (310,000)]  (380.000)|  (460,000)| (1,550,000)
| pension Supply Savings (From Model) (28,000)|  (28,000) (28,000) (28,000) eoon)|  ta0000) —,———
| . City Limits Income 0 0 0 0 Q 0 | »
, entitlements. Total Savings 404357 08400)| (4724701 (1768835 (1803835 (e ds7g0m) 9. A risk
(Saying) / Pressure 67,500| (430,000)] (560.000)] (630,000)|  (735.000) m.nmﬂmc&_ nﬁmw H.n.wﬂmﬁm
- 2 oy \\ = ] business
7. High occupancy levels are 8. In the main savings are anticipated through two tier 7 caseis

assumed but demand is not

working — which assumes agreement on terms as well as staff |

unlikely to

evidenced. turnover. In practice this is difficult to achieve within a | | break even |
T OUUIan g W Gty GuUuriGn reasonable ﬁmﬂmOmm. 7 September 2012
PWC - Slide 11



_ : .
Key messages from the business case analysis
We have discussed our headline conclusions drawn from this with the key stakeholders
involved
The services need to change. Locking them into a LATCo is not the right option

«  The Council need to accelerate the evidenced-based service development process.

In financial terms the business case is marginal at best once you remove the protected
benefits of two tier working

«  Two tier working makes up the majority of the savings potential. This is dependent on staff churn, as well as sign up
from the Council.

The business case also rests upon assumptions about income maximisation

« There is no proven demand or investment built in to deliver on these additional income opportunities.

At present the case for a LATCo is not made on a typical value for money judgement
There would need to be other, more subjective reasons for pursuing this option.

But the Council has initiated early work on commissioning and recognises the potential
to do more for citizens

«  This is about thinking from an outcomes perspective and doing the best the Council can for people in its care.

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 12



| . 7 -
Deciding what to do next: the decision tree

There are broadly two options now — wait for the evidence based (commissioning) or
press on anyway. Either way, the services need to be transformed

Now
Decision 1: Will commissioning drive Decision 2: Do we want to maintain current
service development ? services?

Assumption 1: Decision 2a:

Decision 1:

Assumption 2:

Retain the services in-
house

The commissioning
strategies will define the
Council’s future
requirements sufficient
to enable future decision
making

Wait for the completion
of the commissioning
strategies and then
revisit the options for
Provider Services.

The Council wishes to
deliver the same
outcomes through the

; Decision 2b:
current set of services

Pursue the LATCo

Next

Decision 3: Are we going to transform the services?

Assumption 3: Other decisions - eg:
The Council wants to fundamentally Decision 3a: Engage external

. transform SETvIces, requiring Retain the services in-house partners
Investment and active management of

the transformation. Manage the market

Drive the change
Engage staff and users [
£ 43

Southampton City Council
PwC



_ o s
Deciding what to do next: our playback
From our discussions, we think there is a lot of clarity about what needs to happen next.
Services need to change, and there are strong ideas for how and in what ways

We think you are clear about..

Services Future thinking
Residential services for older |+ Continue to drive improvements in the current cost model (eg peripatetic
people managers)

«  Use current services as a platform to deliver extra care in the community,
either in people’s homes or using the capital to invest in new provision,
increasing capacity (currently 8 beds for 3,000 population).

«  Make better use of technology — including through hub and spoke dementia
support models.

«  Make more of opportunities across departments (eg children’s services) and
with partners (such as health).

Reablement +  Develop integrated working arrangements and look to mainstream the current
approach — so that everyone (care managers, occupational therapies) has
reablement at the centre of their work.

«  Develop a full, flexible spectrum of intermediate care provision — for step up
and step down care.

Learning disability day «  Focus on outcomes and the support required to deliver those outcomes (eg

services employment and volunteering support).

« Focus current inputs on support planning for outcomes.

«  Consider inter-dependencies including with health providers (eg Horticultural
Day Service) and alternative delivery models as part of “seeding” the market.

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 14




_ .
The conclusions we have reached
Working with you, we have reached some logical conclusions

* Applying the commissioning “lens” in particular our recommendation would be to leave the
services in-house for the time being.

« The current services are not the delivery models you require going into the future. They are
traditional, expensive and do not respond to the new policy agenda.

« The decision criteria as developed and applied by you have multiple dimensions for different
stakeholders. However, the most common criteria described by everyone we met was the need to
maintain a focus on outcomes and ensure that there was flexibility for the future.

*  Moving to a LATCo would not prime facie meet your criteria for flexibility.

» The current business case for moving to a LATCo represents at best marginal savings with some
downside risk for the Council and the LATCo.

« The transformation journey needs to be accelerated, with services retained in house and external
partners engaged to support specific agendas (eg the development of extra care housing options).

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 15



The future — a potential route map
What might the future hold?

Now

September 2012

December 2012 Commissioning approach confirmed

Clear, agreed evidence base for service

development planning
February 2013

Specifications developed
Structural commissioning models considered and
decided upon

March 2013

Dementia strategy/extra care plans developed and
decided upon

Delivery models clear for each user group
Cross-council bundling opportunities planned and
implementation plans in place

May 2013

Choice and control in LD
Direct Payments up

June 2013

Reablement model “mainstreamed”

S
IS4
P \

Extra care unit comes on stream

August 2013 onwards

Flexible delivery models
focussed on well-being,
independence and choice

. _ Future
Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 16



'Section two

Responding to the key questions
raised

Southampton City Council September 2012
PWC Slide 17




Executive summary: responses to key questions
The City Council raised 10 key questions at the outset of this work

No. Question or area

1. Inwhich ways would a LATCo be
advantageous and disadvantageous
to the Council?

2. Is the current business case robust?

_ Summary response

Advantages: enable income generation, provide a market

“underpinning”, enable a wider pool of individuals to access
services (subject to demand).

Disadvantages: ringfences budget, inhibits flexibility, does not
develop market, requires new skills and change capacity, value for

__money, unclear expectations, staff and business change required.

The business case does not oE..HmHE% ?:% address value for Bobm%

considerations and is based on a set of questionable assumptions.

3.  Could a LATCo be made to work
successfully with a workforce on
equal terms?

If all mmmEﬁwgosm are met, on the current financial model without
changes to workforce terms cost savings of ¢.£786k could be
delivered. The income assumptions look optimisitc — this is a best

nmmm momﬂm.so

4. Whatalternative options would be
appropriate?

The services in mS@m are <2.% -different. Different. ocﬂobm HEmE be
appropriate for different services. The business case needs to be
considered on this basis. Prime facie there appears to be a case for
the Horticultural Day Service to consider becoming a social

mﬁm@ﬂmm

‘5.  Are there gaps in the current
assessment of the LATCo?

One of the o<ﬁ.5m5m E.Hozcmm for 9@%@@ involved in this
project was being able to maintain flexibility. The LATCo business
case also makes assumptions about new demand for current
services (including people with lower level needs). The key is

e compelling evidence to support the income assumptions.

Southampton City Council
PwC

September 2012
Slide 18



Executive summary: responses to key questions

The responses continue below.
No. _ Question orarea

6. What are the risks and
opportunities involved in retaining
the service in house?

\.....Summary response

Risks: institutional issues (bureaucracy, risk aversion), income

potential, political and staff buy in to LATCo proposal.
Opportunities: maintains flexibility in budgets/quality/provision,
easier to transform, reinvest, modernise, personalise,

commercialise, invest in outcomes, take an evidence-led approach.

ﬂ '~ Whatare the risks and
opportunities in outsourcing?

8. Would a partnership with a health

provider be beneficial?

Risks: @O_Eo& wEN in, lack of Wboimmmm Sn\c:mmw mm,ﬁ&owmm
market conditions, staff response to change, unclear specification
for services, capital requirements.

Opportunities: cost savings, shared risk, inward investment

_ potential, catalyst for change.

This needs to be tested further. Some services mrms well with health
provider services (eg reablement); others less so (eg learning
disability day services). The cost/benefit of a partnership of this
kind has not been fully tested, and needs to be driven by citizen

dmm&m.

9. Arehealth agencies a suitable
___ partner for delivery?

10. Is the Council’s mE:.omnr to
integrating commissioning across
children’s and adult social care a

e SOUNd ODE?

Southampton City Council
PwC

This E_m% be the case in some services mmm an Eﬁmm_.mﬁmm intermediate

_ careservice). No business case was provided as part of this review.

ﬁccmmEmEm:% the mcwwomow is sound. The _8% is to build nmwmg:@ |
and capacity in the Council and place the commissioning strategies
at the heart of the strategic agenda. No business case for delivering

e this was put forward as part of this review.

September 2012
Slide 19



| Q1: In which ways would a LATCo be advantageous and
disadvantageous to the Council?

Advantages

A LATCo will be able to generate surplus income for reinvestment in the
service or the wider Council, and become, whereas in-house services are
only permitted to recover full costs. The Council’s financial projections
assume that a LATCo would be able to increase income by over £4m over
5 years (worst case), which would overcome the circa £1m additional
costs (over 5 years) required to establish a LATCo.

Establishing a LATCo for social care services would enable the Council to
establish a clear commissioner-provider split, and to focus on
commissioning the most effective service provision for the local
population.

A LATCo would enable the Council to retain arms-length control over a
set of strategically important services to the local community and ensure
that services will continue to be provided in areas (under the existing
Council brand if desired) where the market is insufficiently developed.
Moreover, it would be legally possible to establish a LATCo under a
Teckal arrangement, in which the authority could continue to
commission services from the LATCo without the need for a full
procurement procedure, provided that LATCo remained financially
dependent upon the authority.

The new organisation would be less dependent upon local authority
support and have the freedom and incentive to operate more
commercially and innovatively to extend service provision and attract

new customers, including in partnership with other providers (e.g. NHS).

Existing staff could be retained under TUPE in a new LATCo, but would
have the opportunity to operate in a more flexible and rewarding
environment, with more effective reporting and accountability
arrangements. This option may also be more acceptable to trade unions
as it falls short of outsourcing.

Southampton City Council

PwC

Disadvantages

1.  Under a LATCo, the social care budget would effectively become ring-
fenced, with the Council losing the ability to redirect this significant
resource to other parts of the organisation as efficiencies are made and
priorities change. The ability to pool resources flexibly with other services
and other organisations to address needs more holistically may also be
diminished.

2.  Withits increased operational autonomy, it may become more difficult to
include social care in Council-wide shared service programmes, and the
benefits case for Council-wide transformation could be eroded as a result.

3. Establishing a LATCo would still inhibit market development, as private
and third sector providers would continue to find it difficult to compete
with the resources and expertise of such a body. Establishing a LATCo
under a Teckel arrangement would shield the new body from competition
and reduce the incentive to make efficiencies.

4.  Afurther opportunity cost of establishing a LATCo instead of fully
outsourcing is that existing people, processes and technology are simply
retained under a new banner, and it may take longer to lever in new
expertise and thinking, and bring about more efficient ways of working.

5.  Setting up a LATCo would involve significant investment and change for
the service, and a strong business case and programme management
approach will be required in order to implement the new service. In
particular a separation of existing teams, assets and contracts would be
required so that the new organisation had its own resources, and also
VAT would become payable in relation to particular activities. The
decision to establish a LATCo still represents a significant risk to the
Council, particularly if the VAT impact cannot be mitigated as fully as
anticipated.

September 2012
Slide 20



_ @
Q2: Is the current business case robust?

The LATC business case prepared by CHS (September 2011) provides a good

basis for considering the opportunities and risks associated with this option. It
includes a detailed set of assumptions behind the income and cost projections. 6.
However, this only appraises a single option in detail — the establishment of a
LATC covering all provider services — rather than a full set of options, and
therefore there is a risk that this document lacks balance.

In addition, a separate internal business case (August 2011) found that the
status quo was financially unsustainable, but that it was equally difficult to make
a strong case for moving to a different model. This document is a briefer piece of
work.

We have also reviewed the latest financial model and would highlight a number
of key issues with the current financial model (September 2012 version):

1. The current financial model only considers two options, whereas there
may be potential for more aggressive cost reduction and income
generation under other options (eg engaging alternative providers).

2. Itis unclear whether the model is underpinned with a detailed set of
assumptions and supporting evidence.

3.  Itis assumed that current budget of £44.6m will remain the same over the
following five years, however this will need to reduce in order to help meet
the Council’s efficiency savings as the service becomes leaner,

4.  The model significantly understates the ability of the Council to transform
its own operations. Staff savings for the LATC option (£1.5m best) are far
in excess of the In-House option (£100k best), and also no supply savings
are assumed for the in-house model. Also no redundancy costs have been
included for the In-House option.

5. Forthe LATC option, there is no variation in staff or supply savings for

Southampton City Council
PwC

the LATC option between the best and worst scenarios.
In terms of income forecasts:

The model assumes that there will be a significant increase in income
from private clients under the LATC option. What up to date evidence
is there of this new demand, have all new sources of income (e.g.
contracts with other public bodies) been taken into account, and would
this type of income generation be permissible under a ‘Teckal’
arrangement?

Under the in-house option, it may be possible to generate additional
income through ensuring full cost recovery across all discretionary
service areas if this is not being achieved at present.

September 2012
Slide 21



ﬁ Q3: Could a LATCo be made to work successfully with a

workforce on equal terms?

This is a difficult argument to make and is based on a series of assumptions
which have not been fully tested as part of this short review — namely:

+  There is an assumption that two tier working would not be permissable
for the current administration, although the business case does not
clearly set out the advantages and disadvantages of considering it.

+  The majority of the cost savings identified in the current financial model
supporting the LATCo option are, however, predicated on being able to
deliver two tier working.

. However, the model does assume that, in a reportedly very stable
workforce, there will be some movement of staff which will enable the
Council to employ staff on new terms and conditions. This assumption
does not appear to be borne out by the Council’s own qualitative evidence
about staff movement and churn in the service overall.

In addition, alternatives need to be considered further. For example, part of
the transformation of the service could include an evaluation of the types and
skills required of staff in the future. This would be aligned to evidence about
what the Council’'s commissioning intelligence would specify the future
services should deliver. For example, if users with learning disabilities are to
be supported to make informed decisions about the choices available to them
(exercising their own independence, choice and control) this may mean more
of a focus on support planning activity within the current day services staff
group. Equally the Council may take a decision that a support planning role
should - as far as practical — be carried out by an arm’s length organisation,
and (in common with other areas) commission further independent support
and advocacy from user led organisations based (and if necessary “seeded”) in
Southampton.

*Fundamentally, the question about equal terms is based on a premise that the

Southampton City Council
PwC

workforce required in the future will be similar in nature to the workforce
required now. There are benefits to be realised for staff and users in
understanding and embracing changes in adult social care — freeing staff up to
focus on what matters to the people they are working with (and their carers)
and potentially reducing the time spent on tasks which might be considered of
lower value.

The other important factor to bear in mind is that the Council’s workforce does
not exist in a vacuum. The Council is already a major user of local agency
staff, who are required in regulated services to maintain levels of care and are
also used in non-regulated services to provide capacity and capabilities not
currently employed in-house. Wider issues of recruitment and retention need
to be considered. Southampton is, in a sense, operating in direct competition
with other neighbouring boroughs for highly skilled and experienced social
care staff. Pay, terms and conditions are important considerations to bear in
mind in this competitive landscape — but they are by no means the only
considerations potential and existing staff will have in mind when deciding on
their employment prospects.

September 2012
Slide 22



_ . .
Q4: What alternative options would be appropriate?

The services in scope are very different, therefore different options might be
appropriate for different services. We believe there are two alternative options that
should be considered for some or all of the services currently within scope:

Transfer to a social enterprise

Services could either be transferred to an existing social enterprise specialising in
social care or a new one would need to be created. In particular there appears to be
a prima facie case for the Horticultural Day Service to consider becoming a social
enterprise.

The main advantages of such a model would be that

The organisation would have the agility to operate more commercially and

implement efficiencies, however social enterprises are required to reinvest all

surpluses back into the organisation and do require more capital start up
than private sector endeavours.

The Council could retain a degree of control over the new organisation
through a governance or commissioning relationship. There are a number of
legal models available depending on the objectives and functions of the new
organisation.

Many social enterprises and mutuals have succeeded in delivering a more
rewarding working environment for staff, and achieved greater staff
affiliation to their place of work and lower levels of absenteeism as a result.

The disadvantages are that:

The distinctive set of management skills required to drive forward a social

organisation successfully may be difficult to attract, and may not be currently

available to the Counecil.

It may be more difficult to implement transformational change in the new
organisation, given that it could comprise existing managers and staff and
there is a temptation in these organisations to hark back to established ways
of working. New management would probably be required.

Southampton City Council
PwC

. A new social enterprise may struggle to compete with more established
commercial competitors in procurement processes run by the Council
(although it might be possible to avoid procurement processes through using
the Teckal exemption).

Collaborate with neighbouring local authorities or local NHS partners

Adult social care services could be delivered in partnership with one or more
neighbouring local authorities or NHS partners.

The advantages of such an arrangement would be that:

. Democratic influence would remain over the service, although local control
would need to be reduced.

. Synergies in front and back office functions may be found, whilst front line
service delivery teams could be brigaded more efficiently.

*  The Council would be able to call on a larger resource pool when service
pressures are greatest, and would be able to use shared specialist resources.

. If the service was established at arms-length of the sponsoring Councils, it
would have the power to make surpluses for reinvestment in the service.

. It may be possible to bring a private sector organisation (e.g. professional
services firm) into the partnership in order to modernise systems, processes
and ways of working.

The disadvantages would be that:

. Local government collaborations are often slow to develop owing to
differences in local priorities, changes in political control and the length of
the decision making process. Agreeing a compelling case for collaboration
with senior members and officers early in the process would be imperative.

*  Transformation of service delivery and front and back office processes may
be difficult to achieve without the involvement of an external third party

September 2012
Slide 23



_ .
Q5: Are there gaps in the current assessment of the LATCo?

One of the overriding priorities for everyone involved in this project was being
able to maintain flexibility. The LATCo business case makes assumptions
about new demand for current services (including people with lower level
needs).

Assessing the LATCo through the Council’s decision criteria, we would
highlight the following questions that may not have been considered
sufficiently so far:

Cost

. Will the LATCo have sufficient skills and capabilities to transform the
social care operations it will inherit and drive down unit costs?

+  Will the LATCo have sufficient incentive to drive down costs when it will
remain closely aligned to the authority, and well placed to secure large
local authority and health contracts awarded through joint
commissioning?

. There is a risk that the Council’s ability to effect transformational change
in social care has been under-estimated. The scope of the Council’s wider
change initiatives to make savings in social care has not been sufficiently
considered.

Quality

. Is the current assessment of the LATCo sufficiently outcome-led, and
focused on the way that service provision will need to change in future in
response to changing need, the changing legislative content and reducing
public funding? A clearer set of service drivers are required to determine
the most appropriate service delivery model.

. Has the current performance of the service in terms of its ability to effect

Southampton City Council
PwC

outcomes and achieve high levels of customer satisfaction been
sufficiently through use of benchmarking, reference to current customer
research etc.

Flexibility

. The establishment of a LATCo would be likely to diminish the level of
flexibility the Council currently has over adult social care resources,
including its ability to pool resources with other services and partners to
address needs more holistically.

. A LATCo may risk stifling rather than promoting local competition in
social care services, and therefore constrain future commissioning
options in particular service areas.

Evidence

. The LATCo business case makes several key assumptions about the
ability to maximise capacity to drive additional income. This is not
underpinned by compelling evidence or clarity about the marketing and
business development strategies and costs that would be required to
realise these opportunities.

September 2012
Slide 24



_ . - 3 .
Q6: What are the risks and opportunities involved in
retaining the service in-house?

Opportunities Risks

1. The Council would retain control over the strategic direction and 1. Thereis arisk that the pace of transformation would not be as rapid
operation of social care services, and can therefore ensure that resources compared to other more external delivery models, and as a result it would
can be fully focussed on achieving key outcomes. Services would still be take longer for the Council to realise savings in a significant area of
clearly delivered under the SCC brand. spend. Outdated processes, systems and HR practices would continue.

2. The Council would still be able to transform the service, and social care 2.  The service would continue to have limited incentive to operate more
services would be able to take full advantage of pan Council shared commercially, and would remain financially dependent on Council
services for front and back office. The Council would also pursue new resources. Unit costs would remain relatively high, and the service would
delivery models in partnership with other providers (e.g. Health) continue to be subsidised by taxpayers.

3.  Retaining social care services in house would not necessary preclude 3. Whilst the service would be able to supply services to external
more parts of the service (e.g. residential care) being externally organisations it would only be able to recover full costs from fees and
commissioned or delivered more commercially and collaboratively with charges, rather than generate a surplus with which to invest in improving
other publie, private and third sector providers. the service. As the current financial case indicates, there is a significant

amount of untapped revenue which would likely be forgone with this

4.  Costs required to externalise the service further (e.g. legal, HR, option.

procurement, property) would be largely avoided. Resources could be
focused on maintaining service quality and continuity, rather than being 4.  Continuing with in-house provision would make it more difficult for the

split up and reallocated to an external body. Full recovery of VAT costs Council to establish a commissioning-provider split within social care,
would continue. given that the same teams and individuals current deliver both of these
functions. Such a split would be required, for instance, for service users to
5. Tt is likely that the Council would still be able to generate additional buy-back services with direct payments and reduce the doubling funding
income under an in-house solution through ensuring that full cost of services that currently persists.

recovery is achieved for all discretionary service provision

6.  Agood deal of staff uncertainty and potential union opposition would be
largely avoided with an in-house option, making it easier for staff to be
retained in key areas which are difficult to recruit.

Southampton City Council September 2012
PwC Slide 25



| . «zs _ » .
Q7: What are the risks and opportunities in outsourcing?

Opportunities

1.

An external provider would be able to deliver adult social care
services more efficiently than the Council through more efficient
front and back office processes, and more modern ways of
working. An outsourced provider would be able to invest in the
service in order to build capacity and generate more income. Also,
experience within local government shows that successful
outsourcing arrangements can often provide a catalyst for change
for the wider organisation.

The Council can decide how much strategic and operational
influence it wishes to retain over the service, and select an
appropriate outsourcing model to deliver this. Critically
outsourcing will enable the Council to share delivery risks with an
external provider.

It is likely that the Council would be able to enter into an
outcomes-based contract with an external provider, with built in
incentives to increase personal independence, strengthen the
amount of community-based care and reduce unit cost. It would
also be possible to include a profit share arrangement so that the
Council could benefit from additional income generated.

Existing staff and assets could be transferred to the new provider
through established processes

Southampton City Council

PwC

Risks

1. The Council takes on a contract/performance management role in
respect of the operations of the provider — which it may not yet be
resourced to do.

2. An outsourced provider may not wish to take on all social care
areas, meaning that the service may be split up. There was
particular reluctance to splitting services up in this review.

3. Ifthe contract agreed with a provider is unclear or commercially
unfavourable, the Council and the local could be seriously
disadvantaged until the contract could be renegotiated, or the
service brought back in-house. However, this is a responsibility
for the Council to take.

September 2012
Slide 26



| Q8: Would a partnership with a health provider be

beneficial?

The costs and benefits of a partnership with a health provider would need tobe 7.

tested further in a business case and need to be driven by evidence about
citizen needs.

The opportunities and risks for partnering with a health provider would be
similar as for outsourcing more generally, except that this would narrow down
the range of possible providers, and the Council would need to confirm
through a tender exercise that the health body selected had the required
capacity and strength to deliver a contract.

In determining whether a partnership with a health would deliver net benefits,
the key issues that need to be considered are:

1. What are the advantages of delivering in partnership? — commissioning
strength, economies of scale, sharing of systems and processes, people
utilisation. Are all key stakeholders (e.g. elected members) on board?

2. What is the scope of services to be included? — some services align well
with health provider services (e.g. reablement), whilst others are less
aligned (e.g. learning disability day services). What outcomes need to be
delivered?

3. Isthere a good understanding of the operational baseline in both the
Council and NHS services?

4. What are the options for delivering in partnership?

5.  How will the new partnership operate in terms of business functions,
processes, people, systems and data?

6.  What is the most appropriate governance model and legal structure for
the partnership? What is permissible within current legislation?

Southampton City Council
PwC

How will the partnership be implemented, in terms of timescale (e.g.
pilot, phased or big bang). What investment would be required?

What is the overall case for change? Would there be net financial and
non-financial benefits, and over what timescale would they be required?

September 2012
Slide 27



Q9: Are health agencies a suitable partner for delivery?

No business case or evidence was advanced on this point as part of this review.
However we would pose the following questions in assessing the delivery
suitability of health agencies, which would need to be addressed as part of a
business case (see response to question 8):

1. Which adult social care services could be delivered by a health agency? For
instance, there is a prime facie argument in support of integrated
intermediate care services

2. What types of health agencies would have the required levels of capability
and experience to deliver particular types of adult social care services?
What does the Council perceive the main advantages of collaboration with
a health body to be? Are these views shared by the health partner?

3. Are there particular types of health agencies that the Council would be
interested in partnering with — Clinical Commissioning Groups, NHS
Trusts, private sector bodies, social enterprises, third sector bodies?

4. What type of partnerships would the Council be willing to establish — joint
commissioning, outsourcing, joint venture, joint committee etc?

5. Isthe timing right in a period of intense uncertainty in the NHS?

Nationally, in other areas, partnering arrangements between health and social
care are at different stages. Care Trusts are well established in some areas (eg
Solihull) but the results of these partnerships are not well researched. There are
also some cases where these arrangements have not worked and had to be
unpicked.

Local authorities and NHS providers are looking anew at some of these
questions and emerging evidence is being shared across the sector, Part of the
prompting for this is the new models of delivery available through NHS
reforms.

Southampton City Council
PwC

September 2012
Slide 28



— ] L] hd
Qu 10: Is the Council’s approach to integrating
commissioning across children’s and adult social care a
sound one?

There is further work to do to fully understand this thinking and the
underlying rationale and business case in support of it. The key challenge
posed to the Council in this review has been in making structural change
before deciding on the evidence base for service development and aligning this
with the organisation and service departments’ own visions of success.

This question is also dependent upon a number of factors, including
definitions and scope. During this review different stakeholders had different
definitions of commissioning. Some of the areas where there is prime facie a
case to be considered are in;

The commonality of core capabilities and skills - in terms of forecasting,
modelling, needs analysis, budget management, commissioning at the
micro and macro scales.

Other areas of commonality, such as performance management,
performance reporting, the ability to move support staff across services
and functions at points of acute stress or pressure.

However, there are also weaknesses in this outline argument, including:

Children’s and adult services work with fundamentally different cohorts
of residents. The bulk of citizens supported in adult social care are older
people with few familial connections. The majority of children and
families supported in children’s services departments are families with
children at risk of harm. The circumstances, numbers and needs of each
are quite different,

There may be overlaps in some areas, and the government’s Troubled
Families agenda is exposing some of these. These areas of cross-over
tend to focus on issues such as mental ill health, housing, substance
misuse and child protection. These are core cost drivers for children’s
services and the NHS, but are less so for adult social care.

Southampton City Council

PwC

This argument can pre-suppose a focus on procurement skills, which are
one part of the commissioning cycle. If the Council is looking to share
skills around commercial negotiation, contract management and other
similar areas, it may not need to consider structural alternatives.

Fundamentally there needs to be enough “tension in the system” to pull
the right skills into play at the right points in the service delivery journey.
This means deferring to skill sets around commercial relationships at the
right point in the service delivery cycle. What is important is to be able to
maintain an adeptness in commissioning — picking up local trends and
being able to manage the market to meet these trends, maintaining
budgetary control in typically very difficult demand-led areas and other
benefits of effective commissioning,.

September 2012
Slide 29



This publication has been prepared for general guidance on matters of interest only, and does
not constitute professional advice. You should not act upon the information contained in this
publication without obtaining specific professional advice. No representation or warranty
(express or implied) is given as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained
in this publication, and, to the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, its
members, employees and agents do not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of
care for any consequences of you or anyone else acting, or refraining to act, in reliance on the
information contained in this publication or for any decision based on it.

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, “PwC” refers to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom) which is a
member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm of which is a
separate legal entity.



Agenda ltem 11

DECISION-MAKER: OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

SUBJECT: MONITORING SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS

DATE OF DECISION: 8 NOVEMBER 2012

REPORT OF: SENIOR MANAGER - CUSTOMER AND BUSINESS
IMPROVEMENT

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

None

BRIEF SUMMARY

This item enables the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to monitor and
track progress on recommendations made to the Executive at previous meetings.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i)  That the Committee considers the responses from Cabinet Members to
recommendations from previous meetings and provides feedback.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. To assist the Committee in assessing the impact and consequence of
recommendations made at previous meetings.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED
2. None.
DETAIL (Including consultation carried out)

3. Appendix 1 of the report sets out the recommendations made to Cabinet
Members at previous meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee. It also contains summaries of any action taken by Cabinet
Members in response to the recommendations.

4. The progress status for each recommendation is indicated and if the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee confirms acceptance of the
items marked as completed they will be removed from the list. In cases
where action on the recommendation is outstanding or the Committee does
not accept the matter has been adequately completed, it will be kept on the
list and reported back to the next meeting. It will remain on the list until such
time as the Committee accepts the recommendation as completed.

Rejected recommendations will only be removed from the list after being
reported to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
Capital/Revenue

5. None
Property/Other

6. None




LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

7. The duty to undertake overview and scrutiny is set out in Section 21 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007.

Other Legal Implications:

8. None.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

9. None.

AUTHOR: Name: | Mark Pirnie Tel: | 023 8083 3886
E-mail: | Mark.pirnie@southampton.gov.uk

KEY DECISION? No

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED: None directly as a result of this report.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION
Non-confidential appendices are in the Members’ Rooms and can be accessed

on-line
Appendices
1. Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations — 8" November 2012
Documents In Members’ Rooms
None
Integrated Impact Assessment
Do the implications/subject of the report require an Integrated Impact No

Assessment (IIA) to be carried out.

Other Background Documents

Integrated Impact Assessment and Other Background documents available for
inspection at:

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the Access to
Information Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if applicable)

None




Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Holding the Executive to Account
Scrutiny Monitoring — 8" November 2012

APPENDIX 1

Date Portfolio Title Action proposed Action Taken Progress Status
12:07:12 | Resources Changes to | That the Cabinet Member requests This has not been requested at the current time.
existing details of the Capita Partnership’s Senior | The Council is working positively with Capita to
revenue and | Managers pay levels and circulates to deliver savings, and this would only serve as a
capital OSMC distraction.
budgets
Follow up 16™ August:
That the Cabinet Member requests Officers have requested the information from
details of the Capita Partnership’s Senior | Capita.
Managers pay bands and the number of
managers in each band and circulates to
OSMC
13:09:12 | Resources STEP That the Cabinet Member provides The use of 2 potential IT systems is being
information to the Committee on the IT explored:
system, including costings, that is to be ¢ A new intranet site which will be the main
developed to support the policy information site signposting employees to
the various policies, training and support
available
o A simple database to manage the
redeployment process. This will record
details and skills of employees on the
redeployment register and enable offers
of redeployment and matching to be
recorded
Further details of these systems will be made
available when the work is further developed.
13:09:12 | Efficiency & That relevant SCC departments The Policy, Performance Management and
Improvement collaborate to agree an approach to Systems review completed in December 2011

service planning such that all use the
same set of data sources, analyse and
interpret the information derived in a
consistent way and share information in
order to produce the most effective and
efficient results

recommended:
¢ The establishment of a data warehouse
or a central point of access to information
on policies, performance and systems
including an agreed (reduced) list of
policies, performance indicators and

L xipuaddy

F

v

| | wa)| epusby



APPENDIX 1

Date

Portfolio

Title

Action proposed

Action Taken

Progress Status

systems in use

Within this exercise, to identify the top
high level strategies and policies and Pls
that link to them (to form the core), setting
out clearly the golden thread from
strategy to practice and a council wide
gateway process for reviewing and
developing these in the future

Identify ways in which officers can shift
resources and focus from scanning data
to analysis and problem solving to
improve the overall product and
outcomes from data.

The implementation of the review is about to
commence and will take on board this OSMC
recommendation.

11:10:12

Communities

Youth
Justice Plan

That the Youth Offending Service
explores options for external funding from
businesses in the city

The YOS has started to seek out opportunities to
involve the local business community in working
with and on behalf of young offenders, for
instance:

Since April 2012 funding has been
secured from Southampton Rotary Club
and Network Rail to fund the sporting
activities that form part of the Youth
Offending Service offending behaviour
programme. The YOS Manager has
delivered a presentation to the Rotary
Club summarising how the funding has
been used to benefit young people’s
supervision and diversion from further
offending and to thank the Club for its
contribution

In addition, the Youth Offending Service
has worked in partnership with the
Hansard Gallery to secure funding for its
new Arts Programme (accredited at

Completed




APPENDIX 1

Date

Portfolio

Title

Action proposed

Action Taken

Progress Status

GCSE level). The Youth Offending
Service also works proactively with the
Construction Youth Trust to explore local
placement opportunities for young people
in the construction industry.

¢ The total amount of funding brought in is
£10,250. The funding for the arts course
forms the lion’s share of this (£9,500) —
this was an arts grant applied for and
held by the Hansard. We contribute staff
to the programme and have agreed to
participate in the evaluation process.

The YOS will continue to seek out opportunities
to engage with the whole community for the
benefit of all.

11:10:12

Leader’s

A Citywide
approach to
Energy

That the Leader seeks to ensure that the
energy agenda is taken forward on a
cross party basis

This will be considered alongside the proposed
December cabinet report covering the Strategic
City Wide Approach to Energy.

11:10:12

Environment
& Transport

Increasing
Recycling
Rates

That the Cabinet Member looks again at
increasing the range of aluminium items
collected at the kerbside

The Project Integra Waste Technical Group
chaired by Southampton City Council is currently
looking at the feasibility of adding aluminium foil
and packaging to the kerbside collected dry
recyclables. Initial findings are that the value paid
for any aluminium packaging would not cover the
additional sorting and transportation costs. A full
update will be provided when the feasibility study
is complete in early 2013.

11:10:12

Housing and
Leisure

Petition —
Redbridge
Hill
undergrowth

That a site visit is organised with the
petitioners to ensure that the work that
has been undertaken to clear the
undergrowth is satisfactory

The works arising from this petition took place in
three phases:
1. Tree works carried out by the Council’s
appointed Tree Contractor
2. Under-storey pruned by District ‘Green
Team’
3. Soil encroachments removed by
Community Payback Team

Completed




APPENDIX 1

Date

Portfolio

Title

Action proposed

Action Taken

Progress Status

The third and last phase of this work took place
as part of a Street Cred day within the area and
the job is now complete as far as we understood
the petitioners’ request. However, we will meet
on site to ensure all is as petitioners hoped and
expected.

11:10:12

Environment
& Transport

Petition —
Cemetery

That the Council identifies the number of
Council employees whose
accommodation is tied to their
employment with the council and
develops appropriate policies to address
this matter

Information will be provided to the Committee in
advance of the 8" November meeting and
circulated at the meeting.

That the Council contact these employees
to reiterate their status and seek to
ensure that when their term of office ends
that they are not left out of pocket through
investing in property improvements

Information will be provided to the Committee in
advance of the 8™ November meeting and
circulated at the meeting.

That the Cabinet Member provides the
family with a breakdown of the savings
the proposal will generate

Information will be provided to the Committee in
advance of the 8™ November meeting and
circulated at the meeting.

That appropriate screening is erected to
screen the property

Information will be provided to the Committee in
advance of the 8" November meeting and
circulated at the meeting.

That the Cabinet Member, in compliance
with the Council’s allocations policy, looks
to ensure that the sensitivity of the
location is taken into consideration when
tenants are identified for the property

Information will be provided to the Committee in
advance of the 8™ November meeting and
circulated at the meeting.




	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the Previous Meeting (including matters arising)
	7 Review of the Romanse and CCTV Project
	8 Forward Plan
	8a Townhill Park Regeneration Framework: Scheme Approval for Phase 1
	F Plan -Townhill Park -App 1
	F Plan -Townhill Park-App 2

	8b Implementation of the New School Funding Formula
	F Plan -Sch Fund Reform-App1
	F Plan -Sch Fund Reform-App2

	9 Progress Report on post OFSTED Announced Inspection Action Plan
	Safeguarding CLA-APP

	10 Alternative Delivery Options For Adult Social Care
	Adult Social Care-App 1 - PwC presentation

	11 Monitoring Scrutiny Recommendations
	Scru Mon -Appendix November 8th


